
Council may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda 

BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
December 10, 2019 

Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
City Council Meeting 

Opening 7:00 P.M. 
 

 Call to Order         Next Ordinance #29-19 
 Pledge of Allegiance        Next Resolution #19-09 
 Roll Call of Council Members       Next Agenda Bill #AB19-122 
   
 

A. Citizen Participation 
 

Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are encouraged to sign up at City Hall by 
Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting) 

   
B. Staff Reports 

 
C. Main Agenda 

 
1. ORD No. ____-19: Amending the 2019 Budget      Pg. 7
2. ORD No. ____-19: Possession of Dangerous Dogs      Pg. 11
3. ORD No. ____-19: Adopting New 2017 Comprehensive Sewer System Plan  Pg. 14
4. ORD No. ____-19: Amending Comprehensive Plan - Elements 7 and 8   Pg. 17
5. ORD No. ____-19: Amending BMC 3.50.050 - WRSD Impact Fee    Pg. 157
6. ORD No. ____-19: Amending BMC 19.20.130 - Zoning Code Permitted Use Table  Pg. 167
7. Agreement – TIB Grant Funding – River Avenue, Jefferson to Main St.   Pg. 203
8. Engineering Services Proposal – Water Reuse Plan      Pg. 212
9. Agreement – Interlocal Between WRSD & City Regarding Impact Fees   Pg. 226
10. Bid Award: Police Station Roof        Pg. 233
11. Separation Agreement – Chief of Police       Pg. 235
12. Agreement - City Administrator Consultant Support Services    Pg. 243

 
D. Consent Agenda 

 
13. A. Approve Minutes of December 3, 2019, City Council Study Session   Pg. 253

B. Claims           Pg. 254
C. Transfer Voucher 
D. Payroll 

 
E. Committee Reports  

 
14. Mayor’s Report       Johnson 
15. Administration, Finance & Public Safety    Tremblay 
16. Transportation & Utilities      B. Burkett 
17. Community Services      S. Burkett 
18. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order 
  
  Oath of Office: New Council Member Sundstrom     Pg. 259

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
1



The above meetings will be held in the Multi-Purpose Center located at 811 Main Street unless otherwise noted.  
      Last Revised December 5, 2019 

       CITY OF BUCKLEY  PO BOX 1960  BUCKLEY, WA 98321 
360-829-1921  Fax 360-829-2659  http://www.cityofbuckley.com 

 
CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST 

 
 
 

December 2019 
 
 
Dec. 10 9:30 AM Admin/Finance/Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Dec. 10 7:00 PM City Council 
 
Dec. 12 1:00 PM  Community Services (City Hall) – Special Date 
 
Dec. 16 7:00 PM Planning Commission CANCELLED 
 
Dec. 17 7:00 PM  Transportation & Utilities (City Shop) CANCELLED 
 
Dec. 19 1:00 PM Community Services (City Hall) 
 
Dec. 24 9:30 AM Admin/Finance/Public Safety (City Hall) -CANCELLED 
 
Dec. 24 7:00 PM City Council - CANCELLED 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
2



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1  2 

 
 
7 Planning Commis‐
sion 

3 
 
 
7 City Council Study 
Session 

4  5  6  7 

8  9 
 
10:30 Buckley Hall 
Board 

10 
 
9:30 A/F/PS 
 
7 City Council 

11  12 
 
1 Community Services 

13  14 

15  16 
 
 
7 Planning Commis‐
sion 

17 
 
 
7 Transporta on & 
U li es 

18  19 
 
 

20  21 

22  23  24 
9:30 A/F/PS 
City Hall Closing at 
Noon 
7 City Council 

25 
City Hall Closed! 

26  27  28 

29  30  31 
 
City Hall Closing at 
Noon 

    

     December 2019               

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. STAFF REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. MAIN AGENDA 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
6



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-122 
 
ORD No. ___-19: Amending the 
2019 Budget 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong  X 
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:   Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance w/exhibit       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: State statutes require that we adopt any amendments prior to the end of the 
year.  
 
After completing the closeout of the October 2019 revenues and expenditures, we discovered that several 
funds needed to be amended for various reasons as outlined in the Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 29-19 Amending 
the 2019 Budget 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
7



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

       
CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 

 
ORDINANCE NO. __ - 19          

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 
PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 20-18, 
THE SAME BEING AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET 
OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON, FOR THE YEAR 2019, AND 
APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES. 

 
  

WHEREAS, The City of Buckley adopted Ordinance number 20-19 adopting the 2019 final 

budget for the City of Buckley by reference; 

 

WHEREAS, 2019 expenditure projections for the Police Reserve (Fund 007) are projected to 

be over by approximately $94,642 or 36.5% due to higher construction costs of the police parking lot 

reconstruction project and addition of the police station reroof; and 

 

WHEREAS, 2019 revenue and expenditure projections for the Transportation Benefit District 

(Fund 103) are both under with revenues by -5.21% or ($5,693) and expenditures by -5.36% or 

($5,950). Adjustments to transfers out of the fund had to be modified due to the revenue shortfall; and 

 

WHEREAS, 2019 expenditures for Fire Station Construction (Fund 134) are higher by 

approximately $15,000 due to expenditures related to Fire training area improvements approved by 

City Council; and   

 

WHEREAS, 2019 revenue and expenditure projections for Solid Waste Collection (Fund 

403) are both higher with expenditures by approximately $162,000 or 14.6% and revenues by 

approximately  $170,000 all due to the addition of new customers from residential development and 

subsequent higher contractual costs; and 

 

 WHEREAS, The City of Buckley, in order to be in compliance with state law and not have 

any funds go over budget, desires to correct Funds 007, 103, 134 and 403 by adjusting revenues and/or 

expenditures; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council did meet to consider the matter of the 2019 Budget Amendment 

in a public meeting on December 10, 2019; 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
8



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. Ordinance No. 20-18 and the 2019 Final Budget shall be amended as shown 

in the summary form attached as Exhibit A. 

 

 This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after its passage, approval, posting 

and publication as provided by law.  A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of 

publishing the Ordinance in its entirety. 

 

Introduced, passed, and approved this 10th day of December 2019. 

 

 
      __________________________________ 
      Pat Johnson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________    
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney        PUBLISHED: ____________ 
                        EFFECTIVE: ____________  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
9



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 3 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
2019 City Budget Amendment 

Fund Fund Name 
2019 

Budgeted 
Revenue 

2019 
Amended 
Revenues 

2019 
Budgeted 

Expenditures 

2019 
Amended 

Expenditures 

2019 
Projected  

Unrestricted 
End Fund 

2019 
Amended 

Unrestricted 
End Fund 

001 General             $6,335,442 $6,335,442 $5,382,053  $5,382,053  $953,389  $953,389  
002 Contingency $211,383 $211,383 $0  $0  $211,383  $211,383  
003 Cum Res $5,118,465 $5,118,465 $103,000  $103,000  $5,015,465  $5,015,465  
004 Cemetery        $25,011 $25,011 $5,041  $5,041  $19,970  $19,970  
007 Police Res       $487,763 $461,939 $259,000  $353,642 $228,763  $108,298 
008 RR ROW     $126,584 $126,584 $27,730  $27,730  $98,854  $98,854  
030 Fire Res           $1,158,250 $1,158,250 $1,158,250  $1,158,250  $0  $0  
035 Park Const        $213,647 $213,647 $196,250  $196,250  $17,397  $17,397  
101 Street $262,505 $262,505 $248,206  $248,206  $14,299  $14,299  
102 Arterial             $772,006 $772,006 $385,131  $385,131  $386,875  $386,875  
103 TBD $109,256 $103,563 $106,002  $103,305 $3,253  $258 
105 EMS               $528,829 $528,829 $342,500  $342,500  $186,329  $186,329  
109 Crim Justice   $231,961 $231,961 $72,000  $72,000  $159,961  $159,961  
134 Fire Const      $220,729 $220,729 $6,400  $21,406 $214,329  $199,323 
136 Visitor Prom     $164,278 $164,278 $28,510  $28,510  $135,768  $135,768  
202 FS Bond $343,050 $343,050 $274,020  $274,020  $69,030  $69,030  
307 Capital Imp     $828,166 $828,166 $438,254  $438,254  $389,912  $389,912  
308 Comp Plan      $410,784 $410,784 $141,656  $141,656  $269,127  $269,127  
401 NG Oper      $5,902 $5,902 $5,225  $5,225  $677  $677  
402 Water/Sewer    $3,593,786 $3,593,786 $3,358,908  $3,358,908  $234,878  $234,878  
403 Solid Waste   $1,137,773 $1,310,677 $1,110,257  $1,271,869 $27,516  $38,809 
405 Sewer Const      $2,406,351 $2,406,351 $1,764,709  $1,764,709  $641,642  $641,642  
406 Water Const     $750,602 $750,602 $622,722  $622,722  $127,880  $127,880  
407 Stormwater    $600,351 $600,351 $596,410  $596,410  $3,941  $3,941  
408 Storm Const      $2,062,203 $2,062,203 $934,985  $934,985  $1,127,218  $1,127,218  
430 Equip Res         $275,539 $275,539 $83,500  $83,500  $192,039  $192,039  
631 Muni Trust $413,204 $413,204 $400,000  $400,000  $13,204  $13,204  
701 Ceme Imp       $182,951 $182,951 $1,000  $1,000  $181,951  $181,951  

Total $28,976,773 $29,118,161 $18,051,720 $18,320,282 $10,925,053 $10,797,879 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
10



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10 2019       AB19-123 
ORD No. ___-19 Updating BMC 
Section 9.10.260 Possession of 
Dangerous Dogs 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $ Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  Earlier this year, the Washington State Legislature passed House Bill 
1026. This bill is an act relating to breed-based dog regulations; adding a new section to chapter 16.08 
RCW; creating a new section; and providing an effective date of January 1, 2020. This bill impacts the 
current BMC Chapter 9.10 and requires an additional exception to be added to comply with State law.  
 
The attached Ordinance amends section 9.10.260 to add an exemption if the specific dog has passed the 
AKC Kennel Good Citizen Test or a reasonably equivalent canine behavioral test to fulfill the state 
requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: A/F/PS 11/26/19 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 30-19 Amending 
Section 9.10.260 of the BMC relating to possession of dangerous dogs. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
11



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 

ORDINANCE NO. ____-19 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON AMENDING BUCKLEY MUNICIPAL CODE, SECTIONS 
9.10.260 POSSESSION OF DANGEROUS DOG - UNLAWFUL  TO ADD AND 
EXEMPTION IF THE SPECIFIC DOG HAS PASSED THE AKC KENNEL 
GOOD CITIZEN TEST OR A REASONABLY EQUIVALENT CANINE 
BEHAVIORAL TEST. 

 WHEREAS, Buckley Municipal Code Section 9.10.260 makes it unlawful for any person to have 

in their possession, or allow to be maintained upon premises within their possession or control, a dog 

found to be dangerous pursuant to the definition in BMC 9.10.020(7)(c); and  

 WHEREAS, House Bill 1026 passing the House on 3/8/19 and the Senate on 4/17/19 provides 

and requires an exemption to the prohibition under a breed specific ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to comply with State law. 

 NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  

 Section 1: Buckley Municipal Code Section 9.10.260 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

9.10.260 Possession of dangerous dog – Unlawful. 

It is unlawful for any person to have in their possession, or to allow to be maintained upon premises 

within their possession or control, a dog found to be dangerous pursuant to the definition in BMC 

9.10.020(7)(c), or by the city administrator as set forth in BMC 9.10.270(6) except for the specific 

exemption listed as follows: 

 (a) A specific dog has passed the AKC Kennel Club Canine Good Citizen Test or reasonably 

equivalent canine behavioral test in which case the specific dog is exempt from the provisions of BMC 

Section 9.10.260 for a period of two (2) years. After a two (2) year period, the dog may be retested and if 

successfully passed the Canine Good Citizen Test, the exemption shall continue for an additional two (2) 

year period. A dog that has failed the Good Citizen Test, or equivalent test, may retest within a reasonable 

period of time. 

 Section 2: All other provisions of Section 9.10.260, Possession of dangerous dog – Unlawful, 

shall remain in force and effect except as specifically amended above. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
12



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

 Section 3: If any provision of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any 

reason, the remaining g provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in force and effect. 

 Section 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force five days from and after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 Introduced, passed, and approved this    day of    2019. 

     

Mayor Pat Johnson 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Treva Percival, MMC – City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney 

PUBLISHED:     

EFFECTIVE:     

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
13



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-124 
 
ORD No. ____-19, Adopting New 
2017 Comprehensive Sewer System 
Plan 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Washington State Law requires that the City prepare and submit a general 
sewer plan to the DOE for review and approval in order to satisfy that plans and specifications and the 
methods of operation and maintenance submitted are adequate to protect the quality of the state’s waters. 
 
Through a consulting contract, Gray & Osborne completed the work and specified and submitted an 
updated sewer plan prepared in conformance with the requirements of the Washington Administrative 
Code (WAC) 173-240-050 for general sewer plans. 
 
The Comprehensive Sewer Plan can be found on the City of Buckley’s website at: 
https://www.cityofbuckley.com/vertical/sites/%7B3F3908CB-99FA-4EBD-A0DE-
FA08EE8F24F2%7D/uploads/City_of_Buckley_-_Sewer_Comprehensive_Plan_2019.pdf 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Transportation & Utilities 2/21/2017 & 
11/19/2019 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 31-19, Adopting 
the 2017 City of Buckley Comprehensive Sewer Plan. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
14

https://www.cityofbuckley.com/vertical/sites/%7B3F3908CB-99FA-4EBD-A0DE-FA08EE8F24F2%7D/uploads/City_of_Buckley_-_Sewer_Comprehensive_Plan_2019.pdf
https://www.cityofbuckley.com/vertical/sites/%7B3F3908CB-99FA-4EBD-A0DE-FA08EE8F24F2%7D/uploads/City_of_Buckley_-_Sewer_Comprehensive_Plan_2019.pdf


ORD No. ___-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  _____-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 
PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON ADOPTING THE “2017 CITY OF 
BUCKLEY COMPREHENSIVE SEWER PLAN.” 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Buckley owns, operates and maintains the sewer system within 

its City limits; and  

WHEREAS, RCW 90.58.110 and WAC 173-240-050 require that the City prepare and 

submit a general sewer plan to the DOE for review and approval in order to satisfy that plans and 

specifications and the methods of operation and maintenance submitted are adequate to protect 

the quality of the state's waters; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s previous general sewer plan was prepared by CHS Engineers, 

Inc. in August, 2003 and approved by DOE January 12, 2004; and 

WHEREAS, in January, 2006 the City began extensive upgrades and rehabilitation of 

the existing wastewater treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, overall system improvements concluded with the construction of a new 

conveyance line that connected Rainier School to the City’s wastewater treatment facility that 

was completed May 24, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, based on the extent of capital improvements completed under the 2003 

Plan, and necessity to identify and specify future capital improvements, the City needed to update 

the previous plan; and 

WHEREAS, through a consulting contract Gray & Osborne completed the work 

specified and submitted an updated sewer plan prepared in conformance with the requirements of 

the Washington Administrative Code (WAC), 173-240-050 for general sewer plans; and 

WHEREAS, draft copies of this updated plan were submitted to DOE and Pierce 

County; and 

WHEREAS, City staff certifies that the updated 2017 Comprehensive Sewer System 

Plan is consistent with the 2015 Comprehensive Plan, land use plans, shoreline master programs, 

and/or developmental policies of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Transportation/Utilities Committee reviewed the draft sewer plan 

on February 21, 2017 and subsequent revisions on November 19, 2019; and 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
15



ORD No. ___-19 Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Sewer System Plan was reviewed for compliance with 

the State Environmental Protection Act (SEPA) and it was determined that the adoption of the 

Plan was exempt from SEPA review; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council concurs with the Transportation & Utilities Committee’s 

recommendation and desires to adopt the draft plan as the “2017 Comprehensive Sewer System 

Plan”; now, therefore 

 

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY DOES 

NOW ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.    The “2017 Comprehensive Sewer System Plan” dated February, 2017 is 

hereby adopted by reference and replaces the “2003 Comprehensive Sewer System Plan.” 

 

Section 2.    Severability.  If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is held invalid, 

such invalidity shall not affect any other provision, or the application thereof, which can be given 

effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this 

Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 

             Section 3.   This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days from and after its 

passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

 

Introduced, passed, and approved this 10th day of December, 2019.   

 

      _____________________________                                                           

             Pat Johnson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________                                                        

Treva Percival, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

                                                                          

Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney          

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
16



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-125 
 
ORD No. _____-19: Adopting City 
Comprehensive Plan Elements 7 
(Utilities) & 8 (Capital Facilities). 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller  X 
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore  X 
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel  X 
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren  X 
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto  X 
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash  X 
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks  X 
Attachments: Memo, PC Report, Elements 7 & 8 and Ordinance,       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  Pursuant to the Growth Management Act, RCW 36.70A the City is 
required to adopt comprehensive plans that includes the following mandatory elements: 
 

• Land Use; Housing; Capital Facilities Plan; Utilities; Transportation; Economic Development; 
and Parks and Recreation 

 
The City completed updates and adopted Land Use, Housing, Economic and Parks and Recreation and 
Elements in 2015, followed by adoption of a Transportation Element in 2017. The Utilities, Element 7 
and Capital Facilities, Element 8 are the final two updates that the City needs in order for the 
Comprehensive Plan to be fully compliant with RCW 36.70A. 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Full Council Workshop 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve ORD No. 32-19 Adopting City 
Comprehensive Plan Elements 7 (Utilities) & 8 (Capital Facilities). 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
17



 

City of Buckley  
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Memo 
 

To:       Mayor & City Council 
 
From:   City Administrator 
 
Date:    November 18, 2019 

RE:       Explanation of Additional Changes to Elements 7 & 8  

 
On May 6, 2019 the City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on draft 

Comprehensive Plan Elements 7 and 8 and upon conclusion forwarded a recommendation to 
the City Council to adopt the two drafts.  

 
However, after receiving the Planning Commission’s recommendation and after 

receiving multiple inquiries into development of areas in the 112th St E and Hinkleman RD 
areas, City staff identified that the draft plans did not consider and/or plan for higher density 
residential development in these areas although the adopted zoning code permitted this type 
of use. The focus for the City had been that this area would develop both with commercial 
retail and light industrial type uses. 

 
Upon identification of the need, the City engineer completed modeling of the two 

areas at potential higher densities and identified that sewer facilities in the area were 
inadequate to serve these types of densities. As a result additional capital sewer 
improvements were developed in these areas in order to serve higher residential 
development. 

 
As a result of the changes to the draft Elements recommended by the PC, the City is 

required to conduct a subsequent public hearing to solicit comments on the additional 
changes. 
 

 
City Administrator 
 

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
18



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
19



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 2 of 10 

 

2017 Water System Comprehensive Plan map 

C. Public Hearing Notice.  

Public Hearing Notice and proposal description published Wednesday, April 17, 2019, although 

the school’s request for impact fees was not included in the notice. 

 

III. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN INFORMATION 
The adoption of these two elements will complete the city’s comprehensive plan, which was due 

June 30, 2015. The next comprehensive plan review is due June 30, 2023. The adoption of the 

school district’s capital facilities plan will allow the city to charge impact fees for residences for 

school improvements. 

 

A. E-7, Utility Element. 

1. The city’s comprehensive water plan was 

completed in 2018. 

2. The city’s comprehensive sewer plan was 

completed in 2018. 

3. A draft comprehensive plan element was compiled 

in 2018.  

 

B. E-8, Capital Facilities Element. 

1. The Parks and Recreation Element, E-6, was 

completed in 2015 and contained lists of needed 

facilities and funding ideas. 

2. The Transportation Element, E-5, was completed in 2017, and contained lists of needed 

improvements. 

3. The Utility Element is pending approval and contains lists of needed improvements. 

4. In addition to improvements cited in E-5, E-6, and E-7, general improvements to city offices 

and facilities are needed to continue serving a growing population. This element includes a 

list of needed improvements.  

 

C. E-8, additional school impact fee information. 

1. The White River School District Capital Facilities Plan, 2018 through 2024, was submitted 

to the planning department April 10, 2019.  

2. A memo to the city council and ordinance adopting the plan and impact fees were written by 

administration in March.  

3. The ordinance whereas statements itemize the history of the request. 

4. The school district is not required to conduct a hearing before adopting its capital facilities 

plan; the plan was adopted July 25, 2018. 

5. The request for impact fees is as follows:  

 

Type of Construction 
Buckley Impact Fee 

per Dwelling Unit 

Single-family homes $3,770 

Multiple-family residential $2,000 

 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
20



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 3 of 10 

 

IV. BUCKLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 

The new goals and policies in the proposed elements must not conflict or contradict any existing 

goal or policy. The commission members reviewed the following existing goals and policies from 

the other five elements regarding utilities and capital facilities and found no apparent conflict, and 

list them for council review as well: 

A. Element 1, Land use; goals & policies. 

1. Goal 1.1 Buckley should provide a healthy and productive environment for its citizens and 

preserve its small town character. 

2. Policy 1.1.1 Buckley should preserve its small town character through the following: 

1. Concentrate retail development near the historic downtown center of the city and near 

the SR 410 corridor. 

2. Integrate additional density in the residential zones in a manner that protects the single 

family areas from commercial encroachment. 

3. Focus commercial development outward from the existing commercial zones. 

4. Focus pedestrian and bicycling trails and sidewalks between commercial and residential 

developments to encourage non-motorized access. 

5. Encourage mixed use developments in commercial zones. 

3. Policy 1.1.4 The city should identify lands useful for public purposes, such as utility 

corridors, transportation corridors, landfills, sewage treatment facilities, stormwater 

management facilities, recreation, schools, and other public uses. 

4. Policy 1.7.2 The city may require additional land for improvements to roadways, pedestrian 

walkways, trails, and access to open space areas.  

5. Policy 1.7.4 The city should encourage easy access to highways for industrial development 

by zoning industrial areas close to highways. This will also help to discourage industrial 

traffic through residential areas. 

6. Goal 1.8 Have a well-maintained, interconnected system of multi-functional parks, 

recreational facilities and open spaces that is attractive, safe, and available to all segments 

of the city’s population; and supports the community’s established neighborhoods and 

small-town atmosphere. 

7. Policy 1.8.2 Coordinate park activities with economic development activities to develop a 

coherent plan that links parks and trails to economic development. 

8. Policy1.8.3 The city should acquire sufficient land to provide the following three types of 

parks: 

1. Mini-parks within about a quarter mile of residential areas of about 2,500 square feet 

each at a rate of .5 acres for each 1,000 population 

2. Neighborhood parks within a quarter to half mile of residential areas of up to 10 acres in 

size at a rate of one acre for each 1,000 population. 

3. Community parks within three miles of residential areas that contain up to 50 acres in 

size at a rate of five acres for each 1,000 population.  

9. Policy 1.8.4 Any residential development containing more than four dwelling units shall 

provide recreational facilities or appropriate and usable park land on or near the 

development. 

10. Policy 1.8.6 Connect parks, schools, recreation areas, and open spaces through trails and 

sidewalks. 

11. Goal 1.9 Coordinate an orderly provision of public facilities with public and private 

development activities that complements the fiscal resources of the city. 

12. Policy 1.9.1 Public facilities and utilities should be located in the    following priority:  

1. Maximize the efficiency of services provided;  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
21



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 4 of 10 

 

2. Minimize the cost of services; and  

3. Minimize impacts on the natural environment. 

13. Policy 1.9.2 Zoning densities should recognize existing utility locations, with higher 

densities closest to existing mains and lowest densities in areas away from existing facilities. 

When new utility services are installed, the city should reexamine the zoning to see if a 

higher density is warranted. 

14. Policy 1.9.3 Development approvals should be contingent upon facilities already being in 

place as the development occurs. The following actions constitute development: a building 

permit, subdivision approval, rezoning, shoreline permit, variance, or any other official 

action that affects the development of land. Provision for development application review 

and the timing of the actual impacts caused by the different types of developments should be 

adopted in the city's concurrency management system as part of the land development 

regulations.  

15. Policy 1.9.4 Land developers should be financially responsible for onsite and off-site 

improvements that reduce direct impacts of the development. These improvements may 

include, but are not limited to, street improvements, installation of traffic safety features, 

paths and/or sidewalks, utility construction, utility capacity expansion, and drainage ways. 

16. Policy 1.9.5 Impact fees should be used as a means for new development to pay its share of 

the costs of new or expanded facilities and services. 

17. Policy 1.9.6 The city should not issue development permits that result in a reduction of the 

level of service (LOS) standard for the public facilities identified in the capital facilities 

element.  

18. Policy 1.9.7 The city should prohibit development and uses that may negatively affect the 

quality and quantity of groundwater used for public water supplies. 

19. Policy 1.9.8 The city should protect the quality and quantity of groundwater used for public 

water supplies. 

20. Goal 1.10 Essential public facilities in the city and its urban growth area should be 

consistent with the Growth Management Act and the following policies:  

21. Policy 1.10.1 The project proponent shall provide a justifiable need for the essential public 

facility and its location within the city and urban growth area, based upon forecasted needs 

and a logical service area. 

22. Policy 1.10.2 The project proponent shall provide a reasonable opportunity for the public 

and the city to participate in the site selection process. 

23. Policy 1.10.3 Siting requirements for county facilities within the Buckley UGA shall be 

jointly and cooperatively established by the county and the city. 

24. Policy 1.10.4 Essential public facilities should not be located in critical areas unless there is 

a demonstrated need and no alternative siting options are reasonable or feasible. Siting of 

essential public facilities within critical areas must be consistent with the comprehensive 

plan and development regulations. 

25. Policy 1.10.5 Essential public facilities sited outside of urban growth areas must be self-

supporting and not require the extension of municipal services and facilities.  

26. Policy 1.10.6 No regulation or procedure may preclude siting an essential public facility 

within the city or its urban growth area. 

 

B. Element 2, Housing; goals and policies. 

This element contains no goal or policies pertinent to this proposed amendment.  

 

C. Element 3, Economic Development; goals and policies. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
22



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 5 of 10 

 

This element contains no goal or policies pertinent to this proposed amendment.  

 

D. Element 4, Urban design; goals and policies. 

1. Policy 4.1.1 Develop pedestrian infrastructure by widening sidewalks, installing crosswalks, 

corner plazas, bollards, street furniture, and so forth. 

2. Policy 4.1.2  Enhance street appeal with amenities such as: News kiosks, Lighting, Water 

fountains, Trees/planter boxes, Pavement treatments, Street names, and Facade 

improvements. 

3. Policy 4.2.1 Install additional signs to indicate attractions in downtown. 

4. Policy 4.2.2 Develop a visual link between the trail and downtown, using elements such as 

pavement materials or landscaping; for example, the existing small plaza could be enhanced 

to help connect the trail with downtown. 

5. Policy 4.2.3 Develop a place of respite on the bike path as it passes Main Street to encourage 

trail users to stop and visit downtown. 

6. Policy 4.3.1 Develop a way-finding system that highlights historic landmarks tourist 

facilities, pedestrian corridors and other places of interest in the downtown area through the 

use of signs and kiosks. 

7. Goal 4.4 Enhance the potential for non-motorized transportation options throughout 

Buckley.  

8. Policy 4.4.1 Develop a plan for walking and/or biking trails to encourage connectivity 

between adjacent residential subdivisions, and between residential areas and the downtown 

core. 

9. Policy 4.4.2 Ensure that all new development provides adequate pedestrian and bicycle 

infrastructure, such as sidewalks, crosswalks, bike paths, and bike racks.  

10. Policy 4.4.3 Eliminate barriers to pedestrians such as dead ends, unnecessary fences of 

overgrown vegetation, and create dedicated connections such as permanent paths or 

stairways. 

11. Policy 4.4.4 Improve existing pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure by installing sidewalks, 

crosswalks, bike lanes, and bike racks where needed. 

12. Policy 4.4.5 Provide safe and convenient pedestrian linkages across SR 410 through the use 

of signalized crosswalks or a pedestrian bridge.  

13. Policy 4.4.6 Work toward a future regional transit stop in Buckley's downtown core through 

establishing public parking areas, park-n-ride lots, and commercial areas around public 

parking lots.  

14. Policy 4.5.2 Encourage alleys when developing extensions of the street network to screen 

from view overhead wires, parking structures, and other visual blight. 

15. Policy 4.5.3 Encourage compact grid street patterns rather than dead ends or long blocks that 

are more typical of modern subdivisions. 

E. Element 5, Transportation goals and policies. 

1. Goal 5.1 Ensure all transportation modes are designed for safety. 

2. Policy 5.1.1 All transportation modes throughout the City should provide safe access to 

goods and services. 

3. Policy 5.1.2 Right-of-way improvements shall be done to the latest accepted design 

standards.  If the design standards cannot be met, a deviation shall be prepared by the 

designer and shall be reviewed for possible approval by the City Engineer. 

4. Policy 5.1.3 Provide needed roadway striping and signing to maintain safe traffic 

operation service levels that are consistent with the most recent Manual of Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices (MUTCD). 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
23



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 6 of 10 

 

5. Policy 5.1.4 The City should ensure adequate visibility for automobiles by enforcing 

landscape and fence height standards. 

6. Policy 5.1.5 A code enforcement officer should be responsible for enforcing the 

vegetation height and breadth over sidewalks as well as beside roads. 

7. Goal 5.2 Enhance the appearance, quality, and function of the transportation system 

in residential and commercial districts. 

8. Policy 5.2.1 Streets, trails, bikeways, and sidewalks should coordinate with a City theme 

(coal mining/brick buildings/logging). 

9. Policy 5.2.2 All materials used for a project should meet the accepted design standards of 

the City. 

10. Policy 5.2.3 Public art should be provided on public rights-of-way by new development to 

enhance the City’s sense of place and/or the City theme. 

11. Policy 5.2.4 All new transportation facilities shall meet current ADA guidelines.  All 

existing facilities shall be inventoried for ADA compliance and prioritized for enhancement 

where necessary. 

12. Policy 5.2.4 Street patterns should be planned as grid systems without dead ends or long 

blocks; clustered development, such as planned unit developments, should provide a trail 

system through the property and connect with adjacent rights-of-way or developed trails. 

13. Policy 5.2.5 Future streets and their classifications should follow a regular distribution 

pattern that anticipates potential land uses and provides for orderly development. 

14. Policy 5.2.6 Alleys should be included in plat plans to eliminate the need for placing 

overhead wires, garages, and garbage cans in front of residences. 

15. Policy 5.2.7 The sizes and capacities of transportation facilities should be appropriately 

matched to the surrounding land uses. 

16. Policy 5.2.8 The City should consider the costs and benefits of both construction and 

maintenance when setting guidelines for street dimensions and rights-of-way. 

17. Policy 5.2.9 Sidewalks should be designed to eliminate sheet flow and ponding on the 

walkway surface. 

18. Policy 5.2.10 Crosswalks should be paved differently to ensure visibility. 

19. Policy 5.2.11 Sidewalks that are likely to serve as parking areas or driveways should be 

designed as driveways to prevent the sidewalk from crumbling through use. 

20. Policy 5.2.12 Sidewalks should have standard curbs (not rolled curbs). 

21. Policy 5.2.13 Sidewalks should be sloped toward the street for drainage. 

22. Policy 5.2.14 Pavement materials and landscaping should be used to create visual 

connections between trails and downtown. 

23. Goal 5.3 Provide a variety of ways to get from one part of the City to another part 

of the City using a variety of transportation modes. 

24. Policy 5.3.1 Sidewalks also should be part of the City’s trail system. 

25. Policy 5.3.2 Create a coordinated system of trails and walkways within the City. 

26. Policy 5.3.3 Trails should lead downtown and to the shoreline. 

27. Policy 5.3.4 Streets that dead end or end in cul-de-sacs should contain pedestrian links to 

the next street. 

28. Goal 5.4 Create a continuous network of non-motorized facilities. 

29. Policy 5.4.1 Increase non-motorized trips within the City of Buckley. 

30. Policy 5.4.2 The City of Buckley should implement transportation demand management 

measures that provide incentives for walking, biking, and public transportation and 

disincentives for automobile use. 

31. Policy 5.4.3 The City should work with the Washington State Department of 

Transportation (WSDOT) to make State Route (SR) 410 safer for pedestrians. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
24



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 7 of 10 

 

32. Policy 5.4.4 Non-motorized links across SR 410 should be by signalized crosswalks or a 

pedestrian route that is grade separated. 

33. Policy 5.4.5 The City should ensure safe and secure access to non-motorized amenities. 

34. Policy 5.4.6 Cars should not park on sidewalks. 

35. Policy 5.4.7 Crosswalk safety at major intersections should be enhanced through the 

addition of visual cues, such as paving and painting treatments, lighting, and/or signage.  

Where crossing distances are long, i.e., across SR 410, raised medians should be constructed 

to serve as places of refuge for pedestrians. 

36. Policy 5.4.8 Future transit areas should include covered transit shelters. 

37. Policy 5.4.11 The City should create a continuous bicycle route system linked to the 

Foothills Trail and other City facilities.  These routes should be part of a public outreach 

effort that creates knowledge of the system.  The outcome of the public outreach can then be 

transferred to City and County maps and other publications for circulation. 

38. Policy 5.4.12 All new commercial and office developments and facilities shall include 

bicycle parking.  Park-and-ride areas and areas for future transit facilities should include 

covered bicycle parking. 

39. Policy 5.4.13 The City should foster Buckley’s role as a destination point for recreational 

cycling by enhancing the town’s visibility and identity. 

40. Goal 5.5 The City should create park-and-ride lots that are connected to the trail 

system and will serve to connect with future transit services within the City’s 

downtown and the SR 410 corridor. 

41. Policy 5.5.1 The City should ensure safe and secure access to park-and-ride lots by 

prioritizing areas around park-and-ride lots for lighting and other pedestrian amenity 

improvements. 

42. Policy 5.5.2 The City should create a park-and-ride lot near downtown. 

43. Policy 5.5.3 The City should examine opportunities for combining park-and-ride lots with 

a variety of land use activities to enhance the convenience of carpooling. 

44. Policy 5.5.4 The City should continue to work with regional transit operators for future 

placement of transit stops within Buckley. 

45. Policy 5.5.5 The City should continue working with WSDOT and Pierce County to jointly 

compete for funds to support mass transit funding to and from the City, as well as associated 

transportation improvements. 

46. Goal 5.6 Transportation improvements should be constructed with reduced 

environmental impacts. 

47. Policy 5.6.1 All transportation improvements should minimize impervious footprints and 

use current stormwater techniques as required in Title 14 of the Buckley Municipal Code. 

48. Policy 5.6.2 The City shall pursue low-impact street and parking lot design, construction, 

and maintenance techniques to minimize impervious surface, water pollution, and water 

runoff. 

49. Policy 5.6.3 New roads and trails should be designed in such a way that they will not 

affect wetlands, natural preserves, parks and recreation areas, significant historical and 

cultural resources, and areas identified as critical wildlife habitat. 

50. Policy 5.6.4 The City should provide plug-in charging stations for electric vehicles. 

51. Goal 5.7 The City should finance improvements after considering which project will 

provide the most benefit for citizens. 

52. Policy 5.7.1 The City should develop a list of roadway and non-motorized improvements 

to be accomplished within the next 6 years and updated annually.  Council should consider 

prioritization of the roadway improvements each spring. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
25



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 8 of 10 

 

53. Policy 5.7.2 The City should use both traditional and innovative methods for financing 

roadway improvements such as public/private partnerships, impact fees, and so forth. 

54. Policy 5.7.3 The City should explore funding tools such as road improvement districts 

(RIDs), local improvement districts (LIDs), and other local funding mechanisms to finance 

projects that provide a primary local benefit. 

55. Policy 5.7.4 WSDOT, Pierce County, and the City of Buckley should work together to 

share transportation resources and reduce overlap in transportation expenditures. 

56. Policy 5.7.5 The City should require maintenance agreements for private roads that are 

executed by the responsible landowners. 

57. Policy 5.7.6 The City should continue to compete for funds for transportation 

improvements. 

58. Goal 5.8 The City should ensure developers pay for impacts to the roadway system, as 

required by concurrency. 

59. Policy 5.8.1 Each development is financially responsible for related transportation costs. 

60. Policy 5.8.2 A consistent level of service must be provided. 

61. Policy 5.8.3 Transportation improvements needed to support new development shall be in 

place at the time of development to maintain transportation LOS standards. 

62. Policy 5.8.4 New commercial and multifamily developments must provide roadway 

improvements as required by the future street map and the Development Guidelines and 

Public Works Standards. 

63. Policy 5.8.5 A concurrency management system should be developed. 

64. Policy 5.8.6 Alternatives for demand management should be explored. 

65. Goal 5.9 The City should minimize future maintenance costs by using technologies and 

techniques that increase pavement longevity. 

66. Policy 5.9.1 Build and operate an efficient and cost-effective transportation system. 

67. Policy 5.9.2 Design and construct improvements in a manner that likely will require the 

least amount of maintenance. 

68. Policy 5.9.3 The City should investigate relinquishing street facilities that are no longer 

needed to serve City residents. 

69. Policy 5.9.4 Create roadway pavement log of existing sidewalks and roadways to record 

deficiencies and repairs of roadways. 

70. Policy 5.9.5 The City should provide budget funding for annual roadway paving 

improvements, such as potholes. 

71. Policy 5.9.6 Obstructions blocking pedestrian walkways, such as vegetation over trails or 

sidewalks, should be maintained to eliminate barriers to pedestrians. 

72. Goal 5.10 Ensure transportation construction needs are met during and after 

construction. 

73. Policy 5.10.1 Additional rights-of-way may be required for additional roads and pedestrian 

ways, as shown on adopted plans of the City. 

74. Policy 5.10.2 Public notice of traffic impacts that will occur during construction activities 

should be provided 2 weeks in advance of the traffic impact. 

75. Policy 5.10.3 Each transportation mode’s right-of-way needs should be addressed when 

roads are constructed or upgraded with the appropriate traffic control measure as outlined by 

the Buckley City Development Guidelines and Public Works Standards and MUTCD. 

76. Policy 5.10.4 Temporary erosion and sediment control measures shall be used in 

accordance with an approved stormwater pollution prevention plan.  Final approval of the 

permit should depend on permanent stormwater detention and pollution prevention measures 

being in place. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
26



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 9 of 10 

 

F. Element 6, Parks & recreation; goals and policies. 

1. Goal 6.1 Park provision and growth. Foster Buckley’s role as a destination point by 

enhancing the town’s visibility and identity by ensuring retention of open space and 

continued development of active and passive recreational opportunities to benefit the 

citizens of the growing community of Buckley and its surrounding communities.  

2. Policy 6.1.1 The city should develop land along the White River as a waterfront trail with 

areas of park amenities to enhance and display the city’s wildlife corridors, trails, urban 

forest, and regional utilities. Signs discussing the wildlife, wetlands, soils, flora, and fauna 

should be placed for citizens to appreciate the natural world within their city. 

3. Policy 6.1.2 The city should promote a system of parks, recreational facilities and open 

space that are resource-effective and distributed throughout the city.  

4. Policy 6.1.3 The city should pursue and enhance identified undeveloped and 

underdeveloped city land for parks, recreational facilities, and/or open space, such as those 

identified under Strategy above. 

5. Policy 6.1.4 The city should encourage using the foothills trail as an education amenity to 

provide information about Northwest ecology.  

6. Goal 6.2, Park safety. The city should promote a park system that provides a sense of 

security and well-being. 

7. Policy 6.2.1 City parks and trails should be constructed in accordance with the city’s 

Development Guidelines and Public Works Standards, ADA standards, and any appropriate 

state or federal standard not addressed in city code to ensure park safety. 

8. Policy 6.2.2 The city should adopt a program and level of maintenance for the park system 

that provides a safe, effective, and attractive environment for recreational facility use and 

park spaces by ensuring that landscaping, recreational equipment and other features are 

maintained and functional. 

9. Policy 6.2.3 Security needs for the city’s parks should be reviewed with the Buckley Police 

Department and adopted in the department’s patrol program. 

10. Policy 6.2.4 The city should use low-glare, shielded lighting at its park and recreational 

facilities.  

11. Goal 6.3, Park trails and connections. Trails should link recreation areas, neighborhoods, 

schools, commercial areas, civic areas, historical areas, and other destinations and serve 

all citizens. 

12. Policy 6.3.1 The city should connect Buckley’s trails with surrounding regional trails. The 

city should promote a connected and coordinated open space system to recreation areas by 

way of trails, paths, and other travel corridors that separate vehicular and non-vehicular 

transportation where feasible. 

13. Policy 6.3.2 The city should complete the Foothills Trail for the economic and health 

benefits it will provide and provide a waterfront trail system with park amenities along the 

shoreline from Levesque Road to the city-owned property near 278
th

 Avenue. 

14. Policy 6.3.3 The city should continue to work with outside agencies to link and extend the 

foothills trail east across the White River to Enumclaw. 

15. Policy 6.3.4 Use the foothills trail, particularly between Main Street and Ryan Road, as a 

Center of Local Importance (CoLI) to provide businesses, residential uses, recreational 

activities, and public services. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
27



Comprehensive plan E-7 & E-8  Report 5/8/2019 8:06 AM Page 10 of 10 

 

16. Goal 6.4, Park environment. Parks should be designed in a way that complements and 

enhances the city’s natural environment and small-town appearance. 

17. Policy 6.4.1 The city should consider creating a wildlife or bird preservation area on some 

of the parcels wildlife currently use; and/or develop a diversified park system that preserves 

significant environmental areas and features. 

18. Policy 6.4.2 A nature center should be constructed to preserve Buckley’s unique natural and 

geographic settings and better use or protect designated wildlife corridors. 

19. Policy 6.4.3 Parks and trails should be designed to preserve or enhance mountain or river 

views. 

20. Policy 6.4.4 Stormwater conveyance systems should be created in attractive, non-geometric 

shapes in park areas.  

21. Goal 6.5, Park financing. Obtain, by negotiation or voluntary dedication, land parcels for 

open space and recreation within residential developments or obtain a proportionate share 

fee contribution from applicants or developers for purchase and/or enhancement of open 

space and recreational land. 

22. Policy 6.5.1 Pursue grants to create park sites along the river together with a system of 

waterfront trails. 

23. Policy 6.5.2 The current program of proportionate cost-sharing through a mitigation fee for 

residential developments should be updated at least every odd year.  

24. Policy 6.5.3 The city should work with groups such as the Chamber of Commerce to ensure 

trail routes and park configurations enhance the local business atmosphere. 

25. Policy 6.5.4 The city to should continue work with neighboring communities to identify and 

implement measures designed to enhance tourism, recreational development and economic 

development through exploring and sharing historic knowledge and information about our 

common heritage.  

26. Policy 6.5.5 The city should zone areas used for parks or trails to Public; particularly on the 

east side of the northeast/southwest portion of SR 410. The area between the highway and 

the Foothills Trail should be rezoned to Public and reserved for parks and open space. 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
28



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 1 of 44 

7 UTILITIES 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. PURPOSE OF THE UTILITIES ELEMENT ................................. 2 
URBAN GROWTH AREA ....................................................................... 3 
FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS .......................................... 3 

Revised Codes of Washington and Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission ........................................................................... 4 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ......................................... 4 
Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 .................................................... 4 
Northwest Power Planning Council ............................................... 4 
1991 Clean Air Amendments ...................................................... 5 

II. INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS ....................................................... 5 
INVENTORY ...................................................................................... 5 

City-Owned Utilities ................................................................. 5 
Privately- or County-Owned Utilities ............................................ 5 

III. WATER SYSTEM .............................................................................. 5 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY .......................................................................... 6 

Level of Service ...................................................................... 6 
Inventory of System ................................................................. 6 
Forecast of Future Needs............................................................ 8 

TREATMENT ..................................................................................... 9 
Level of Service ...................................................................... 9 
Inventory System ..................................................................... 9 
Forecast of Future Needs.......................................................... 10 

STORAGE ....................................................................................... 10 
Level of Service .................................................................... 10 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 11 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ......................................... 11 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ............................................. 11 
Level of Service .................................................................... 11 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 11 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ......................................... 12 

IV. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .......................... 14 
COLLECTION SYSTEM ........................................................................ 14 

Level of Service .................................................................... 14 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 15 
Proposed Location and Future Needs ........................................... 16 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
29



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 2 of 44 

AREA LIFT STATIONS ........................................................................ 17 
COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION ...................... 18 
TREATMENT SYSTEM ........................................................................ 18 

Level of Service .................................................................... 18 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 19 
Treatment System Improvements ............................................... 20 

V. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .............. 20 
TREATMENT ................................................................................... 21 

Level of Service .................................................................... 21 
COLLECTION .................................................................................. 21 

Level of Service .................................................................... 22 
System Inventory ................................................................... 22 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ......................................... 23 

VI. OTHER UTILITIES ......................................................................... 27 
NATURAL GAS UTILITY ..................................................................... 27 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES ...................................................................... 29 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES ......................................................... 30 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ................................................................ 31 

VII. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES AND CONSISTENCY WITH 
COUNTY-WIDE POLICIES .......................................................... 31 
PLAN FOR FUTURE UTILITIES .............................................................. 31 

Vision Statement and Comprehensive Plan Goals ........................... 31 
Utility Goals ........................................................................ 31 
General Utility Policies ........................................................... 32 
Water Utility Policies ............................................................. 35 
Sewer System Policies ............................................................ 36 
Storm and Surface Water Drainage Utility Policies ......................... 36 
Hazardous Waste Policies ........................................................ 37 
Solid Waste Policies ............................................................... 37 
Relationship to Growth Management Plans and Requirements ........... 38 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

I. PURPOSE OF THE UTILITIES ELEMENT 
 
This utilities element has been developed in accordance with Section 36.70A.070 of the 
Growth Management Act (GMA) to address utility services in the City of Buckley and the 
surrounding Planning Area.  The GMA requires all Comprehensive Plans to include a 
utilities element consisting of the general locations, proposed locations, and capacities of all 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
30



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 3 of 44 

existing and proposed utilities.  The utilities element represents the community’s policy plan 
for growth over the next 20 years (the year 2035 has been used for the Buckley 
Comprehensive Plan).  The utilities element describes how the goals in the other plan 
elements will be implemented through utility policies and regulations, and is an important 
element in implementing the comprehensive plan.   
 
The GMA also contains requirements pertaining to the important concept of concurrency.  
Concurrency means that jurisdictions must be able to demonstrate that all public facilities, 
including roads, can be made available for all new development at the time such 
development is constructed.  This is a sometimes overlooked, but very critical part of the 
GMA.  Plans for making those utilities available when the development is built must include 
a financing plan.  Thus, while the capital facilities, land use, and transportation elements of 
this Comprehensive Plan describe other issues relevant to meeting the concurrency 
requirements of the GMA, this utilities element represents an important part of the plans 
needed to meet the concurrency of GMA. 
 
The utilities element also has been developed in accordance with county wide planning 
policies, and has been integrated with all other planning elements to ensure consistency 
throughout the comprehensive plan.  The utilities element considers the general location, 
proposed location, and capacity of existing and proposed utilities, including water, sewer, 
surface water drainage, natural gas, electricity, and communications. 

 
The utilities element includes: 
 
• Introduction 
• Inventory and Analysis 
• Future Needs and Alternatives 
• Goals, Objectives, and Policies 

 
 

URBAN GROWTH AREA 
 
The Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundary was selected in order to ensure that urban 
services, including utilities, can be made available to all development.  This includes the 
provision of future utility facilities.  The City will incorporate plans into its comprehensive 
planning efforts in order to identify ways of improving the quality and delivery of services 
provided in the City and its designated urban growth area boundary.   
 
All development requiring urban growth services will be located in the Urban Growth Area, 
and will have these services extended to them in a timely and financially feasible manner.  
The utility plan in this element will guide decision making to achieve the community goals 
as articulated in the vision statement.   

 
FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
31



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 4 of 44 

Revised Codes of Washington and Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission 

 
Utilities and transportation are regulated in Washington by the Washington Utilities and 
Transportation Commission (WUTC).  The WUTC, composed of three members appointed 
by the governor, is empowered to regulate utilities (including, but not limited to, electrical, 
gas, irrigation, telecommunications, and water companies).  State law (WAC 480-120) 
regulates the rates and charges, services, facilities, and practices of utilities. 
 
The WUTC requires gas providers to demonstrate that existing ratepayers will not subsidize 
new customers.  Thus, historically gas main extensions have not been planned in advance 
but have been initiated only when there is sufficient customer demand. 

 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) is an independent five-member 
commission within the U.S. Department of Energy.  FERC establishes rates and charges for 
the interstate transportation and sale of natural gas, for the transmission and sale of 
electricity, and the licensing of hydroelectric power projects.  In addition, the Commission 
establishes rates or charges for the interstate transportation of oil by pipeline. 

 
Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 

 
The central theme of the National Gas Policy Act (NGPA) is encouragement of competition 
among fuels and supplies across the country.  As a result, natural gas essentially has been 
decontrolled.  The NGPA also contained incentives for developing new natural gas resources 
and a tiered pricing structure aimed at encouraging the development of nation-wide 
transmission pipelines.   
 

Northwest Power Planning Council 
 
The Northwest Power Planning Council (NWPPC) focuses on the generation of electricity; 
however, its policies have implications for gas, too.  The NWPPC has directed the region to 
develop cogeneration as an energy resource and hydro firming as a power back-up system. 
 
Cogeneration is the use of heat, as a byproduct of power generation, for industrial processes 
or for space and water heating.  Natural gas is often used as a fuel source for cogeneration. 
 
Hydro firming is the back up of the region’s intermittent excess spring hydro generation with 
gas-fired combustion turbines to provide back-up if hydroelectric power generation is below 
normal levels. 
 
These two policies could have a major impact on natural gas consumption in the northwest.  
However, natural gas for heating purposes is up to 50 percent more efficient than generating 
electricity with gas, for the same heating function.  The most efficient use of natural gas, 
interior heating and water heating, can contribute to a balanced regional energy policy.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
32



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 5 of 44 

 
1991 Clean Air Amendments 

 
The passage of the Washington State Clean Air Act in 1991 indicates the state’s intent to 
promote the diversification of fuel sources for motor vehicles.  This is in response to a need 
to both reduce atmospheric emissions and reduce the nation’s reliance on gasoline for 
strategic reasons.  It also studies the potential and encourages the development of natural gas 
vehicle refueling stations. 
 

II. INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS 
 
INVENTORY 
 
The inventory presented in this element provides information useful to planning.  The 
inventory summarizes general information pertaining to the existing utility service system in 
the City.  Many public and private agencies are involved in regulating, coordinating, 
producing, delivering, and supplying utility services.  This section of the element identifies 
those providers as well as the legislation regulating the utility.  The inventory includes: 
 

City-Owned Utilities 
 

• Water 
• Sewer 
• Surface water drainage 

 
Privately- or County-Owned Utilities 

 
• Natural Gas 
• Electrical 
• Telecommunications 
• Solid waste 

 
Water service to some areas within the urban growth boundary is provided by other 
purveyors.  These are discussed within the Water System section. 
 
Buckley owns and operates its sewage collection and treatment system, water supply system, 
and surface water drainage system.  Natural gas, electricity, telecommunications, and solid 
waste collection systems are owned and operated by private companies.  Solid waste disposal 
is managed by Pierce County, which operates the county landfill. 
 
 

III. WATER SYSTEM 
 
The City of Buckley currently maintains approximately 1,700 water service connections, 
which consist of both commercial and residential hookups.  The City charges for water 
service on a monthly basis. Monthly water rates consist of a monthly base charge plus a 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
33



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 6 of 44 

consumption rate. The monthly base charge varies by meter size and covers usage up to 200 
cubic (1,496 gallons) per month. The consumption rate applies to consumption in excess of 
200 cubic feet per month, and increases with increasing consumption. This rate structure is 
an increasing block rate structure, where successive block of consumption are charged at 
increasing rates. 
 
The 2017 water usage records indicate that a total volume of just under 200 million gallons 
was consumed by the City’s service population.  This total included both residential and 
commercial usage, the residential usage accounts for 55 percent of the total.  The estimated 
average per capita demand for the six-year period, 2012 through 2017, is 60 gallons per 
capita per day (gpcd).  This average consumption figure established does not include 
adjustments for commercial and/or public facility usage.  This exclusion inflates the average 
per capita consumption figures. 
 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY 
 

Level of Service 
 
The water system quality shall be in compliance with Washington Administrative Code (246-
290) requirements for water quality.   
 
The source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum demand rate plus that rate 
necessary to replace fire suppression storage within 72 hours. 
 
Fire flow service shall be provided to insurance services office (ISO) standards for Class 6 
fire protection facilities. 

 
Inventory of System 

 
The water utility currently receives approximately 64 percent of its supply from South Prairie 
Creek, which is located to the south and east of existing city limits.  Water is delivered from 
the Creek via a 29,200-foot transmission main to the Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant 
(WTP) and 2.3 million gallon reservoir.  The City and Rainier School jointly own the water 
transmission main from South Prairie Creek.  The City owns the Slow Sand Filter WTP and 
reservoir, while Rainier School owns the land where the WTP and reservoir are located.  The 
City and Rainier School retain separate ownership of their respective water distribution 
systems.  An agreement was signed in May 1996 between the City and the Department of 
Social and Health Services delineating the entities retention of ownership of their respective 
water rights and those facilities specific to the operation of their systems.  The City of 
Buckley and Rainier School have water rights issued by the Washington Department of 
Ecology (WDOE) for a total instantaneous right of 5.02 cfs (2,252 gpm) for municipal 
consumption purposes and 3.0 cfs (1,347 gpm) for irrigation.  The total annual water right for 
the City and Rainier School is 1,746 acre-feet for consumption and 400 acre-feet for 
irrigation.  Source production capacity is based upon the limiting factor between water right 
limits and physical water production limits, such as pumping and treatment capacities.  The 
instantaneous production capacity for the City of Buckley and Rainier School is 1,870 gpm.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
34



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 7 of 44 

On an instantaneous basis, the City’s existing water system production capacity will be 
exceeded by maximum day demands by the year 2025.  The transmission main from South 
Prairie Creek to the WTP has a capacity of between 900 and 1,000 gpm.  The WTP operated 
at a filter-loading rate of 0.085 gpm/sq ft has a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The Prairie 
Creek watershed is owned by the U.S. Forest Service, Longview Timberlands LLC, 
Muckleshoot Federal Corporation, Muckleshoot Indian Tribe, Manke Timber Co., Hancock 
Forest Management, Frank and Marina Wallace, and Edward Hudson. The City has obtained 
agreements from all of these parties restricting activities that might have adverse impacts on 
water quality, but does not prohibit use within the watershed.  The watershed area is 
relatively inaccessible except for a few unimproved roads, and the City restricts access along 
its service road to the headworks. 
 
In addition to South Prairie Creek, the City has several groundwater sources that are utilized 
to supplement South Prairie Creek or as backup sources.  The following groundwater sources 
provide approximately 36 percent of City’s water demands.  Inventories of these wells are 
provided below. 
 
Well No. 2 
 
Well No. 2 located adjacent to and east of the City limits on the east side of Levesque Road, 
north of Second Avenue.  This well has an 8-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth 
of 170 feet below ground surface (bgs).  The capacity of this well is 130 gpm.  Water from 
this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir via a 
6-inch water transmission main.  The water from this well is available to be chlorinated with 
gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 3  
 
Well No. 3 also located just east of city limits was drilled with a 6-inch casing alongside 
Well No. 2 to investigate the production capacity of an upper aquifer encountered at a depth 
of 60 feet.  This well is currently used as an observation well.  There are no plans to use this 
well as a water supply source for the City. 
 
Well No. 4 
 
In order to take advantage of the apparent high production capacity of the upper aquifer 
encountered by Well No. 3, Well No. 4 was drilled approximately 100 feet away.  This well 
has a 16-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth of 70 feet bgs.  The capacity of this 
well is 240 gpm.  Water from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or 
directly to the reservoir via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well 
is available to be chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well) 
 
The Naches Street Well, located on the west side of Naches Street (just north of Wheeler 
Street), was placed into service in 1967.  This well has a 10-inch diameter casing and is 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
35



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 8 of 44 

finished to a depth of 130 feet bgs.  The capacity of this well is 260 gpm.  The water from 
this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site, and pumped directly into the water 
distribution system. 
 
Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well 
 
This well is finished to a depth of 180 bgs.  The capacity of this well is 215 gpm.  Water 
from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir 
via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well is not available to be 
chlorinated on site. 
 
Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1) 
 
This well was drilled in 2005 as a test well to determine how much water could be available 
at the site located south of town along SR 165, near the Foothills Trail.  The well was drilled 
to a depth of 197 feet, has a 6-inch casing to 135 feet and a 6-inch telescoping, 30-slot 
screen, installed from 135 feet to 155 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 90 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2) 
 
This well is located approximately 60 feet north of Well No. 6.  The well was drilled to a 
depth of 163 feet, has a 12-inch casing extending to 125, feet and a 12-inch telescoping 100-
slot screen extending from 125 to 140 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 205 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well System Operations 
 
Water produced from Wells No. 2, 4, and the Rainier School Well can be directed through 
the slow sand filter or pumped directly into the reservoir.  These wells have their own 
chlorination system prior to entering the reservoir.  The Naches Street Well and the two Trail 
Wells also have their own chlorination systems and water from these wells is pumped 
directly into the distribution system.  Low water levels in the reservoir call the wells 
sequentially, as the reservoir level decreases.  As water level in the reservoir increases, the 
wells are deactivated in the reverse sequence.   
 
As a part of the above noted source of water, the City currently maintains an emergency 
intertie with the City of Tacoma.  The intertie includes a booster station and is located to 
along SR-410 near the Post Office.   
 
The locations of these sources are indicated in Figure W1. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
36



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 9 of 44 

Based on the above noted supply rates and the anticipated population growth rate within the 
urban growth area boundaries, maximum day demands will exceed source capacity by 2025.  
Additional source capacity will be obtained through modifications to the slow sand filter and 
development of additional groundwater sources. 
 
The City should be cognizant of the fact that future water sources may yet be required and 
that the securing of additional rights would be beneficial and consistent to their extended 
growth plans. 
 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to source water 
improvements, which will be suggested to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   
 

S-1.   Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot Study to test the effectiveness of increasing 
the loading rate. 

S-2.   Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at the Water Treatment Plant. 
S-3.   Expand Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant-construct additional filter 

bed area; expand filter building, additional inlet and under-drain piping, site 
piping and controls.  

S-4.   Hydro-Geologic Study for a New Well- complete a hydro-geologic study to 
obtain recommendations of locations that would be most likely to support 
productive wells.  

S-5.   Drill and Test New Well. 
 

TREATMENT 
 

Level of Service 
 
The treatment of potable water shall be provided to comply with the standards as set by the 
Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR). 
 

Inventory System 
 
The water system includes a slow sand filter water treatment plant to provide surface water 
treatment.  The filtration plant has an available filter surface area of 8,500 square feet.  The 
plant is currently operated at a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The water is chlorinated with 
gas chlorine after filtration and before entering the on-site storage reservoir. Chlorine contact 
time is provided in the reservoir. 
 
Water produced from Wells 2, 4, and 5 can be directed through the slow sand filter, or they 
can be pumped directly into the reservoir. Gas chlorination is available at Wells 2 and 4, but 
is used only when the wells are discharged directly to the reservoir. When water is 
discharged from the wells directly to the reservoir, the chlorination rates at Wells 2 and 4 is 
adjusted to provide the target chlorine residual in the combined flow from Wells 2, 4 and 5. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
37



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 10 of 44 

When the wells are discharged to the slow sand filter, the water is chlorinated as it leaves the 
filter system. 
 
The Naches Street Well (Well 1) has its own gas chlorination system, and water from this 
well is pumped directly into the distribution system. No chlorine contact time is required for 
this well. 
 
Water from Trail Wells 1 and 2 is treated with pyrolusite filter media to remove dissolved 
iron and manganese. The Trail Wells Treatment Facility includes five, 3-foot diameter 
vessels and has a design flowrate of 300 gpm and a design filter loading rate of 8.5 gpm/sq. 
ft. The raw well water is chlorinated with glass chlorine and sodium permanganate upstream 
of the filters. The treated water enters the distribution system 
near the intersection of Ryan Road and SR 165. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 
Future treatment needs include the following improvements at the WTP: 
 

• Increasing filter-loading rate and expand slow sand treatment plant to gain more 
filtration capacity.  Projects under the Source and Supply section will address the 
slow sand filtration capacity. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to water treatment plant 
improvements, which will be required to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   
 

TR-1.   Upgrade System Telemetry. This will allow the City to maintain more 
competitive service contracts for maintenance and repairs of its telemetry 
equipment. 

 
STORAGE 
 

Level of Service 
 
Storage capacities shall be per the Washington State Department of Health’s sizing 
guidelines and requirements as stated within the Ten State Standards.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
38



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 11 of 44 

Inventory of System 
 
The system includes two storage reservoirs.  Only one reservoir, located adjacent to the 
filtration plant is normally used.  This reservoir has a capacity of 2.3 million gallons. 

 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs 

 
Based on projected growth rates and required storage volumes, the City will exceed its 
storage capacity by the year 2029.  The City will require an additional 208,000 gallons of 
storage by the year 2029.  This assumes the City increases its source capacity to meet its 
maximum day demands (from the current 1,870 to a future 2,425 gpm in 2035).  Future 
storage needs include: 
 

• Additional storage will be required by 2029.  Approximate reservoir size is 
anticipated to be 1.0 million gallons to provide redundancy for the existing 2.3 
million gallon reservoir. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to storage improvements, 
which will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate 
water service to existing development within the UGA boundary.   

 
ST-1.   Reservoir Siting Study.  Evaluate potential reservoir locations and 

configurations. 
ST-2.   Construct 1.0 MG Reservoir. 

 
TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service 
 
This supply of water to various areas within the UGA boundary shall be completed to 
comply with the Department of Health, Ten State Standards, and County Fire Marshall 
Standards.   
 

Inventory of System 
 
The existing City water system is shown in Figure W1.  The system includes both 
transmission and distribution components.  The transmission main conveying water from 
South Prairie Creek to the slow sand filtration plant is 29,200 feet in length.  The City’s 
distribution system consists of 32 miles of pipes ranging in size from 4 to 12 inches in 
diameter.  The various pipe materials include ductile iron pipe, polyvinyl chloride pipe, cast 
iron pipe, steel pipe, and HDPE pipe.  The age of the existing system varies but a sizable 
portion of the network was installed over 50 years ago. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
39



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 12 of 44 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs 
 
To determine the future impacts that increasing development may impose upon the City’s 
existing system a hydraulic model analysis was performed.  The City’s water system was 
analyzed using MWH Soft’s H2ONet hydraulic modeling software, which operates in an 
AutoCAD computer-aided design and drafting environment.  The H2ONet model was created 
using the City’s water system basemap.  Reservoir elevations and well capacities were 
determined from existing planning documents and City records.  The H2ONet model is 
configured with a graphical user interface.  Each water system element (sources, pipes, 
control valves, and reservoir) is assigned a unique graphical representation within the model.  
Each element is assigned a number of attributes specific to its function in the actual water 
system.  Typical element attributes include spatial coordinates, elevation, water demand, pipe 
lengths and diameters, and critical water levels for reservoirs.  With attributes of each system 
element as the model input, the software produces the model output in the form of flows and 
pressures throughout the simulated water system.  The following five system demand 
scenarios were used to hydraulically model the City of Buckley water system: 
 

• 2014 Average Daily Demands:  These demands were used while calibrating the 
model. 

• 2020 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2020 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

• 2035 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2035 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to improvements, which 
will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate water 
service to existing development within the urban growth area boundary (see Figures W2 and 
W3).  The improvements, which have been noted represent additions to the existing main line 
conveyance systems and are presented to allow for the delivery of water, to the estimated 
development areas, for both potable and fire flow usage.  Additional improvements will 
undoubtedly be required within various communities as the location of growth and the type 
of developments would dictate.  The following projects are listed in order of priority under 
either, Transmission or Distribution. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
40



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 13 of 44 

Transmission 
 

T-1.  Segment 6, End of Trenchless to North Slope-replace 2,440 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 5 and Segment 7 with new 12-inch HDPE 
Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-2. Segment 8, Creek Crossing Restoration.  The City installed a cable bridge across 
South Prairie Creek in 2016 to carry a segment of the transmission main.  The 
old pipeline and concrete encasement requires removal and the disturbed banks 
along the creek require additional restoration. 

T-3.  Segment 13, Between Replacement Segments-replace 260 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 14 and Segment 16 with new 12-inch 
HDPE Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-4.   Segment 15, End of Cable Bridge to Replacement Segment-replace 1,135 LF of 
the Raw Water Transmission Main from the north end of the cable bridge to 
connect the south end of the Segment 14 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water 
Transmission Main. 

T-5. Annual Transmission Main Leak Detection-continue an annual leak detection 
program to determine if there are any additional sections of the pipeline in need 
repair. 

T-6. Segment 16, Existing Cable Bridge.  Replace 200 LF cable bridge across a creek 
gully. 

T-7. Segment 19, Along Cliff Face.  Replace 200 LF of transmission main, including 
a new cliff anchorage system. 

T-8. Segment 21, Creek Bed to Headworks.  Replace 1,000 LF of transmission main 
in the South Prairie Creek streambed near the headworks of the transmission 
main. 

 
Distribution 

 
D-1. Edith from Park to Dundass, Balm from 4th to Ewing, Ewing from Dundass to 

Balm, 3rd from Main to Masin.  Install 1,200 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-2. Heather between Whitmore and Elk Ridge Elementary School.  Install 70 LF 

of 8-inch water main. 
D-3.   Mason from A to D, B south of Mason, Rainier from Main to Mason.  Install 

1,900 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-4.   A from Park to Main.  Install 850 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-5.   Division from Ryan to Fire Station.  Install 360 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-6.   Jefferson from 3rd to Pearl, Pearl from Perkins to Ryan, Mill from Pearl to 

Jefferson.  Install 2,080 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-7.   Ryan from Spiketon Road to east side of LDS Church. -Install 2,360 LF of 

12-inch water main. 
D-8.   Fulton and 4th.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-9.  Sheets, south of Ryan.  Install 600 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-10.  Klink, south of Ryan.  Install 1,400 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-11. SR 410, west to Mundy-Loss.  Install 1,100 feet of 8-inch water main. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
41



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 14 of 44 

D-12  Hinkleman Extension from SR 410 to 112th.  Install 700 feet of 8-inch water 
main. 

D-13 Hinkleman Road from Hinkleman Extension to Mundy-Loss.  Install 2,200 
feet of 8-inch water main. 

D-14.  McNeely, north of Collins.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-15.  McNeely, south of Collins.  Install 750 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-16 River, north of Dieringer.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-17 Mason from Spruce to McNeely.  Install 2,000 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-18 Dieringer from Sorenson to McNeely.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 

 
IV. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 

 
The City of Buckley owns, operates, and maintains a sanitary collection system within City 
limits.  The City system consists of a collection system, a secondary wastewater treatment 
plant, and an outfall to the White River.  The plant is located north of Park Avenue and 
currently serves an estimated 4,300 people.  Additionally, the City receives wastewater from 
a school district lift station west of the City, which serves two existing schools of the White 
River School District.  The plant operates under NPDES WA-002336-1, which became 
effective May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended 
that permit and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the 
limitations specified in the expired permit.  Under this permit, treated effluent is discharged 
into an outfall located in a side channel of the mainstream of the White River.  The nearest 
other treatment facility is located at the Enumclaw WWTP located about 2 miles to the 
northeast of Buckley.   
 
This section of the report first addresses the conditions and needs of the sanitary collection 
system and then those for the wastewater treatment facility.   
 
COLLECTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sanitary sewer system was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, Department of Ecology, 2008, and construction standards adopted 
by the City through its municipal codes.   
 
The Level of Service (LOS) requirements for the sanitary sewer collection system include the 
capability of handling peak flow and providing adequate pipeline velocity.  Gravity lines 
must be sized and sloped to provide a minimum velocity of 2 feet per second.  Minimum 
pipeline diameter for gravity service is 8 inches with a slope of 0.004 ft/ft.  In addition, 
gravity lines must be protected with a minimum of 3 feet of cover and provided with 
manholes spaced about 400 feet apart and located at all the intersections and changes of 
grade.  New construction is required to meet standards to limit infiltration and inflow into the 
system.  These standards include precast manhole sections with gasketed seals, concrete pipe 
with rubber joints, or heavy duty PVC pipe.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
42



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 15 of 44 

The City of Buckley system currently has only two pump stations on the west end of the 
system, which serve two schools.  However, it is anticipated that as the City expands to 
provide service within its GMA boundaries, additional pumping stations will connect to the 
system.  Design criteria for pumping stations are established in detail in the Criteria for 
Sewage Works Design.  Among the requirements are ones for duplicate pumps for each 
station, each capable of handling the station’s maximum design flow.  Each station shall be 
protected against the 100-year flood and provide sufficient head to maintain a minimum 
velocity of 2 feet per second within the force main.  Minimum pipe size for sewage force 
mains shall be 4 inches.  In addition, an alarm system shall be provided for all pumping 
stations as well as provisions for auxiliary power. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The City’s existing sanitary sewer system consists of approximately 123,500 LF of gravity 
sewers, 10,600 LF of 6-inch and 4-inch force mains, and approximately 270 manholes.  The 
existing sanitary sewer system is shown in Figure S1.  The system is more or less divided 
into two parts by SR 410.  Flow on the southeast side of SR 410 is collected, transported 
under the highway at Wheeler Avenue and Park Avenue, and then conveyed by gravity to the 
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) north of Park Avenue.  A small volume of flows is 
conveyed across SR 410 immediately west of the intersection of SR 410 and SR 165.  Flows 
northeast of the highway travel north to the main trunk line on Park Avenue.  A summary of 
this collection system is shown below in Table U1.   
 

TABLE U1 Collection System Inventory 
 

Pipe Diameter Length (lineal feet) 
Gravity System 

4-inch 24,000 
6-inch 2,100 
8-inch 60,300 
10-inch 12,000 
12-inch 9,100 
14-inch 2,000 
15-inch 2,100 
18-inch 6,200 
Subtotal 117,800 

Force Main 
4- and 6-inch  7,800 

 
The collection system in Buckley was originally built in the early 1900’s as a combined 
storm and sanitary sewer system.  Over the years, extensions and sewer separations have 
occurred resulting in a total pipeline length exceeding 125,000 feet.  The older gravity sewer 
mains consist of clay pipe with mortared bell-spigot type joints.  More recent construction is 
primarily 8 and 10-inch concrete and PVC pipe with rubber joints.  However, only about 1/3 
of the system was installed with this type of construction.  The depth of the sewer mains 
typically varies from 2 to 15 feet, with 6 to 7 feet as the average depth.  Manholes in the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
43



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 16 of 44 

older portion of the system are of brick and mortar construction, while the most recently 
installed manholes are precast concrete.  Due to the age of the system, the depths of the 
conveyance mains and type of construction, infiltration and inflow (I/I) problems have 
continued to develop.  I/I problems result during storms, when water infiltrates through pipe 
imperfections such as misaligned joints and cracks in the lines, greatly increasing flows to 
the plant.  The City has replaced most of the downtown core area gravity sewers, resulting in 
significant reductions in I/I. 
 

Proposed Location and Future Needs  
 
The evaluation of the City’s collection system conducted in 2017 identified several needs to 
serve existing and future customers.  These are briefly discussed below.  In addition, 
planning under GMA has identified other future needs.   
 
As has been previously noted, the majority of the City’s original sanitary sewer conveyance 
system consisted of 50 year old clay pipe which had deteriorated considerably and was in 
need of replacement due to the volumes of infiltration/inflow presently accessing the 
conveyance network.  Furthermore, by the Department of Ecology (DOE) standards several 
of the existing sewer mains are undersized and/or sloped at less than acceptable grades. 
 
A sewer system rehabilitation program was first developed from an I/I study in 1973.  A 
second I/I analysis and a sewer system evaluation survey were conducted in 1975.  Because 
the WWTP exceeded design flows during wet weather months, a third I/I study was 
undertaken in 1992 and completed in 1994.  This report (Infiltration/Inflow Analysis and 
Engineering Report) was amended in January 1999.  The report indicated that removal of I/I 
would be more cost-effective than expansion of the treatment plant, if 45 percent of the I/I 
were removed.  Manhole rehabilitation was also identified in the 1994 plan as another project 
aimed at reducing I/I.  The amendment to the I/I analysis and Engineering Report completed 
in January 1999 looked at reducing I/I in two of the drainage basins. 
 
As a result of the 1992-94 I/I study, the city of Buckley replaced parts of its sanitary sewer 
collection system.  In 1998, the City applied for approval from the Department of Ecology to 
increase the capacity of the WWTP by approximately 330 connections, and received 
approval on condition that the City construct wastewater improvements to remove 
approximately 45 percent of the inflow and infiltration of stormwater into the City’s sewer 
system and on the condition that the City construct a digester at the treatment plant. 
 
The future improvement projects recommended by this plan are based both on the anticipated 
maximum or build-out development within the UGA boundary and the existing condition of 
the sanitary conveyance system as described in the modeling completed in 2015. 
 
The expected future sewage flow rates were developed by applying per capita flow rates and 
peaking factors to the estimated population figures as have been presented within the land 
use element section of this plan.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
44



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 17 of 44 

The 2017 Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan included a hydraulic capacity analysis of the 
existing sewer collection system using a computer software modeling program called 
InfoSewer.  The entire city was divided into eight sewer basin areas, shown in Figure S2.  
Interceptors within the eight areas were at least 10 inches in diameter or greater.  The eight 
areas include the existing service areas named as follows:  A1, A2, A4, CW, A26, B13, E2A, 
and F1.  The future service areas are named as follows:  Nanevicz, North McNeely, Central 
McNeely, South McNeely, Van Sickle, Shay/Rainier School, TAN-W, TAN-E, Elk Heights, 
EM, and SE.  Currently, approximately 1,100 acres are being served by the City’s collection 
system.  The future service area will include an additional 800 acres for a total of 
approximately 1,900 acres in the City’s collection system.  The amount of sanitary flow is 
determined by the contribution per capita and the calculated population.  The population 
density assumes the land is fully developed to the level allowed by the corresponding land 
use designation.  The future peak flow of 2.88 mgd was used in the modeling. 
 
All recommended pipe replacement projects include lowering the pipeline elevation and 
increasing the pipe’s existing slope.  These modifications will allow the system to serve 
outlying areas primarily by gravity. 
 
The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system identified from 
modeling and studies discussed above and are shown in Figure S3. 
 
Gravity Sewer Main Projects 
 

G-1.  Alley to the East of Edith Street–construct 450 LF of new 8” PVC from Park 
Avenue to Dundass Street. 

G-2.  Spiketon Road-construct 500 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to A Street. 
G-3.  Alley between Cascade Street and Edith Street-construct 450 LF of new 8” 

PVC from Dundass Avenue to Park Avenue. 
G-4.   Near 550 Balm Street- construct 200 LF of new 8” PVC. 
G-5.  Spiketon Road–construct 900 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to 649 

Spiketon Road. 
G-6. Alley between Naches Street and Second Street–construct 1,000 LF of new 8” 

PVC, from Park Avenue to Mason Avenue.  
G-7.  Sergeant Road-construct 700 LF of new 8” PVC from Whitmore Way to 

Collins Road. 
 
Trunk Sewer Main Projects 
 

T-1.  McNeely Street South, East on Mason to State School Property Line, South to 
Ryan Road to Klink Street-construct 4,800 LF of new 12” PVC. 

 
AREA LIFT STATIONS 
 
There is presently sewer service to the elementary and middle schools which are located in 
the most southerly and westerly area of the GMA boundary via a 6-inch force main along SR 
410 and a school district maintained lift station.  The existing topography of this area would 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
45



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 18 of 44 

dictate that gravity mains flow towards the most northerly and westerly area of the proposed 
development limits.  To convey flows completely by gravity from the most outlying areas to 
the treatment plant would require sewer piping installation of depths, over 25 feet.  This type 
of system is not viewed as financially feasible because of these depths and the glacial till 
underlying most of the area.  An alternative is the installation of lift stations sized to serve the 
developing population.   
 
 The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system that are remedied 
by lift stations and force main projects: 

 
Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 

L-1.  South Spiketon Road Lift Station - 500 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency 
Generator. 

F-1.  South Spiketon Road-construct 1,300 LF of new 6” Ductile Iron Force Main. 
L-2.  Hinkleman Road Lift Station – 200 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-2.  Hinkleman Road-construct 3.800 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 
L-3.  East 112th Street Lift Station – 250 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-3.  East 112th Street-construct 2,400 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main  
L-4.  West 112th Street Lift Station – 150 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-4.  West 112th Street-construct 2.300 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 

 
COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION 
 
The system improvements and/or extensions noted above do not include additional projects 
that need to be completed for the continued improvement of the older segments of the 
collection system.  The City will complete TV inspection work and disconnection of roof, 
yard, and cellar drains as previously recommended to City.  The City will also analyze and 
collect additional flow data, conduct limited system evaluation and complete spot repairs, 
perform mainline and side sewer rehabilitation of existing sewers as identified in I/I Program 
and system evaluation. 
 
TREATMENT SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service  
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sewage treatment plant was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, DOE, 2008.  Average design flows were established from an 
average demand of 108 gallons per day per capita, and the expected service population.  
Projected wastewater flows in 2035 are 1.07 mgd annual average flow and 1.60 mgd 
maximum monthly flow. 
 
In addition to hydraulic design criteria, there are also loading criteria for LOS.  Typically 
loading criteria are established for Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD5) and Total Suspended 
Solids (TSS).  For BOD, 0.2 lbs/day per capita was utilized for design loadings; for TSS, 
0.17 lbs/day per capita were utilized. Both values are consistent with Criteria of Sewage 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
46



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 19 of 44 

Design.  Historic phosphorus literature data was used to size the nutrient removal 
components to be added treatment plant. 
 
The existing sewage treatment plant is permitted NPDES WA-00-2336-1 which was issued 
May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended that permit 
and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the limitations 
specified in the expired permit.  This permit establishes reporting requirements and 
performance criteria for the discharge of treated wastewater and the quality of wastewater 
sludge.  Phosphorus limits are not included in this permit, but are anticipated in the next 
permit cycle.  The values shown below represent the limits on what the treatment plant can 
discharge to the White River under the existing permit. 
 

 
Table U-2 NPDES Permit Limits 

 
Parameter Monthly Average Weekly Average 

5-day Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand 

30 mg/L 
134 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
201 lb/day 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 30 mg/L  
114 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
171 lb/day 

Fecal Coliform Bacteria 200/100 ml 100/100 ml 
pH Shall not be outside the range of 6.5-8.5 
Total Residual Chlorine 9 ug/L 23 ug/L 
Total Ammonia (as N)  
May1 – Oct.31 

2.6 mg/L 7.43 mg/L 
62 lbs./day 

Total Ammonia (as N) 
Nov. 1 – Apr. 30 

4.5 mg/L 10.5 mg/L 

Total Copper Interim 27 ug/L 
Final 11.13 ug/L 

Interim 38.5 ug/L 
Final 16.24 ug/L 

 
A review of monthly reports for the period of 2009 to 2017 indicated that the plant did not 
fail to meet these discharge limits. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The current plant was designed to accommodate an average flow of 1.0 mgd and has a peak 
hydraulic capacity of 2.7 mgd. 
 
The system components include headworks/grit removal, two oxidation ditches, two 
clarifiers, chlorination/dechlorination, and a mechanical building housing sludge pumps and 
dewatering equipment.  The headworks of the facility consists of the influent channel, a bar 
screen, a degritter, a grinder, an adjustable flow splitter and effluent channels to the oxidation 
ditches.  From the headworks, influent enters the oxidation ditches where the main treatment 
process occurs.  Effluent is then transported to the clarifier units where solids are separated 
from liquid and either recirculated to the oxidation ditches or wasted to the sludge disposal 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
47



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 20 of 44 

system.  Effluent from the clarifiers enters the dual chlorine contact tanks prior to discharge 
into the White River via a 14-inch outfall pipe. 

 
Treatment System Improvements 

 
The City of Buckley completed major improvements to the exiting wastewater treatment, 
effluent disposal, and biosolids processing systems in 2008.  
 
The needs for these improvements are being driven by two factors.  The first is the 
implementation of phosphorous limitations for discharges to the White River.  Buckley 
currently operates a conventional secondary wastewater treatment plant.  The White River 
has been the location of the City’s treated wastewater effluent discharge.  A Total Maximum 
Daily Load (TMDL) study was performed on the White River and it was determined that 
phosphorous loadings were a threat to the health of the river.  A subsequent Waste Load 
Allocation (WLA) has determined that Buckley must reduce its phosphorous loadings to the 
river.  A conventional secondary treatment is not capable of removing phosphorous to the 
level required by the WLA, so the City proceeded with improvements necessary to remove 
phosphorous. 
 
The second factor is the need to accommodate additional growth in the Buckley Urban 
Growth Area (UGA).  The current customer base for the wastewater system consists of 
approximately 4,300 persons.  This customer base is expected to increase to 8,000 by the 
year 2035.  
 
With the substantial treatment plant upgrades completed, the City plans to make a minor 
revision to one of the plant systems and to evaluate improvements needed for reuse water to 
be distribute 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
 

TP-1.  WWTP Non-Potable Water System Upgrades 
TP-2.  WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study 

 
 

V. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 
 
The storm and surface water drainage utility is owned, operated and maintained by the City 
and provides drainage, flood control, and protection of environmentally sensitive areas such 
as wetlands, steep slopes and stream corridors.  For the most part, the original system is 
somewhat antiquated and consists of piping materials and construction methods, which were 
employed nearly 60 years ago.  The majority of this original drainage network was 
completed using clay tile piping with open joint construction.  Over time, this piping has 
deteriorated to an extremely poor condition, with several areas needing immediate 
improvements. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
48



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 21 of 44 

The City utilities department has completed some improvements to the system over the years.  
The installation of new piping systems and improvements to existing drainage channels has 
substantially increased the hydraulic performance of the existing system.  Current growth and 
expected growth will require more improvements and additions to the existing system.  The 
existing storm drainage system is shown in Figure D1. 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the City’s stormwater conveyance system is to convey the 
25-year storm event.  The City of Buckley has adopted the Ecology Stormwater Management 
Manual for Western Washington (2012), as the City’s technical manual (BMC 14.30.061).  
The City has also adopted the Low Impact Development Technical Guidance Manual for 
Puget Sound (LID Manual). 
 
Moving stormwater within the City is difficult, due to the flat topography and minimal 
natural grade within the City to convey surface water runoff.  The area, prior to development, 
was dominated by wetlands and lies within the flood plain of the White River.  Several areas 
are serviced by open ditches, which convey water into the pipe collection system or into an 
open, uninhabited area. 
 
TREATMENT 
 
As stated previously, the City has adopted Ecology’s 2012 Stormwater Management Manual, 
which describes in detail the methods and practices for mitigating stormwater runoff impacts.  
 

Level of Service 
 
The Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE) has enacted certain guidelines and 
rules for the management of stormwater.  The requirements include provisions for the 
following:  ordinances to control off-site water quality, the use of source Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), effective water quality treatment for the design storm, use of infiltration 
where possible, erosion and sediment control, the protection of wetlands and stream 
channels; operation and maintenance programs for new and existing stormwater systems; 
record keeping of drainage system facilities; adoption of Ecology's Technical Manual or 
equivalent; education programs for the general public; coordination with the Growth 
Management Act; and basin planning. 
 
The City adopted stormwater management regulations are included in Buckley Municipal 
Code Chapter 14.30.  The activities covered under this regulation include land disturbing 
activities, structural development including construction, installation or expansion of a 
building or other structure, creation of impervious surfaces, Class IV general forest practices 
that are conversions from timber land to other uses, subdivision, short subdivision and 
binding site plans and redevelopment.  
 
The level of service chosen for new conveyance facilities is to provide the conveyance 
capacity of the 100-year, 24-hour event. 

 
COLLECTION 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
49



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 22 of 44 

 
Level of Service 

 
The Pierce County ordinance requires the City to develop a Storm Drainage Plan that 
describes how all storm drainage impacts will be mitigated for any existing or future project.  
This plan is required if the project consists of or results in high housing densities, changes in 
the drainage patterns, contains wetlands or swales, filling, sensitive areas, is tributary to any 
pothole off-site, changes to the runoff coefficient, changes in erosion characteristics, or if 25 
percent of the surface area becomes impervious. 
 
This plan must include a description of the property prior to development, as it exists now, 
and how it might be modified in the future; details of the topography, basin, and soils; 
downstream drainage analysis, and calculations of the runoff rates and volumes that would 
occur for the 25-year event.  In addition, the plan must include recommendations and 
construction projects necessary to manage any runoff problems. 
 
The importance of a storm drainage plan, and of properly managing storm runoff, is 
significant step in alleviating potential future drainage issues.  By detaining, retaining, or 
allowing storm runoff to infiltrate, citizens, property and environmentally sensitive areas are 
better protected from flooding, erosion, depleted groundwater and summer base flows, and 
pollution. 
 

System Inventory 
 
The City’s storm drainage network is comprised of numerous catch basins and storm drain 
manholes, piping ranging in size from 6 to 36 inches, year and/or area draws, detention 
ponds/pipes and an extensive network of storm drainage ditches that includes culverts and 
outlet channels.  Several areas are either not currently serviced or are inadequately serviced.  
Areas slated for development or currently without service will require improvements before 
any development can continue, in order to mitigate flooding and other impacts. 
 
The City does not currently provide storm drainage for the State of Washington Rainier 
School.  The Rainier School is located along the easterly City limit and encompasses nearly 
160 acres.  The School directs a majority of its stormwater through a privately maintained 
system to an outfall in the White River, north of the City.  It is believed that the south 
campus, approximately 70 acres in area, channels storm runoff into the City’s drainage 
system located along and within the Ryan Road corridor. 
 
The collector and drainage infrastructure, as it presently exists, predominantly conveys water 
to both the north and west areas of the City to ultimately discharge into the Puget Power 
Flume and the White River Basin.  Areas to the south and east part of the City, which are less 
developed, discharge drainage flows south into the Spiketon Creek Basin area.  The City’s 
existing storm drainage system in included as Figure D1.   
 
To analyze the existing and required future storm drainage capacities, the Urban Growth 
Area was segregated into fourteen individual drainage basins.  Some of the basins were 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
50



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 23 of 44 

divided into smaller sub-basins for the purpose of analysis.  This was accomplished based on 
the present system’s configuration and outfall locations as well as the general topography of 
the Buckley Basin.  These individual drainage basins are shown in Figure D2.  Existing 
conveyance piping and stormwater outfall locations were surveyed to estimate the maximum 
available capacity at discharge points.  Previously, City standards relied on the “Yrjanainen 
and Warren” (Y&W) method of hydraulic analysis.  The Ecology Manual uses the “Unit 
Hydrograph Analysis Methods” for estimating storm run off volumes and rates as the 
preferred method for estimating runoff.  The Comprehensive Flood Hazard Management 
Plan for Buckley used the Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph Method to analyze 10, 25, 100, 
and 500- year storm events.  The analysis reflected existing conditions as well as impervious 
areas that are likely to result from the Comprehensive Plan – designated development.  The 
existing drainage conditions, outfall capacities and estimated future drainage flows were then 
reviewed to determine storm sewer improvements necessary to decrease flood potential.  
There are several basins within the City with inadequate storm drainage. The City lies in a 
relatively flat area, which makes management of drainage challenging. In addition, previous 
storm drainage detention standards either did not include detention, or included a 25-year 
Y&W detention analysis.  These standards proved to be inadequate during the 1996 and 1997 
floods.  Some of the areas needing improvements simply require larger pipes or open 
channels.  For others, increasing conveyance will move existing flooding to another location.  
In addition to these conveyance system mitigation measures, alternatives including 
construction of detention facilities and restoration of historic drainage patterns must be 
considered. 
 
The City currently experiences flooding and ponding in areas which are not provided with 
adequate storm drainage.  Some of the areas needing improvement simply require larger 
pipes or open channels, while others have no conveyance system in place.  Areas now being 
proposed for development will need upgrades to existing conveyance systems before any 
development can be completed.  Areas of large impervious surfaces will result in flooding 
and erosion leading to property damage, unless an adequate drainage system is constructed. 
 
The previously completed sanitary sewer infiltration/inflow report recommends that once 
improvements to the sanitary system have been completed and sewage flows are redirected 
into the new network, the old sanitary sewer pipe can be used to collect, convey and 
discharge storm runoff.  The stormwater improvements outlined herein have been selected 
based on the use of the existing storm sewers capacity.  Additional drainage capacity could 
be achieved by the conversion of sanitary piping, and may be completed during sanitary 
system improvement projects, not included as a part of this analysis. 
 
The City’s existing storm drain outfall locations were surveyed and reviewed to estimate 
existing basin discharge capacities.  These estimates were then compared with both the 
existing drainage flows and future estimated maximum runoff flows to determine the current 
and future levels of service.   
 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
51



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 24 of 44 

The following project descriptions and recommendations for construction projects have been 
selected based on a review of the City’s existing storm drainage conditions.  These 
improvements are targeted to remove existing storm conveyance problems within the City.  
Each of the selected projects is to be completed with systems that will adequately pass the 
runoff from the future “build-out” developments that are presently anticipated.  The 
recommended piping has been selected to comply with the City standards, which require 
commercial and high value areas to convey a 100-year storm event at maximum development 
expected to occur in each area. 
 
Each of the indicated stormwater system improvement projects indicated in Figure D3, have 
been proposed based on both future development and existing conditions.  Figure D3 
indicates capital improvements recommended for the 6-year and 20-year time frames.  The 
main trunk lines of each basin’s system have been shown and outfall locations have been 
selected to take advantage of existing topographic conditions.  Improvements to the existing 
sanitary sewer system or roadways may significantly impact the development of these 
projects. 
 
The following is a brief description of the projects involved in developing a complete storm 
drainage system, which will support the drainage requirements of the area within the UGA 
boundary.  The projects are taken from the May 2008 City of Buckley Comprehensive 
Stormwater Management Plan (CSMP) and are listed in order of priority. 
 
Stormwater Capital Improvement Projects 
 
CIP 1 – Spiketon Bridge involves the installation of a 12-foot-wide by 3-foot-tall bridge 

section at the Spiketon Road crossing. This will replace the two 24-inch concrete 
pipes at Spiketon Road and will help minimize flooding currently experienced in 
this area during a 100-year storm event. 

 
CIP 2 – Dundass Avenue is a project that was brought to the attention of City staff by a 

resident in 2006. This project includes connecting 135 linear feet of new 12-inch 
pipe between 3rd Street and 4th Street to the existing storm system. The installation 
of this pipe should alleviate the flooding seen in this area.  

 
CIP 3 – The Sheets Road Diversion project involves the diversion of flow from Spiketon 

Ditch to the ditch along the east side of Sheets Road. This ditch flows north, under 
Ryan Road, and then along the west side of the Rainier School property where it 
crosses Collins Road, and eventually discharges to the PSE Flume. In diverting 
water north along Sheets Road, flooding will be lessened on the properties 
surrounding Spiketon Ditch west of Sheets Road. This project involves the upgrade 
of existing Sheets Road driveway culverts to 36-inch pipes and the replacement of a 
36-inch pipe south of Collins Road with 1,025 linear feet of 60-inch pipe. Flow 
splitters will also be needed to direct flow north along Sheets Road, and then again 
near Ryan Road where flow will need to be disbursed between the existing 18-inch 
and 24-inch pipes in this area.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
52



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 25 of 44 

CIP 4 – The Division Street (Ryan Road Diversion) project is a temporary measure to 
implement prior to the installation of a 48-inch pipe that will connect runoff from 
Ryan Road to the existing 48-inch pipes in Hinkelman Extension. The purpose of 
the Division Street project is to divert water from Ryan Road south along Division 
Street. By doing so, the first 645 linear feet of pipe will need to be replaced with 24-
inch pipe.  In addition, 100 linear feet of ditch will need to be rehabilitated near the 
south end of Division Street. 

 
CIP 5 – The Hinkleman Road East Basin is a 58-acre basin that drains to the north via a ditch 

across private property midway between the Hinkleman Extension and Mundy Loss 
Road.  The recommended improvements in this basin include the installation of 
2,685 linear feet of 36-inch pipe on the south side of Hinkelman Road. The 
drainage should be directed east, opposite of its current flow direction, to the 48-
inch storm sewer system installed in the Hinkleman Road Extension.  

 
CIP 6 – The Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Road Extension project was noted above as the 

installation of 3,440 linear feet of 48-inch pipe. This pipe will connect the Ryan 
Road storm system to the existing 48-inch pipes at Hinkelman Extension. The pipes 
will extend west of the intersection of Ryan Road and Division Street, west toward 
112th Street East.  This project has been completed as part of the SR410/SR165 
Realignment Project.  The completed project has improved the flooding seen along 
Ryan Road and A Street and has helped restore the flow back to its natural 
discharge location.  

 
CIP 7 – The McNeely basin includes the area between McNeely Road and the WSU Dairy 

Farm property, and is bounded on the south by Collins Road and the north by the 
PSE flume. The improvements in this basin are listed as the seventh priority of the 
CIP plan. The basin is lightly developed at this time. The ditch and driveway 
culverts that run north through this basin and along McNeely Road are not 
adequately sized to convey the 100-year event. The ditch should be rehabilitated for 
354 linear feet, and 797 linear feet of pipe and culverts will need to be replaced with 
24-inch pipes.  

 
CIPs 8 and 9 – Regional Treatment and Detention Feasibility Studies to identify the 

feasibility of installation of one or more regional stormwater treatment and 
detention ponds should be prepared. These projects were ranked eighth and ninth. 
The City will need the results of the feasibility study in order to evaluate 
alternatives for system improvements. The use of regional stormwater treatment and 
detention ponds could eliminate the need for multiple treatment and detention 
facilities located on private property. Regional ponds, because of their size, may 
provide better opportunities for water quality treatment and more effective 
maintenance.  

 
CIP 10 – The Elk Meadows Ditch project involves the enhancement of an existing ditch and 

culverts west of Sheets Road along private property. According to local residents, 
this area floods from Spiketon Ditch under extreme storm events. This project 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
53



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 26 of 44 

would involve the upgrade of three driveway culverts to two 3' x 3' box culverts and 
one 3' x 5' box culvert. In addition, 1,915 linear feet of ditch would need to be 
rehabilitated to handle the anticipated flow from a 100-year storm.  

 
CIP 11 – The Spiketon Road project is a minor project that resulted from the hydraulic 

modeling done along Spiketon Road. Under the 100-year storm condition, a 242 
linear foot section of ditch was found to have insufficient capacity. Therefore, it is 
recommended that a 2' x 3' box culvert replace this ditch.  

 
CIP 12 – The Collins Road Basin includes the drainage systems along Collins Road, 

Sergeant Street, and Spruce Street.  The basin has a large number of drainage 
deficiencies and the continuing development in this basin will continue to 
exacerbate the problem. The improvements recommended in the Collins Road 
Basin include pipe and ditch replacement. Approximately 2,150 linear feet of 18-
inch pipe and 1,464 linear feet of 24-inch pipe would be installed along Collins 
Road. South of Collins Road, 1,314 linear feet of parallel 36-inch pipe would be 
installed, which would then connect to the Collins Road system which continues 
northerly. From Collins Road north, the existing pipe would be replaced with 3,290 
linear feet of 60-inch pipe where it would then discharge into the PSE Flume.  

 
CIP 13 – The Ryan Road project includes the extension of the new 48-inch pipe of the 

Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Extension project. A 36-inch pipe was placed in Ryan 
Road during 2006 that extended from the Division Street/Ryan Road intersection 
east toward Spiketon Road. According to the hydraulic model, this pipe will need to 
be supplemented with 1,659 linear feet of a parallel 36-inch pipe. In addition, this 
project includes the installation of 3,175 linear feet of 36-inch pipe and 1,018 linear 
feet of 48-inch pipe.  

 
CIP 14 – The Downtown area consists of insufficient 18-inch pipes at the downstream end of 

the system in this basin. The Downtown project consists of replacing these 18-inch 
pipes with 140 linear feet of 24-inch pipes and 850 linear feet of 36-inch pipe. 

 
CIP 15 – The North Highway 410 project incorporates the replacement of existing pipes with 

1,240 linear feet of new 36-inch pipe and 210 linear feet of 48-inch pipe at the 
downstream end of this basin.  

 
CIP 16 – The River Avenue North project is similar to the Downtown and North Highway 

410 projects in that it includes the replacement of existing pipes with 1,720 linear 
feet of 36-inch pipe at the downstream end of the stormwater system in this area. 

 
CIP 17 – The 112th Street Basin is bounded on the south by the high point in the topography 

south of 112th Street and Mundy Loss Road to the west.  The drainage problems 
here have been minor in nature, yet the hydraulic model indicated that during a 100-
year storm along the west end of 112th Street, the existing pipes and ditch need to 
be replaced with 1,541 linear feet of parallel 36-inch and 48-inch pipe.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
54



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 27 of 44 

CIPs 18 and 19 – West Highway 410A and 410B are located on the south and north sides of 
SR 410, respectively. The results of the hydrologic/hydraulic model indicated that 
the ditch should be replaced with 5,520 linear feet of 24-inch pipe on the south side 
of SR 410. It was also found that 75 linear feet of 12-inch pipe should be installed 
on the north side of SR 410 along with 85 linear feet of ditch that should be 
rehabilitated.  

 
 

VI. OTHER UTILITIES 
 

NATURAL GAS UTILITY  
 
The natural gas distribution utility is owned, operated, and maintained by the Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE).  
 
Company Overview: Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing natural gas 
and electric service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region of Western Washington 
and portions of Eastern Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square 
miles.  PSE’s regional and local natural gas and electric planning efforts are integrated and 
centered on providing safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides natural 
gas to more than 770,000 customers, throughout 6 counties, covering approximately 2,900 
square-mile area.  As of 2019, PSE provides natural gas service to approximately 1,672 
customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE natural gas utility operations and 
standards are further regulated by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), including 
the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Administration (PHMSA).  PHMSA’s Pipeline Safety 
Enforcement Program is designed to monitor and enforce compliance with pipeline safety 
regulations.  This includes confirmation that operators are meeting expectations for safe, 
reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s pipeline infrastructure. PHMSA and 
the WUTC update pipeline standards and regulations on an ongoing basis to assure the 
utmost compliance with standards to ensure public safety. The residents within the City of 
Buckley rely on the coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and 
enforcement of ordinances and/or codes to support on the  safe, reliable, and environmentally 
sound construction, operation and maintenance of PSE’s natural gas facilities. 
 
Integrated Resource Plan: In order for PSE to meet its regulatory requirements, it updates 
and files an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP 
identifies methods to provide dependable and cost effective natural gas service that address 
the needs of retail natural gas customers. Natural gas sales resource need is driven by design 
peak day demand. The current design standard ensures that supply is planned to meet firm 
loads on a 13-degree design peak day, which corresponds to a 52 Heating Degree Day 
(HDD).  Currently, PSE’s supply/capacity is approximately 970 MDth/Day at peak.  This 
figure will be updated in the fall of 2015. The IRP suggests the use of liquefied natural gas 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
55



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 28 of 44 

(LNG) for peak day supply and support the needs of emerging local maritime traffic and 
truck transport transportation markets. 
 
Natural Gas Supply: PSE controls its gas-supply costs by acquiring gas, under contract, 
from a variety of gas producers and suppliers across the western United States and Canada. 
PSE purchases 100 percent of its natural-gas supplies needed to serve its customers.  About 
half the natural gas is obtained from producers and marketers in British Columbia and 
Alberta, and the rest comes from Rocky Mountain States. All the gas PSE acquires is 
transported into PSE’s service area through large interstate pipelines owned and operated by 
Williams Northwest Pipeline. PSE buys and stores significant amounts of natural gas during 
the summer months, when wholesale gas prices and customer demand are low, and stores it 
in large underground facilities and withdraws it in winter when customer usage is highest; 
ensuring a reliable supply of gas is available. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley and adjacent communities with natural 
gas, PSE builds, operates, and maintains an extensive system consisting of transmission and 
distribution natural gas mains, odorizing stations, pressure regulation stations, heaters, 
corrosion protection systems, above ground appurtenances, and metering systems. When PSE 
takes possession of the gas from its supplier, it is distributed to customers through more than 
21,000 miles of PSE-owned natural gas mains and service lines.  
 
PSE receives natural gas transported by Williams Northwest Pipeline’s 36” and 30” high 
pressure transmission mains at pressures ranging from 500 PSIG to 960 PSIG.  The custody 
change and measurement of the natural gas occurs at locations known as Gate Stations.  PSE 
currently has 40 such locations throughout its service territory. This is also typically where 
the gas is injected with the odorant mercaptan.  Since natural gas is naturally odorless, this 
odorant is used so that leaks can be detected. The Gate Station is not only a place of custody 
transfer and measurement but is also a common location of pressure reduction through the 
use of “pressure regulators”.     Due to state requirements, the pressure is most commonly 
reduced to levels at or below 250 PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout 
PSE’s high pressure supply system in steel mains ranging in diameter of 2” to 20” until it 
reaches various other pressure reducing locations. PSE currently has 755 pressure regulating 
stations throughout its service territory. These locations consist of Limiting Stations, Heaters, 
District Regulators, and/or high pressure Meter Set Assemblies. 
 
The most common of these is the intermediate pressure District Regulator.  It is at these 
locations that pressures are reduced to the most common levels ranging from 25 PSIG to 60 
PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout  PSE’s intermediate pressure 
distribution system in mains of various materials consisting of  polyethylene and wrapped 
steel that range in diameters from 1-1/4” to 8” (and in a few cases, larger pipe). The gas 
flows through the intermediate pressure system until it reaches either a low pressure District 
Regulator or a customer’s Meter Set Assembly.  
To safeguard against excessive pressures throughout the supply and distribution systems due 
to regulator failure, over-pressure protection is installed.  This over-pressure protection will 
release gas to the atmosphere, enact secondary regulation, or completely shut off the supply 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
56



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 29 of 44 

of gas. To safeguard steel main against corrosion, PSE builds, operates, and maintains 
corrosion control mitigation systems to prevent damaged pipe as a result of corrosion. 
 
Future Projects: To meet the regional and City of Buckley natural gas demand, PSE’s 
delivery system is modified every year to address new or existing customer growth, load 
changes that require system reinforcement, rights-of-way improvements, and pipeline 
integrity issues.  The system responds differently year to year and PSE is constantly adding 
or modifying infrastructure to meet gas volume and pressures demands. At this time, there 
are no known major construction projects anticipated in the City of Buckley.  
 
Current and future system integrity work will include ongoing investigations throughout the 
city to determine the location of where gas lines have been cross bored through sewer lines 
and make subsequent repairs. 
 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES  
 
Puget Sound Energy (PSE) serves the City of Buckley. 
 
Company Overview: Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing electric and 
natural gas service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region and portions of Eastern 
Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square miles.   PSE’s regional 
and local electric and natural gas planning efforts are integrated and centered on providing 
safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides electrical power to more than 
1.1 million electric customers throughout 8 counties.  As of 2019, PSE provides electric 
service to approximately 2,000 customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE electric utility operations and 
standards are further governed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the 
National Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC), and the Western Electricity Coordinating 
Council (WECC). These respective agencies monitor, assess and enforce compliance and 
reliability standards for PSE. The residents of the City of Buckley and the region rely on the 
coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and enforcement  of ordinances 
and/or codes to protect transmission and distribution line capacity and support federal and 
state compliance of safe, reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s  electric  
facilities. Routine utility maintenance work, including vegetation management is required to 
maintain compliance with FERC, NERC, and WECC regulations.   
 
Integrated Resource Plan:   In order for PSE to meet regulatory requirements, it updates 
and files an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP) 
presents a long-term forecast of the lowest reasonable cost combination of resources 
necessary to meet the needs of PSE’s customers to provide dependable and cost effective 
service over the next 20 years. The current plan, which was filed in May of 2013, details both 
the energy supply and transmission resources needed to reliably meet customers’ wintertime, 
peak-hour electric demand over the next 20 years. The plan, which will be updated, 
forecasted that PSE would have to acquire approximately 4,900 megawatts of new power-

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
57



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 30 of 44 

supply capacity by 2033. This resource need is driven mainly by expiring purchased-power 
contracts and expected population and economic growth in the Puget Sound region.  The IRP 
suggests that roughly more than half of the utility’s long-term electric resource need can be 
met by energy efficiency and the renewal of transmission contracts. This reduces the need 
down to 2,200 MW by 2033. The rest of PSE’s gap in long-term power resources, the IRP 
stated is likely to be met most economically with added natural gas-fired resources.   
 
PSE generates approximately 46 percent of the electricity for its customers’ from its own 
generation specifically generation plants; hydro, thermal, solar and wind.  PSE currently has 
about 3,000 megawatts of power-generating capacity, and purchase the rest of its power 
supply from a variety of other utilities, independent power producers and energy marketers 
across the western United States and Canada. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley with electricity, PSE builds, operates, and 
maintains an extensive integrated electric system consisting of generating plants, 
transmission lines, substations, switching stations, sub-systems, overhead and underground 
distribution systems, attachments, appurtenances, and metering systems. 
 
Electricity provided by PSE to the City of Buckley is often produced elsewhere and is 
interconnected to the Northwest’s regional transmission grid through an extensive network of 
transmission facilities providing bulk transmission service to meet the demands of electricity 
customers within the region’s eight states. The PSE electric transmission facilities in the City 
of Buckley are important components of the electric energy delivery grid serving the Puget 
Sound region.  As electricity reaches the City of Buckley the voltage is reduced and 
redistributed through lower-voltage transmission lines, distribution substations, overhead and 
underground distribution lines, smaller transformers, and to individual meters. 
 
PSE will be prudently and systematically deploying smart grid technology at each level of 
infrastructure to enhance and automate monitoring, analysis, control and communications 
capabilities along its entire grid. Smart grid technologies can impact the electricity delivery 
chain from a power generating facility all the way to the end-use application of electrical 
energy inside a residence or place of business. The ultimate goals of smart grid are to enable 
PSE to offer more reliable and efficient energy service, and to provide customers with more 
control over their energy usage. 
 
Future Projects: To meet regional and City of Buckley electric demand, PSE is upgrading 
the existing 55 kilovolt (kV) substations and transmission lines between Electron Heights 
(vicinity of Kapowsin) and Enumclaw to 115 kV. The multi-year projects began in 2009 and 
entail converting the voltage of over 20 miles of transmission line between the Electron 
Heights and Krain Corner (Enumclaw) substations, installing roughly 1.5 miles of new 
transmission line in Enumclaw, as well as converting, upgrading or completely rebuilding 
four substations as well as constructing a new substation in Buckley and adding a fiber-optic 
line to existing transmission facilities between Buckley and Enumclaw. 
 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
58



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 31 of 44 

The City of Buckley is served by CenturyLink.  Various facilities are located throughout the 
County and the City. 
 
Many of the telecommunication facilities are co-located with those of Puget Power.  Buckley 
has digital electronic facilities available through CenturyLink, which allow call forwarding 
and a number of other features to be available to the customer.   
 
CenturyLink reacts to customer demands, since the telecommunications industry is required 
to provide service upon demand.  CenturyLink has indicated to the City that there is capacity 
for the City and its Urban Growth Area. 
 
Cellular telephone service is provided in the Buckley area by Comcast.  Cable TV is 
provided to the Buckley area by Comcast for areas surrounding the City.   
 
The provision of telecommunication services is driven by the needs of its customers.  As the 
city grows, telecommunication facilities will be upgraded to ensure adequate service levels.  
Facilities will be upgraded as technology advances. 
 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION  
 
The City contracts with D.M. Disposal Company for solid waste collection.  Collection is 
performed once a week. in the unincorporated portion of the Planning Area, solid waste is 
collected also by D.M. Disposal.   
 

VII. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES AND CONSISTENCY WITH 
COUNTY-WIDE POLICIES 
 
PLAN FOR FUTURE UTILITIES 
 
This section discusses the plan for future utilities in the City of Buckley.  The timing of 
development and provision of utility services are key components of this planning process.  
In addition to the discussion below, growth alternatives in the Land Use Element, have been 
developed to illustrate the various land uses and growth management strategies. 
 
The analysis of existing conditions and projected needs in the previous sections highlights 
the areas of concern and opportunities for the City of Buckley.  The vision statement for the 
City was used, along with the inventory and analysis contained in this element, to create a 
plan.  The plan contains a strategy for achievement of the City’s goals.  The goals and 
policies within the plan provide guidelines and steps to attain those goals. 
 

Vision Statement and Comprehensive Plan Goals 
 
These goals are essential to the quality of life in the City of Buckley and likely will remain 
unchanged for long-term planning. 

 
Utility Goals 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
59



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 32 of 44 

 
Utility Goal 1: Facilitate the development and maintenance of all utilities at 

the appropriate levels of service to accommodate growth that is 
anticipated to occur in the City of Buckley and its Urban 
Growth Area. 

 
Utility Goal 2: Facilitate the provision of utilities that are environmentally 

sensitive, safe and reliable, aesthetically compatible with the 
surrounding land uses, available at a reasonable economic cost, 
and can be provided in an efficient manner. 

 
Utility Goal 3: Process permits and approvals for utility facilities in a fair and 

timely manner and in accord with the development regulations 
which encourage predictability and consistency. 

 
 

General Utility Policies 
 
The policies specify what shall be accomplished to reach the goals.  These policies either 
provide clear guidance for decision-making when a situation arises, or provide clear 
responsibilities that will be implemented.  The accomplishments under these policies can be 
used to measure progress toward the goals. 
 
Policy U-1 
 
Public facilities and utility services necessary to support development shall be adequate to 
serve the development at the time development is available for occupancy and utility use 
shall not create a decrease in current service levels below City of Buckley standards. 
 
Policy U-2 
 
The location, type, and size of all public facilities shall be determined and/or approved by the 
City.  The extension and sizing of system components shall be based on the land use plan and 
proposed development. 
 
Policy U-3 
 
Facilities shall be designed, constructed, and maintained to reasonably minimize their impact 
on surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
Policy U-4 
 
Facilitate public utility service to unserved areas of the Urban Growth Area, including 
extensions into potential annexation areas under conditions consistent with the Growth 
Management Act. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
60



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 33 of 44 

Policy U-5 
 
Coordinate with other jurisdictions and governmental entities in the planning and 
implementation of multi-jurisdictional utility facility additions and improvements. 
 
Policy U-6 
 
Coordinate with Pierce County to ensure that public utility facilities that are to be constructed 
in potential annexation areas are designed and built in accordance with the City’s standards. 
 
Policy U-7 
 
Require notification to the City prior to a utility’s maintenance or removal of vegetation in 
City right-of-ways. 
 
Policy U-8 
 
Require the reasonable screening and/or architecturally compatible integration of all new 
site-specific, above-ground facilities. 
 
Policy U-9 
 
The City and utility company shall coordinate the acquisition, use, and enhancement of 
utility corridors for pedestrian, bicycle, and equestrian trails and for wildlife corridors and 
habitat provided such joint use is consistent with limitations as may be prescribed by prudent 
utility practice. 
 
Policy U-10 
 
Facilitate the conversion to cost-effective and environmentally sensitive alternative 
technologies and energy sources. 
 
Policy U-11 
 
Facilitate and encourage conservation of resources. 
 
Policy U-12 
 
Encourage system design practices intended to minimize the number and duration of 
interruptions to customer service. 
 
Policy U-13 
 
Encourage the utilities to solicit community input on the siting of proposed facilities prior to 
seeking City approval for facilities, which may have a significant impact on the community. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
61



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 34 of 44 

Policy U-14 
 
The City shall promote, when reasonably feasible and appropriate, co-location of new public 
and private utility distribution facilities in shared trenches/rights of way, and coordination of 
construction timing to minimize construction-related disruptions and reduce the cost of utility 
delivery. 
 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
62



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 35 of 44 

Policy U-15 
 
The City will provide timely effective notice to utilities to encourage coordination of public 
and private utility trenching activities for new construction and maintenance and repair of 
existing roads. 
 
Policy U-16 
 
The City shall encourage provision of an efficient, cost-effective, and reliable utility service 
by ensuring land will be made available for the location of utility lines, including location 
within transportation corridors. 
 
Policy U-17 
 
The City will encourage utility providers to ensure that all maintenance, repair, installation, 
and replacement activities by utilities are consistent with the City’s Critical Areas Ordinances 
(CAOs). 
 
Policy U-18 
 
The City will utilize maps of the existing and proposed utility facility corridors to determine 
consistency of such designations with the elements of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Policy U-19 
 
The City will assure that the comprehensive plan designates areas available for the location 
of utility facilities. 
 
Policy U-20 
 
Encourage additions to and improvements of facilities that provide adequate capacity for 
future planned growth. 
 

Water Utility Policies 
 
Policy W-1 
 
Provide reliable water service for domestic use, fire flow, and emergencies. 
 
Policy W-2 
 
Promote conservation and encourage development of conservation devices and programs. 
 
Policy W-3 
 
Improve the quality of the water supply to all customers. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
63



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 36 of 44 

 
Policy W-4 
 
Encourage private well water users in the planning area to access the City’s or other water 
purveyor systems, provided that the fair share of costs are paid by the benefiting parties. 
 
Policy W-5 
 
Insure a cost-effective water supply that meets City needs. 
 
Policy W-6 
 
Continue to participate in and facilitate the development of a regional water supply system 
that effectively balances regional water resources and supply needs, while protecting the 
City’s interests. 
 
Policy W-7 
 
Develop agreements with other water purveyors in the Urban Growth Area to consult with 
the City before approving additional water hookups. 
 

Sewer System Policies 
 
Policy S-1 
 
Ensure a cost-effective sewer system that meets the City’s needs and protects the 
environment. 
 
Policy S-2 
 
Continue to require sewer connections for all new developments, including single-family 
plats unless otherwise approved by the City. 
 
Policy S-3 
 
Encourage existing single-family homes with septic systems to connect to the sewer system 
where available.  If an existing septic system poses a health or environmental problem the 
homeowner shall be required to connect to the sewer system, if practicable. 
 

Storm and Surface Water Drainage Utility Policies 
 
Policy D-1 
 
Coordinate management of the stormwater system with property owners to prevent property 
damage from flooding, protect water quality, maintain recharge of aquifers, provide for the 
safety and enjoyment of citizens, and preserve and enhance habitat and sensitive areas. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
64



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 37 of 44 

 
Policy D-2 
 
Enforce surface water controls in order to protect surface and groundwater quality. 
 

Hazardous Waste Policies 
 
Policy H-1 
 
Cooperate with other private and public agencies in the region to manage and control 
hazardous waste and moderate-risk waste, including hazardous household substances. 
 
Policy H-2 
 
Educate the public in the proper handling and disposal of hazardous household waste and on 
the use of alternative products or practices that result in reducing the use and storage of 
hazardous materials in the home and businesses. 
 
Policy H-3 
 
Hazardous wastes shall be properly disposed of according to procedures and standards set by 
federal, state, or regional agencies. 
 
Policy H-4 
 
Provide for the safe and convenient disposal of hazardous household waste through a 
conveniently located collection facility or cooperation with county facilities. 
 
Policy H-5 
 
Replace, as soon as practicable, the City’s old underground fuel storage tanks with new tanks 
that reduce the potential for groundwater degradation and meets the Washington Department 
of Ecology’s standards. 
 

Solid Waste Policies 
 
Policy SW-1 
 
Promote the recycling of solid waste materials by providing opportunities for convenient 
recycling, waste reduction, and source separation. 
 
Policy SW-2 
 
Materials remaining after effective waste reduction and source separation shall be handled in 
accordance with the Tacoma-Pierce County Solid Waste Management Plan. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
65



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 38 of 44 

Policy SW-3 
 
The City shall develop recycling programs, including educational materials on recycling, 
composting, and other waste reduction methods. 
 
Policy SW-4 
 
Encourage and actively participate in a uniform regional approach to solid waste 
management. 
 
Policy SW-5 
 
Utilize the public review process in the selection and approval of any disposal facility, 
considering sensitivity to aesthetics, health effects, and environmental conditions. 
 
Policy SW-6 
 
Manage solid waste collection to minimize litter and neighborhood disruption. 
 
Policy SW-7 
 
Provide uniform collection service to areas annexed to the City as soon as can reasonably be 
arranged in accordance with service contracts. 
 
The following section describes Pierce County County-wide Planning Policies and a 
consistency analysis follows. 
 

Relationship to Growth Management Plans and Requirements 
 
Pierce County Comprehensive Plan 
 
Policy Overview 
 
The Pierce County Comprehensive Plan adopted in November 1994 and subsequent 
amendments defined an Urban Growth Area (UGA) by a boundary, which is intended to 
graphically show the separation of lands expected to be urban from those lands expected to 
be rural or devoted to mining, forestry, or agriculture.  The Growth Management Act (GMA) 
bestows the responsibility for designating these UGAs upon the County; and further, the Act 
requires that the designations be contained in the County’s Comprehensive Plan.  In the 
County’s Plan, the County designates a Comprehensive Urban Growth Area (CUGA) which 
is intended to set the limits for any further urban sprawl and encourage infilling for the 
County and the cities and towns within the CUGA.  In addition to the CUGA, the County has 
made certain UGA designations for cities and towns beyond the boundary of the CUGA.  
These satellite or stand-alone cities or towns are addressed differently than the municipalities 
within the CUGA.  The City of Buckley is designated a satellite or stand-alone city, not 
located with the CUGA but are located within the Rural Area of Pierce County.  For the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
66



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 39 of 44 

County’s 1996 amendment, designation of satellite city and town urban growth areas, a UGA 
was established at the existing jurisdictional boundary for the City of Buckley.  The 1994 
County Plan designated the City of Buckley’s UGA to include portions of unincorporated 
Pierce County beyond their existing city or jurisdictional limits.  These designations are 
based upon the jurisdictions’ commitment and apparent ability to provide urban level 
services and facilities to these areas.  Ultimately, the specific activities and land uses 
encouraged within these areas and the growth management system used will be identified 
through a joint planning process and subsequent negotiation and execution of Interlocal 
Agreements (ILAs). 
 
As stated in the County’s Comprehensive Plan, rural areas are defined as, outside the Urban 
Growth Area, but not including designated agricultural, forestry, or mining areas of long-
term commercial significance.  The context of rural areas is provided by the adjacent lands, 
such as designated forest land, and the land uses, such as designated agricultural land, that 
are interspersed within the rural areas.  Typically, rural areas have received their identity 
from a rural way of life rooted in history and resource-based industries such as commercial 
fishing, aquaculture, lumber milling, logging, dairying, daffodil or berry farming, horse 
ranching, and mining.  The Rural Center Alternative is consistent with the rural environment 
described in the County Plan.  In rural areas, the primary objectives of the County Plan are: 
 

Encourage diverse economic vitality in ways that protect the rural way of life and are 
compatible with the rural environment. 
 
Allow a range of rural densities within the carrying capacity of the natural 
environment. 
 
Allow a mix of uses that could include Rural Activity Centers, Rural Neighborhood 
Centers, and Rural Gateway Communities. 
 
Direct higher intensity mixed use development into rural centers, appropriate in 
character and scale to the rural environment. 

 
Countywide Planning Policies 
 

• Include the timing, phasing, and location of sewer interceptor expansions in the 
capital facilities element of the County Comprehensive Plan and ensure 
consistency with countywide planning policies, the Urban Growth Area 
boundaries and the Comprehensive Plan.  Coordinate phased expansions with the 
municipalities and give priority to existing urbanized unincorporated areas within 
the Urban Growth Area and to existing municipalities that do not have the ability 
to add capacity.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.1) 

 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
67



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 40 of 44 

Response 
 
Planned improvements to the City’s system include upgrading existing trunk lines with 
downstream trunk lines being replaced first.  Additionally, the City of Buckley will also 
accept wastewater from the Rainier School that is within the City limits.     
 

• Extend sewer interceptors outside of the Urban Growth Area only where:  (i) 
sewer service will remedy groundwater contamination and other health problems 
by replacing septic systems and community on-site sewage systems, or (ii) a 
formal binding agreement to service an approved planned development was made 
prior to the establishment of the Urban Growth Area.  (Urban Growth Policy 
3.4.2) 

 
Response 
 
The City has an existing policy not to allow extension of their sewer line outside of their 
incorporated area.  This is consistent with any UGA area. 
 

Ensure that sewer interceptors inside the Urban Growth Areas follow Tier phasing of 
capital facilities (1-6), (7-13), (14-20) unless:  (i) sewer service will remedy 
groundwater contamination and other health problems by replacing septic systems 
and community on-site sewage systems, or (ii) a formal binding agreement to service 
an approved planned development was made prior to the establishment of the Urban 
Growth Area.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.2) 

 
Response 
 
Existing City policy provides that where a City sewer line is extended along properties that 
have private or community septic system, all residences are required to connect to the new 
City sewer line. 
 

Prohibit availability of sewer service connections from interceptors to properties 
along the interceptor alignment where urban intensity development is not consistent 
with the Urban Growth Area boundary or tier designations and the County 
Comprehensive Plan.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.2) 

 
Response 

 
See response to UGP 3.4.1.  Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with 
necessary public services and utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing 
systems is planned as an incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

Recognize the necessity of adopting policies on the location and use of on-site and 
community sewage systems to protect the public health and safety of the citizens of 
Pierce County and to preserve and protect environmental quality and to protect 
aquifer recharge areas.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.3) 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
68



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 41 of 44 

 
Response 
 
On-site and community septic systems are not proposed in the City of Buckley 
Comprehensive Plan.  If the City sewer line is extended adjacent to residences with septic 
systems, City policy requires that a new sewer connection be provided. 
 

Prohibit the use of availability or potential for availability of sewer treatment plant 
capacity as justification for expansion of the sewer system or development in a 
manner inconsistent with the County-Wide Planning Policy, Urban Growth Area 
boundaries and the County Comprehensive Plan.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.4) 

 
Response 
 
Any planned expansion of the City of Buckley sewer system would need to be included in an 
updated Comprehensive Plan.  See also response to UGP 3.4.1. 
 

Integrate land use and transportation planning with health and human services 
planning to promote service delivery at affordable costs. (R-5) 

 
Response 
 
All City roadways would need to meet applicable roadway standards for safe movement and 
access of emergency vehicles. 
 

• Coordinate planning efforts among jurisdictions, agencies and federally 
recognized tribes where there are common borders or related regional issues to 
facilitate a common vision, consistency and effective implementation of planning 
goals.  (RI-1) 

 
Response 
 
The City of Buckley plan policies were developed through a cooperative effort with Pierce 
County when developing the Pierce County Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Protect significant regional open space, resource lands and critical areas through 
inter-jurisdictional planning by the identification, designation, preservation and 
enhancement of these lands, including linkages and networks.  (RO-3) 

 
Response 
 
The Land Use Element Policies allow for and encourage clustering concepts that provide 
open space areas to accomplish retention of open space for passive recreation, use 
compatibility, habitat conservation corridors, and the protection and preservation of 
environmentally sensitive areas. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
69



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 42 of 44 

Frame and separate central places and urban growth areas by creating and preserving 
a network of permanent urban and rural open space, including parks, recreation areas, 
critical areas, and resource lands. (RO-4) 

 
Response 
 
Clustering concepts will better retain open space, habitat corridors, and environmentally 
sensitive areas. 
 

The designated Urban Growth Area must be of sufficient size to accommodate only 
the urban growth projected to occur over the succeeding 20-year planning period.  
(Urban Growth Policy 2.1.1) 

 
Response 
 
The growth plan for the Urban Growth Area for the City of Buckley will be of sufficient size 
to accommodate anticipated growth in the next 20-year time frame.  The Land Use Element 
policies state that these growth boundaries will be reviewed periodically based on an updated 
20-year population projection. 
 

Consider any of the following in determining the location of urban growth area 
boundaries:  geographic, topographic, and manmade features; public facility and 
service availability, limits and extensions; jurisdictional boundaries including special 
improvement districts; location of designated natural resource lands and critical areas; 
avoidance of unserviceable islands of County land surrounded by other jurisdictional 
entities; or Vision 2020 urban/rural line and PSAPCA burn ban line.  (Urban Growth 
Policy 2.2) 

 
Response 
 
Clustering concepts will better retain open space, habitat corridors, and environmentally 
sensitive areas.  Determination of the UGA used several criteria to determine a logical 
extension of existing City boundaries including citizen preferences, logical topographic 
boundaries, containment of urbanized growth areas, and compatible uses with adjacent 
resource and critical areas. 
 

Designate tiers within the designated Urban Growth Area to discourage urban sprawl 
and leapfrog development and encourage adequate public facilities and services 
concurrent with development.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.3.1) 

 
Response 
 
See response to UGP 3.4.1.  Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with 
necessary public services and utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing 
systems is planned as an incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
70



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 43 of 44 

Adopt a process as well as standards and criteria by which a shift of land from one 
tier to another would take place.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.3.2) 

 
Response 
 
See relevant Land Use Element policies and policies relating to on-site transfer of density 
from environmentally sensitive areas. 
 

Relate the primary growth area (Tier 1) to the County’s 6-year capital facilities plan; 
ensure that urban growth in the primary urban growth area is sensitive to 
compatibility and fit with the type and density of existing development.  (Urban 
Growth Policy 2.3.3) 
 
Relate the secondary, (years 7-13) and tertiary (years 14-20) growth areas to the long-
range planning, capital improvement and service provision horizon.  (Urban Growth 
Policy 2.3.4) 
 
In the secondary and tertiary (if applicable) growth area, make various techniques 
available to property owners to ensure a reasonable use within a reasonable period of 
time.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.3.5) 
 
Condition approval of new fully contained communities within the current tier or 
subsequent tiers on inclusion of a phasing plan to ensure that the various segments of 
the development are timely served by adequate public facilities and services.  (Urban 
Growth Policy 2.3.6) 

 
Response 
 
Tier 1 (primary) growth is addressed under the City’s 6-year capital facilities plan.  
Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with necessary public services and 
utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing systems is planned as an 
incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

Allow extension of the Urban Growth Area to accommodate build-out of newly 
developed areas only if development capacity within municipal urban growth 
boundaries and growth in the areas identified in Policy 2.5 above is determined to be 
inadequate to meet total population and employment projections consistent with the 
other County-Wide Planning Policies.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.6) 

 
Response 
 
The Land Use Element policies state that these growth boundaries will be reviewed 
periodically based on an updated 20-year population projection. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
71



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 44 of 44 

Adopt measures to ensure that growth and development within the Urban Growth 
Area is timed and phased consistent with the provision of adequate public facilities 
and services.  (Urban Growth Policy 3) 

 
Response 
 
See response to UGP 3.4.1.  Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with 
necessary public services and utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing 
systems is planned as an incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

Adopt plans and implementation measures to ensure that sprawl and leapfrog 
development are discouraged.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.6) 

 
Response 
 
The Land Use Element contains policies which reduce sprawl and leapfrog development 
including using the urban growth area as a focus for designation of residential densities to 
avoid sprawl and provide for logical services and planning for public facilities and utilities.  
The designated UGA would meet the following criteria including:  containing areas 
characterized by urban growth; areas to be served or planned to be served by municipal 
facilities and services; uses would be compatible with the use of designated resource lands 
and critical areas following logical boundaries. 
 

Use joint municipal-County planning for designated Urban Growth Areas of 
municipalities, outside of municipal corporate limits.  Joint jurisdictional planning 
shall occur in those other areas where the respective jurisdictions agree such joint 
planning would be beneficial.  (Urban Growth Policy 4) 

 
Response 
 
The City of Buckley plan policies were developed through a cooperative effort with Pierce 
County.  The City has joined other cities in Pierce County through the Pierce County 
Regional Council (PCRC) to negotiate an interlocal planning agreement. 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
72



U
til

ity
 e

le
m

en
t, 

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
73



U
til

ity
 E

le
m

en
t, 

Se
w

er
 S

ys
te

m

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
74



U
til

ity
 E

le
m

en
t, 

Se
w

er
 B

as
in

s

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
75



U
til

ity
 E

le
m

en
t, 

St
or

m
 L

ay
ou

t

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
76



U
til

ity
 E

le
m

en
t, 

St
or

m
 B

as
in

s

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
77



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
78



C
ap

ita
l F

ac
ili

tie
s E

le
m

en
t, 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
C

IP

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
79



C
ap

ita
l F

ac
ili

tie
s E

le
m

en
t, 

W
at

er
 T

ra
ns

m
is

si
on

 M
ai

n 
C

IP

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
80



C
ap

ita
l F

ac
ili

ty
 E

le
m

en
t, 

Se
w

er
 C

IP

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
81



C
ap

ita
l F

ac
ili

tie
s E

le
m

en
t, 

St
or

m
 C

IP

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
82



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 1 of 72 

8 Capital Facilities  
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................. 5 
Purpose of the Capital Facilities Element ................................................. 5 
Urban Growth Area ........................................................................... 6 

II. MUNICIPAL FACILITIES ............................................................................... 6 
EXISTING FACILITIES ...................................................................................... 6 

City Hall Building ............................................................................. 6 
Multi-Purpose Center ......................................................................... 6 
Public Works Facilities ....................................................................... 7 
Youth Center 7 
Fire Station 7 
Police Station 7 

III. 2018 MUNICIPAL FACILITY EVALUATION ............................................. 8 
Table CF-1 6- and 20-year needs ....................................................... 9 

BUILDING EVALUATIONS.................................................................................. 9 
City Hall Building ............................................................................. 9 
Multi-Purpose Center ....................................................................... 11 
Building/Planning ........................................................................... 11 
Municipal Court ............................................................................. 11 
Senior Center 12 
Council/Court Room ........................................................................ 12 
Youth Center 12 
Public Works Facilities ..................................................................... 12 
Police Department Services ............................................................... 14 
Future Demand .............................................................................. 14 
Buckley Police Department Future Needs .............................................. 15 
Table CF-2 Projected Additions to Police Department Staff .................... 15 
Table CF-3 Police Department needs ................................................ 15 
Fire & EMS Services ....................................................................... 16 
Chart CF-2, Population & Call Volume History ....................................... 18 
Forecast Projected Needs .................................................................. 18 
Facilities 18 
Table CF-4 Fire Department Apparatus/Equipment .............................. 19 
Table CF-5 Fire Department Personnel .............................................. 19 
Level-of-Service Standards ................................................................ 19 
Fire Services 20 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
83



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 2 of 72 

Parks 20 
Potable Water 20 
Sanitary Sewer ................................................................................ 20 
Storm and Surface Water Drainage ....................................................... 21 
Transportation: ............................................................................... 21 

IV. WATER SYSTEM ............................................................................................ 21 
INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................... 21 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY .................................................................................... 21 

Level of Service .............................................................................. 21 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 21 
Forecast of Future Needs ................................................................... 24 

TREATMENT ............................................................................................... 25 
Level of Service .............................................................................. 25 
Inventory System ............................................................................. 25 
Forecast of Future Needs ................................................................... 25 

STORAGE .................................................................................................. 26 
Level of Service .............................................................................. 26 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 26 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ................................................... 26 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ........................................................ 26 
Level of Service .............................................................................. 26 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 27 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ................................................... 27 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN ......................................................................... 29 
Source and Supply Projects ................................................................ 29 
Table CF-6 Source and Supply Water Projects ..................................... 29 
Water Treatment Projects ................................................................... 29 
Table CF-7 Treatment System Improvements ...................................... 30 
Water Storage Projects ...................................................................... 30 
Table CF-8 Storage Projects ............................................................ 30 
Transmission Main Projects ................................................................ 30 
Table CF-9 Transmission Main Projects ............................................. 30 
Distribution Main Projects ................................................................. 30 
Table CF-10 Distribution Main Projects ............................................... 31 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 31 
Table CF-11 Monthly Water System Rates – Base Charge for 200 cubic feet . 31 

V. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .......................................... 33 
COLLECTION SYSTEM ................................................................................... 34 

Level of Service-+ ........................................................................... 34 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 34 
Table CF-12 Collection System Inventory ............................................ 34 
Proposed Location and Future Needs .................................................... 35 

AREA LIFT STATIONS .................................................................................... 37 
COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION .................................. 38 
TREATMENT SYSTEM .................................................................................... 38 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
84



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 3 of 72 

Level of Service ............................................................................. 38 
Table CF-13 NPDES Permit Limits ................................................... 38 
Inventory of System ........................................................................ 39 
Treatment System Improvements ........................................................ 39 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN .......................................................................... 40 
Collection System ........................................................................... 40 
Table CF-14 Gravity Sewer and Trunk Sewer Projects ............................ 40 
Lift Station and Force Main Projects .................................................... 40 
Table CF-15 Lift Station and Force Main Projects .................................. 40 
Treatment Plant Improvements ........................................................... 41 
Table CF-16 Treatment Plant Improvements ........................................ 41 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 41 
VI. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .............................. 44 

TREATMENT ............................................................................................... 44 
Level of Service ............................................................................. 44 

COLLECTION .............................................................................................. 45 
Level of Service ............................................................................. 45 
System Inventory ............................................................................ 45 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs .................................................. 48 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN .......................................................................... 51 
Stormwater System ......................................................................... 51 
Table CF-17 Stormwater Projects ...................................................... 51 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 51 
VII. OTHER UTILITIES ........................................................................................ 53 

NATURAL GAS UTILITY ................................................................................. 53 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES .................................................................................. 55 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES ...................................................................... 56 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ............................................................................ 57 
TRANSPORTATION ........................................................................................ 57 

Table CF-18 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan ............................ 57 
PARKS AND RECREATION ............................................................................... 58 

Level of Service ............................................................................. 58 
Table CF-19 Parks & Recreation LOS Standards ................................... 58 
Inventory of System ........................................................................ 59 
Table CF-20 Existing Inventory of Facilities ........................................ 59 
Facility Needs 60 
Table CF-21 Parks and Recreation Facility Needs .................................. 60 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN .......................................................................... 61 
Parks and Recreation ....................................................................... 61 
Table CF-22 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Schedule ............... 61 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 61 
Table CF-23 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Funding Sources ..... 62 

MUNICIPAL FACILITIES .................................................................................. 62 
Table CF-24 Public Facilities Projects ................................................ 63 

FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES .......................................................................... 63 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
85



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 4 of 72 

POLICE PROTECTION ..................................................................................... 63 
Police Facilities ............................................................................... 64 

VIII. GENERAL CITY FINANCE .......................................................................... 64 
Table CF-25 Distribution of City Revenues Available for Current Expenses .. 64 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL FUNDING ...................................................................... 65 
Table CF-26 Intergovernmental Assistance for the Years 2012 to 2014 ........ 66 

CAPITAL FUNDS .......................................................................................... 67 
Table CF-27 City of Buckley Capital Funds Sources for the Years 2012 to 201467 
Table CF-28 Current 2018 Balance in the Major Capital Improvement Enterprise 
Funds 67 

CITY-OWNED UTILITIES ................................................................................ 68 
Table CF-29 City-Owned Utilities – Water, Sewer, Storm Revenue Generated68 

POTENTIAL SOURCES OF ADDITIONAL REVENUES/FUNDING CAPACITY ........................ 69 
Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) ........................................................... 69 
B&O Tax on General Business ............................................................ 69 
B&O Tax on Utilities ........................................................................ 69 
Table CF-30 Current Utility and B&O Rates ......................................... 69 
Formation of Local Improvement District (LID) ....................................... 70 
Transportation Benefit Districts ........................................................... 70 
Transportation Improvement Board ...................................................... 71 

PLAN OF FINANCE, CAPITAL FACILITIES FINANCE STRATEGY .................................... 71 
Expanded Revenue Base .................................................................... 71 
New Revenue Sources ...................................................................... 72 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
86



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 5 of 72 

 Capital Facilities Element 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

Purpose of the Capital Facilities Element 
 
This Capital Facilities Element has been prepared in accordance with Section 36.70A.070 of 
the Growth Management Act (GMA) to address the need for and the financing of capital 
facilities in the City of Buckley and its Urban Growth Area.  The GMA requires all 
Comprehensive Plans to include a Capital Facilities Element, which analyzes the need for 
future capital improvements to support the development goals stated in the Land Use 
Element, as well as the funding mechanisms available for implementation. 
 
The GMA requires cities to have a plan in place to ensure that capital facilities are developed 
concurrently with future development and the needs of the local population.  This 
Comprehensive Planning effort is a required step of the process to assure the City of Buckley 
is fully compliant with GMA goals. 
 
Toward this end, the Capital Facilities Element includes the following sections. 

 
• Inventory of existing capital facilities, showing location and capacities of all 

facilities 
 
• Forecast of future needs (for the next 6 years minimum) 

 
• The proposed locations and capacities of expanded or new capital facilities 

 
• At least a 6-year plan that will finance such facilities within projected funding 

capacities and identifies sources of public money for such purposes 
 

• Coordinate land use element, capital facilities element, and element plan 
 

The GMA also contains requirements pertaining to the concept of concurrency.  Concurrency 
means that jurisdictions must be able to demonstrate that all utilities, including roads, can be 
made available for all new development at the time such development is constructed.  Plans 
for making those utilities available when the development is built must include a financing 
plan.  Thus, this Capital Facilities Element represents an important part of the plans needed 
to meet those requirements. 
 
The Capital Facilities Element also has been developed in accordance with county wide 
planning policies, and has been integrated with all other planning elements to ensure 
consistency throughout the Comprehensive Plan.  The Capital Facilities Element considers 
the general location, proposed location, and capacity of existing and proposed utilities, 
including water, sewer, surface water drainage, natural gas, and other municipal services and 
facilities, such as fire and police protection services. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
87



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 6 of 72 

Urban Growth Area 
 
The Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundary was selected in order to ensure that urban services, 
including utilities, can be provided to the residents of each development at an acceptable 
level of service.  This includes the provision of utility and other capital facilities.  The UGA 
is depicted in Figure 1 of the Land Use Element, and on the utility maps in the Utilities 
Element. 
 
All development requiring urban services will be located in the UGA, and will have these 
services extended in a timely feasible manner.  For that portion of the UGA which is 
currently located outside City boundaries, annexation would need to occur prior to extension 
of most City services, with the exception of areas where existing service agreements may 
apply, or where services may be extended for public health and safety reasons. 
 

II. MUNICIPAL FACILITIES 
 
Existing Facilities  
 
City functions and operations are conducted from six (6) different facilities, with the 
exception of the Wastewater Treatment Plant, which is headquartered at 600 Hatch Street. 
These include City Hall at 933 Main Street, Multi-Purpose Center at 811 Main Street, Public 
Works Office Building at 250 S. River Avenue, Youth Center at 251 S. River Avenue, Fire 
Station at 611 S. Division and Police Station at 146 Cedar Street. In addition the City also 
has the Museum Building at 130 North River Avenue, Community Center (Buckley Hall) at 
127 N River Avenue, Buckley Cemetery Office at 600 Cemetery Rd, PW Garage/Shop at 
243 Pearl Street and three (3) storage outbuildings.  
 

City Hall Building  
 
The City Hall building is a 1,917 square foot one-story facility constructed in 1903 located at 
933 Main Street. City administration and finance operations were relocated to this building in 
1992. At that time the City had new windows installed and new carpeting installed 
throughout. Since that time there have been no other improvements, except for a new HVAC 
system which was installed in 2008.   
 

Multi-Purpose Center 
 
The Multi-Purpose is a 6,350 square foot one-story brick building constructed in 1979. This 
facility is used for multiple operations including Building/Planning Departments, Municipal 
Court, Senior Center and Council Chambers. The structure was constructed with grant 
funding for City purposes so no other activities have utilized this building except for those 
identified. Since construction there have been no major improvements, except for a new 
HVAC system which was installed in 2008.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
88



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 7 of 72 

Public Works Facilities  
 
The Public Works Office/Shop Facility consists of multiple structures located at 250 S. River 
Avenue and 243 Pearl Street. The primary Public Works Office Building is a newly 
renovated 1,560 square foot one-story wood frame building that functions as the operations 
center for the City Public Works and Utility Department. This building was totally renovated 
in 2017 and has no current needs. The second building is a 4,500 square foot Shop/Garage 
that has been converted at one end into small offices, with open storage bays in the middle 
and a mechanic shop in the opposite end. This building is an older one and one-half story 
wood frame building constructed in 1925. The building has been added onto a number of 
times with the most recent improvement added in 2008 when the west end was converted and 
improved into office space for the PW staff. In addition the Public Works Facility site 
contains one (1) storage outbuilding. 
 
Public Works Facilities also includes the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant located at 600 
Hatch Street.  
 

Youth Center 
 
The Youth Activities Center is a 2,730 square foot one-story wood frame building located at 
251 S. River Avenue. The Center was constructed in 2008 funded in part by a grant from 
HUD.  The Center is a drop-in center; open to teens ages 8-18 from the White River area. It 
provides a safe and fun environment for teens to hang out. It has everything from video 
games to a pool , guitar lessons, tutoring and much more. It also provides occasional classes 
and activities (e.g. dances, camp, plays, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and arts and crafts). It 
is a non-profit center that is funded through the City of Buckley, government grants, and 
donations from various community groups. Since construction there have been no major 
improvements made to the building. 
 

Fire Station 
 
The City Fire Station is a 21,120 square foot building constructed in 2011 located at 611 S. 
Division Street. The Station construction was completed early in 2012 and began conducting 
Fire & EMS operations from there shortly after. No additional improvements were made 
since construction. 
 

Police Station  
 
The City purchased the building at 146 Cedar Street that is currently used for the Police 
Station in 2010 from the White River School District. In 2011 the Police Department moved 
operations from 133 S Cedar St to 146 S Cedar St. purchasing the building and closed the jail 
and dispatch center, contracting those services with other agencies.  Over the past seven 
years the building that was purchased was painted and remodeled inside to include; new 
Patrol office space, carpet, kitchen, lobby, BAC Room and new sign mounted on the building 
front indicating the Buckley Police Dept.  In 2018 a garage was built on the property for 
storage and maintenance of equipment and records.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
89



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 8 of 72 

III. 2018 MUNICIPAL FACILITY EVALUATION  
 
In 2018, an evaluation was conducted with three primary goals; 1) conduct a space needs 
assessment for all City functions for the present, as well as projections for space needs at six 
years and 20 years; 2) evaluate existing structures for present and future use in light of the 
results of the space needs assessment; and 3) develop a long-range plan for the Municipal 
Facilities in light of both the space needs assessment and the building evaluations. Each 
aspect of the Municipal Facility Evaluation will be discussed below.  
 
Space Needs Assessment  
The Space Needs Assessment was based primarily on information provided by department 
directors and other key personnel. A series of discussions with City staff, as well as with the 
Mayor and the City Administrator formed the basis of both present and future space needs. 
Department directors were asked to provide information on their current staffing levels along 
with an estimate of future staff needs at 6-year and 20-year intervals. These estimates were 
based on estimates of the growth of the City while assuming existing service levels will 
continue into the future.  
 
Each staff position was then allocated an amount of space based primarily on the space needs 
of that particular position. The criteria used to determine this was based on the following list: 
 
Employees Requiring Offices: 
 

• Mayor (400 square feet) 
• Administrator (200 square feet) 
• Directors/Managers (150 square feet) 

 
• Employees Requiring Cubicles: 

 
• Engineers/Planners (175 square feet) 
• Accountants (150 square feet) 
• Clerical (125 square feet) 
• I.T. (125 square feet) 
• *General (125 square feet) 

 
• Employees in an Open Area: 

 
• Data entry (125 square feet) 
• Clerks (125 square feet) 
• Temps (100 square feet) 

 
• Permanent Rooms and Spaces:  

 
• File room (100 square feet) 
• Storage room or library (100 square feet) 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
90

https://www.thebalancesmb.com/bookkeeper-accountant-cpa-what-is-the-difference-398569


Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 9 of 72 

• Work room (75 square feet) 
• Reception area (75 square feet plus 10 square feet per person waiting) 
• Lunch or break room (75 square feet plus 25 square feet per person seated) 
• Conference room (50 square feet plus 25 square feet per person seated 
• Restrooms (75 square feet each/gender) 

 
*Note: For calculation purposes “General” refers to position categories where a work station 
is provided, but not a normal full-time function of the position: for example utility workers, 
police officers, etc. 
 
The need for space in square feet identified through this process is summarized in the   CF-1 
below.  
 

Table CF-1 6- and 20-year needs 
 

Six- and Twenty-Year Space Needs 
Facility Existing 6-year 20-year 

City Hall 1,917 2,210 2,830 
Multi-Purpose Center 6,350   

Building/Planning 1,005 1,150 1,275 
Court Offices 528 615 740 

Senior 2,100 2,225 2,225 
Council/Court 2,100 2,100 2,100 

Public Works Facilities    
PW Office 1,560 1,560 1,560 

PW Shop/Garage 4,500 5,000 5,000 
PW Storage 800 4,700 4,700 

WWTP N/A N/A N/A 
Youth Center 2,688 2,688 2,688 
Fire Station 21,120 21,120 20,373 

Police Station    
 
 
Building Evaluations  
 

City Hall Building  
 
The evaluation of the City Hall Building revealed a number of serious problems. The existing 
building was constructed 115 years ago and has had only minor improvements throughout its 
long history including but not limited to metal roofing, new siding, carpeting, windows, 
electrical wiring and HVAC. 
 
The HVAC system was replaced in 2008; however, the duct system was only partially 
replaced and needs further improvement. Due to the age of the building exterior wall 
insulation is inadequate which makes it very expensive to heat and cool. The windows were 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
91



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 10 of 72 

replaced when City operations moved into the building in 1992, but they were industry 
standard at that time and are all single-pane, which adds to the difficulty in heating and 
cooling.    
 
The existing telecommunication hubs are located in the rear mechanical room where there is 
minimal insulation and a multitude of other equipment. This is an extremely harsh 
environment for this type of equipment.  
 
The existing electrical system within the City Hall was upgraded at some point in the past 
with 200 amp service and is in serviceable condition, but due to original exterior wall 
construction with lathe and plaster interior wall covering its difficult to ascertain whether or 
not all of the old wires have been replaced. The existing branch circuiting in the City Hall is 
inadequate, both in number of available circuits and in number of available receptacle 
outlets.  
 
The existing roof is pitched rafter with metal covering that was installed over preexisting 
composition 25-30 years ago. Although these are no apparent leaks it is beginning to show its 
age and will need to be replaced within the next 10 years. 

 
The building currently serves the administration, finance and clerical staff consisting of the 
Mayor, City Administrator, Finance Director, City Clerk, Finance Assistant and 
Administrative Assistant. In addition the building contains a small kitchen, conference area, 
single restroom, mechanical room, waiting area and file storage area.  

 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, City Hall has already exceeded capacity 
by 293 square feet. In addition we know that within the next 6- to 10-year timeframe the 
existing building will need: 
 
• Roof replacement – ($40K est) 
• Window replacement – ($30K est) 
• Carpet replacement – ($20K est) 
• Kitchen remodel – ($40K est) 
• Restroom remodel – ($25K est) 
 
Based on the initial assessment staff has identified that to resolve current and short-term 6-
year needs City Hall needs to be expanded by 293 square feet. In order to accommodate the 
20-year planning horizon an additional 175 square feet expansion needs to occur. The City 
Hall building is a square 42 feet by 57 feet structure that is placed approximately center on 
the 0.33 acre lot with room on either the east or west side for expansion. However, the needs 
for the building and layout of the floor area are more conducive to partial addition on the 
southern half of the building with a 15’ by 30’  expansion onto the east side for additional 
office space and a 23’ by 30’ expansion on the west side to expand the kitchen, mechanical 
room and add a 2nd restroom. Completion of this alternative would result in an expansion of 
1,140 square feet at an estimated cost of $230 per square foot for a total cost of $262,200. 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
92



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 11 of 72 

The 6-year planning period identifies a need of 293 square feet with another 175 square feet 
for the 20-year period. Since expansion and remodeling of the existing building would 
capture 1,140 square feet of space meeting both the 6-year and 20-year planning horizon, the 
$262,200 cost will be used for the 6-year planning projection.  
 

Multi-Purpose Center  
 
The Multi-Purpose identified under existing buildings serves for multiple operations 
including building/planning, court, senior services and council chambers. Because of the 
varied uses and needs we’ll discuss and evaluate the overall building’s condition and 
structural needs and evaluate and breakdown needs within each department/section area. 
The building is a 6,350 square foot, one-story brick building constructed in 1979. It is slab on 
grade with brick walls and minimal insulation. Existing windows are single pane with air 
gaps along the perimeter of some of the windows. Although the HVAC system was replaced 
in 2008 through a DOE Energy Grant it is still highly inefficient because of the lack of 
insulation and type of construction. The roof is a flat roof that has not been replaced since 
construction.  
 
Short term maintenance of the building will require at a minimum the following: 
 
• Roof replacement – ($125K est) 
• Window replacement – ($40K est) 
• Carpet replacement – ($30K est) 
• Foyer tile replacement – ($12K est) 
• Façade sealing – ($15K est) 
• Main entry door(s) replacement – ($20K) 
 

Building/Planning  
 
currently operates out of the NW corner of the building in an area approximately 1,005 
square feet. This area includes the main reception area with customer counter, a planning 
office, building office, lunch room, one restroom and a storage closet. The single restroom 
and kitchen/storage closet serves both the building/planning staff and the court staff because 
of their location between areas. 
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the Building/Planning Office currently 
needs 1,150 square feet and has therefore exceeded capacity by 145 square feet. Based on the 
initial assessment staff has identified that to resolve current and near term (six years) needs 
an additional 145 square feet must be added resulting in a total need of 145 square feet. 
 

Municipal Court  
 
the court administration office operates out of the SW corner of the building in an area 
approximately 528 square feet. This area includes a reception area with shared copy machine 
and 3 offices. The court staff shares the restroom and kitchen/storage closet with the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
93



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 12 of 72 

building/planning staff. Court is held in the Council Chambers that often experiences over 
capacity depending upon the size of the court docket for that day. 
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the Municipal Court Admin. Office 
currently needs 615 square feet and has therefore exceeded capacity by 87 square feet. Based 
on the initial assessment staff has identified that to resolve current and a near term (6-year 
plan) needs an additional 87 square feet must be added resulting in a total need of 87 square 
feet. 
 

Senior Center  
 
the Senior Center operates out of the NE corner of the building in an area approximately 
2,100 square feet. This area includes a reception area, office, store room, storage closet, 
restroom, dining area and commercial kitchen.  
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the senior staff needs an additional 125 
square feet of office space to resolve current and 6-year needs. 
 

Council/Court Room  
 
the Council Chambers/Court Room encompasses the SE corner of the building and serves as 
a meeting room for City Council, Planning Commission, Municipal Court, and as an 
event/game room for the seniors and other City functions. The space is adequate for current 
and future needs. 
 

Youth Center  
 
The Youth Activities Center is a 2,730 square foot facility that serves as drop-in center for 
youth ages 8-18 from the White River area. The building includes a conference room, office, 
storage room, kitchen, counseling room, computer conference room, game room, lobby, 
storage closet and two restrooms. 
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the Youth Center currently has 
adequate space to meet needs. For 6-year needs adequate space is in the building, but minor 
remodeling may be necessary to add office space for staff.  
 
Short term maintenance of the building will require at a minimum the following: 
 
• Carpet replacement – ($12K est) 
• Floor tile replacement – ($10K est) 
• Roof replacement – ($15K est) 
 

Public Works Facilities  
 
All of the facilities below are located at 240 River Ave with the exception of the City’s 
Wastewater Treatment Plant located at 600 Hatch Street. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
94



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 13 of 72 

 
The Public Works Shop Facility, identified under existing buildings, serves as the city’s 
mechanic shop, parks/building maintenance office and storage, equipment storage, utility 
worker workstations, locker room, lunch room and a bathroom. This 4,500 square foot 
building was constructed in 1925. 
 
The building was painted and the roof and gutters were completely replaced in 1997 and are 
still in good condition. As noted above, however, this facility is very old. As a result, it is 
completely inadequate in terms of space needs. In addition, it is creating significant costs to 
the City in both service effectiveness and efficiency.  
 
The Public Works Office Building- is a newly renovated 1,560 square foot (sq.ft.) one-story 
wood framed building that served as a utility storage building and now functions as the 
operations center for the Public Works and Utility Department. This remodel was constructed 
in 2017 and the building consists of a small breakroom, shower/locker room, conference 
room, bathroom, reception area, and four offices for management and clerical staff. This 
building has no current needs. 
 
Public Works Storage Outbuilding- is an 800-square-foot (sq. ft.) pole barn constructed 
building with a metal roof, used for storage. This building was constructed at some point and 
is in need of short term maintenance. Short term maintenance of the building will require the 
following: 

 
• Pole Replacement- ($5K) 
• Roof replacement- ($12K) 
• Gutter replacement- ($1K) 
 
Wastewater Treatment Facility- the Buckley WWTP was initially completed in 1981 and in 
2006 began a multi-phased upgrade.  The first phase completed in 2006 was the addition of a 
4000 sq. ft.  residual solids handling building and maintenance shop. The solids handling 
equipment includes blowers for the waste activated sludge holding tanks, and a 2.0 meter 
Andritz belt filter press. 
 
In 2008, a much larger phase of the upgrade began which included addition of a new 1400 
square foot head works building which housed rotary fine screening and grit removal 
equipment. Two anoxic treatment basins and three anaerobic treatment basins were added to 
facilitate biological nutrient removal while the existing oxidation ditches were retrofitted 
with new aeration equipment. Three clarifiers were added along with chemical dosing 
equipment for chemical phosphorus removal to achieve ultra-low phosphorus levels. 
 
A 1700 Sq. Ft. process building was added to house RAS/WAS pumps, aeration blowers, 
back-up power generation, and electrical and computer control equipment.  The 850 Sq. Ft. 
effluent disinfection building was built to house ultra-violet disinfection equipment, and a 
non-potable process water system to provide water for equipment operation and wash-down.  
The existing 1500 sq. ft. control building was also remodeled to add laboratory space. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
95



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 14 of 72 

The City has identified a potential site for a new Public Works Heated Storage Facility 
located near the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant at 600 Hatch Street. It is estimated that 
the purposed 4,700 square foot building includes a concrete slab, rollup garage doors, lights, 
heater and insulation will cost approximately $200,000. Construction of the new facility is 
dependent on budget priorities and financing.  
 

Police Department Services  
 
In 2018 the Buckley Police Department handled 8600 calls for service (CFS) for Wilkeson, 
Carbonado and Rainier School. These calls do not include daily walk in operations for 
CPL’S, Fingerprints, Records Request, questions about state or federal laws or Municipal 
codes, Special events such as presentations at local schools or businesses and Youth Center 
Activities. 
 
 The 8600 calls that were handled are a variety of low, medium and high priority incidents.  
Currently the Police Department has 10 commissioned Police Officers; this number includes 
a Chief, Assistant Chief, Patrol Sergeant and one Detective.  Also on staff is a full time 
records/TAC officer, a full time Community Service Officer and a part time Evidence 
Technician.  
  
The Department has 10 patrol vehicles with a spare patrol vehicle being a 2003 Crown 
Victoria. The department also has a 2007 Van and a 2016 F150 in the fleet used by the 
community Service Officer (CSO) for his daily duties of Transports of prisoners and caring 
for animals in the community such as Dogs. The department also has a utility terrain vehicle 
(UTV) used for special operations (Log Show) Search and Rescue (SAR) Special Patrol 
(snow, Ice, difficult patrol areas IE River Area) 
 
The increase in Population and higher traffic volumes has increased some of the low and 
medium priority calls. With this noted the animal services calls have increased along with 
some of the service calls during the daytime shifts handled by our records department and 
patrol officers.  
 
The Buckley Police Department strives to maintain a short response time to in-progress calls. 
Due to the increase of calls and only having 1 officer on per shift as an average, this makes it 
difficult to keep the standard we strive for with response times and ongoing mandatory 
training. 
 

Future Demand  
 
Assuming calls increase such as animal calls, service calls, traffic issues due to growth in the 
community and school districts; it may have an impact on time response to calls and the 
ability to train effectively having only 1 officer on duty as an average per shift. This may also 
impact visitation to the station increasing workload for administrative staff as the community 
grows. In addition growth and increased call volume could result in slower response times 
and training opportunities due to staffing levels.    
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
96



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 15 of 72 

Buckley Police Department Future Needs  
 
One of the most urgent needs for our Department is getting fully staffed by adding one more 
officer in 2019.  This will assist the Department with handling calls for service in a safe and 
timely manner. This will allow proper coverage while Department staff continues training as 
required by state laws. Secondly adding civilian personnel to assist with records and evidence 
will assure a professional standard held by the department.   
 
Additional officers will need to be increased in years to come (see  CF-2 below).  

 
Table CF-2  Projected Additions to Police Department 

Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Additional police vehicles and 700MHZ radios will be necessary as the size of the 
department increases. A minimum of one patrol car per one patrol officers is required, as 
well as administrative vehicles. This will require new purchases consistent with hiring staff 
in addition to replacement of older vehicles. 
 
The Community service officer is in need of a new shelter for impoundment of dogs this 
building will require power/water and some fencing.  The Police Department is in need of a 
new pitched roof and parking lot facelift, Along with fencing around Police Department.  
(See  CF-3.) 
 

Table CF-3 Police Department needs 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year Commissioned 
Personnel Civilian Personnel 

2019 1 0 
2020 0 1 
2021 1 0 
2022 0 0 
2023 1 0 
2024 0 0 
2025 1 0 

Description  Cost Funding Source 
4 new patrol vehicles  $200,000.00 107-109 
6 replacement patrol vehicle $300,000.00 107-109 
Dog Shelter $15,000 107-109  
Computers and Workstations  $9,500.00  107-109  
Police Department Roof $125,000.00 107-109 
Parking lot Repair $135,000.00 107-109 
700 MHz Equipment  $32,000.00 107-109  
1 replacement transport van $50,000.00 107-109 
Total         $866.500.00 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
97



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 16 of 72 

Fire & EMS Services  
 
The Fire Department provides fire protection and emergency medical services within the City 
limits of Buckley, and also includes the City’s Department of Emergency Management.  In 
addition, the City contracts with the towns of Carbonado and Wilkeson to provide certain fire 
department functions in their jurisdictions.  The City also contracts with the State of 
Washington Department of Social and Health Services to provide fire protection and 
emergency medical services to the Rainier School campus and facilities within the city.   
 
The City of Buckley Fire Department through a governmental Interlocal agreement with the 
Town of Carbonado, Pierce County Fire District No. 25 (Crystal Mountain), and Pierce 
County Fire District No. 26 (Greenwater) is the lead agency in negotiating and administering 
a contractual cooperative operating agreement with private ambulance provider American 
Medical Response, through which contract ambulance transport and Advanced Life Support 
(ALS) paramedic services are provided within the service areas of the four jurisdictions.  
This relationship was established in June 2007 and has remained in continuous operation 
since its inception.  
 
The City is party to numerous formalized governmental Interlocal agreements governing 
mutual-aid and automatic-aid that allow for the sharing of resources throughout the region. 
 
The fire department E911 calls and fire and emergency medical service dispatching is 
provided through contract with South Sound 911, the county-wide E911 Law Enforcement 
and Fire communication dispatch center.   
 
The fire department operates from a single fire station.  In 2010 voters in the city approved a 
$5 million bond measure to construct a new fire station.  Construction began in 2011 and the 
fire department took occupancy of the new fire station in April 2012. 
 
The Fire Department is predominantly volunteer staffed utilizing a combination fire 
department structure.  Current staffing is:  
 
• 1 full-time 40+ hour per week paid Fire Chief 
• 1 full-time 40+ hour per week paid Assistant Fire Chief 
• 1 full-time 40 hour per week paid Firefighter/EMT 
• 1 full-time 40 hour per week paid Volunteer Recruitment & Retention Coordinator ** 
• 1 part-time 16 hour per week paid Administrative Assistant 
• 8 volunteer Fire Lieutenants 
• 72 volunteer Firefighter, Emergency Medical Technicians, and Paramedics   

 
** The Volunteer Recruitment & Retention Coordinator is a 4-year funded position through a 
DHS/FEMA 2017 SAFER Grant with grant funding ending November 22, 2022. 
 
Level of Service (LOS) in this document means the relationship between fire protection 
facilities and the provision of fire and emergency medical services within the City, as 
identified by the LOS goals established by the City.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
98



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 17 of 72 

 
The City of Buckley Fire Department LOS goals are established based on recommended 
industry guidelines and standards.  While not formally adopted by the City as a level of 
service standard, the City does base its LOS goals on the nationally recognized Standard for 
the Organization and Deployment of Fire Suppression Operations, Emergency Medical 
Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by Volunteer Fire Departments developed 
by the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) (NFPA Standard 1720, 2004 Edition).   
 
NFPA 1720 defines a Volunteer Fire Department as a fire department having volunteer 
emergency service personnel comprising 85 percent or greater of its department membership.  
The personnel composition of the City of Buckley Fire Department consists of 3.0 fulltime 
career personnel and 80 volunteer personnel (3.6% career and 96.4% volunteer). 
 
NFPA 1720 establishes Areas by defining Remote, Rural, Suburban and Urban Areas.  
NFPA 1720 defines an Urban Area as an area with at least 1,000 people per square mile.  The 
City of Buckley encompasses an area of approximately 3.9 square miles with a population of 
approximately 4,765 -- an average of 1,222 people per square mile.   
 
In summary NFPA 1720 provides that a Volunteer Fire Department serving an Urban Area 
shall ensure that a sufficient number of fire department personnel (15 personnel for a fire 
suppression operation) and resources are available to operate safely and effectively, and that 
the fire department achieves a response time of 9 or fewer minutes 90% of the time.  This is 
the LOS goal that the City of Buckley Fire Department has established.   
 
The 9 minute response time begins when a citizen calls 911 and includes a dispatch time of 1 
minute, turnout time of 3 minutes, and a response drive time of 5 minutes: 
 
Chart CF-1 

 
 
 
 
 

The City of Buckley Fire Department is consistently able to meet today’s LOS goals within the 
incorporated boundaries of the city as it exists today.  In choosing the site for the new fire station 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
99



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 18 of 72 

constructed in 2011 the city gave consideration to growth within the existing boundaries of the 
city as well as the potential for growth in areas adjacent to the city which could be annexed in the 
future.  The location of the newly constructed fire station is such that the city should continue to 
meet today’s LOS goals for growth and expansion that could occur in the next 30 years.   
 
Each fire district in Washington is reviewed every five years and rated between a high of Class 1 
and a low of Class 10. In its last two evaluations by the Washington Surveying and Rating 
Bureau the City has been issued a Fire Protection Class 3 rating, with the most recent rating 
being issued in March 2018.  The fire department continues to develop and implement strategies 
and programs in consideration of the City being able to maintain this attractive Fire Protection 
Class Rating.  Maintaining the Fire Protection Class 3 rating is in-part dependent on the fire 
department having adequate resources in facilities, equipment, and personnel.   
 
In determining the 20-year to 30-year future personnel needs and the need for additional 
equipment - primarily vehicle apparatus such as fire engines, ambulances, and support vehicles; 
we have evaluated the population history in comparison to demand for service (call volume).  
Our statistics demonstrate a disproportionate correlation in population increase to demand for 
service increase.  Therefore, the reliability of such future forecasting is difficult to qualify due to 
uncertainties, changing technology, expansion of service area, expansion of services, etc.   
 
 

Chart CF-2, Population & Call Volume History 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Forecast Projected Needs 
 
Facilities 

 
With the construction of a new fire station in 2011 and occupancy in 2012, there are no 
planned or projected major facility additions or improvements anticipated through 2035.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
100



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 19 of 72 

Table CF-4 Fire Department Apparatus/Equipment 
 

Apparatus Replacement 
Year 

Projected 
Replacement 

Cost 
Fund Note(s) 

1996 
Fire Engine 2019 $450,000 030 1996 Becomes 

Reserve Engine 
2008  

Fire Engine 2030 $535,000 030  

2019  
Fire Engine 2041 $605,000 030  

1998  
Ambulance 2020 - 105 2005 Ambulance 

moves to reserve states 
2001  

Ambulance 2020 $155,000 105 – 030  

2005  
Ambulance 2025 $165,000 105 – 030  

2011 
Utility 
Vehicle 

2026 $42,875 030  

2014  
Utility 
Vehicle 

2029 $44,450 030  

2018  
Utility 
Vehicle 

2033 $45,875 030  

2015  
SCBA 2030 $104,000 030  

 
Table CF-5 Fire Department Personnel  

 

Apparatus 2019 
Pop. 4,765 

2024 
Pop. 
6,556 

2035 
Pop. 7,888 Note(s) 

Fulltime Staff 4* 6 8 *includes SAFER 
Retention Coordinator 

Part-time Staff 1 2 2  
Volunteer Staff 75 90 110  

*   SAFER Grant Funded Volunteer Firefighter Program Recruitment & Retention Coordinator Position grant 
funded November 2018 through November 2022 

 
Level-of-Service Standards  

 
The Growth Management Act states that Level-of-Service (LOS) Standards are required for 
transportation facilities, (RCW 36.70A.070, Mandatory Elements).  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
101



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 20 of 72 

 
The Act also briefly touches on LOS standards for other types of capital facilities, (WAC 
365-195, Growth Management – Procedural Criteria for adopting Comprehensive Plans and 
Development Regulations).  
 
The City of Buckley has adopted minimum LOS standards for the following capital facilities: 
parks, potable water, sanitary sewer, and transportation facilities. These standards were 
adopted in the Comprehensive Plan or by individual comprehensive facility plans that were 
adopted into the Capital Facilities Element by reference.  
 

Fire Services 
 
As identified in the previous section the Fire Department has adopted an LOS goal of 
achieving a response time of 9 or fewer minutes 90% of the time. 
 

Parks 
 
The parks LOS standards are primarily population based with complimentary levels of 
development, for neighborhood and community parks, and are listed in the Parks, Recreation 
and Open Space Element of the Comprehensive Plan. There are 9 types of facilities that LOS 
has been established consisting of: softball fields, basketball courts, baseball fields, 
volleyball courts, tennis courts, neighborhood parks, community parks, urban open space and 
multi-use trails.  
 

Potable Water 
 
The City has adopted the following minimum LOS for the water system. The water system 
quality shall be in compliance with Washington Administrative Code (246-290) requirements 
for water quality.  The source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum demand 
rate plus that rate necessary to replace fire suppression storage within 72 hours. Fire flow 
service shall be provided to insurance services office (ISO) standards for Class 6 fire 
protection facilities. 
 

Sanitary Sewer 
 
The LOS requirements for the sanitary sewer collection system include the capability of 
handling peak flow and providing adequate pipeline velocity.  Gravity lines must be sized 
and sloped to provide a minimum velocity of 2 feet per second.  Minimum pipeline diameter 
for gravity service is 8 inches with a slope of 0.004 ft/ft.  In addition, gravity lines must be 
protected with a minimum of 3 feet of cover and provided with manholes spaced about 400 
feet apart and located at all the intersections and changes of grade.  New construction is 
required to meet standards to limit infiltration and inflow into the system.  These standards 
include precast manhole sections with gasketed seals, concrete pipe with rubber joints, or 
heavy duty PVC pipe.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
102



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 21 of 72 

Storm and Surface Water Drainage 
 

 The minimum LOS for the City’s stormwater conveyance system is to convey the 25-year 
storm event.   
 

Transportation: 
 
The City has established a minimum LOS standard of “D”, except for state highways. State 
Route 410 and State Route 165 travel through the City of Buckley.  The rightof-way for these 
routes is owned by the City, however, the facilities located between curbtocurb is maintained 
by the state.  The State has set a level of service standard for these routes, and identified SR 
410 as a Tier 2, and will need a LOS D, while SR 165 is a Tier 3 and require a LOS C. 
 

IV. WATER SYSTEM 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Buckley currently maintains approximately 1,700 water service connections, 
which consist of both commercial and residential hookups.  The existing City water usage 
charge is based on a monthly service charge for the connection depending on the meter size 
and a usage fee based on cubic feet of water consumed.  The 2017 water usage records 
indicate that a total volume of just under 200 million gallons was consumed by the City’s 
service population.  This total included both residential and commercial usage, the residential 
usage accounts for 55 percent of the total.  The estimated average per capita demand for the 
six-year period, 2012 through 2017, is 60 gallons per capita per day (gpcd).  This average 
consumption figure established does not include adjustments for commercial and/or public 
facility usage.  This exclusion inflates the average per capita consumption figures. 
 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY 
 

Level of Service 
 
The water system quality shall be in compliance with Washington Administrative Code (246-
290) requirements for water quality.   
 
The source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum demand rate plus that rate 
necessary to replace fire suppression storage within 72 hours. 
 
Fire flow service shall be provided to insurance services office (ISO) standards for Class 6 
fire protection facilities. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The water utility currently receives approximately 64 percent of its supply from South Prairie 
Creek, which is located to the south and east of existing city limits.  Water is delivered from 
the Creek via a 29,200-foot transmission main to the Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
103



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 22 of 72 

(WTP) and 2.3 million gallon reservoir.  The City and Rainier School jointly own the water 
transmission main from South Prairie Creek.  The City owns the Slow Sand Filter WTP and 
reservoir, while Rainier School owns the land where the WTP and reservoir are located.  The 
City and Rainier School retain separate ownership of their respective water distribution 
systems.  An agreement was signed in May 1996 between the City and the Department of 
Social and Health Services delineating the entities retention of ownership of their respective 
water rights and those facilities specific to the operation of their systems.  The City of 
Buckley and Rainier School have water rights issued by the Washington Department of 
Ecology (WDOE) for a total instantaneous right of 5.02 cfs (2,252 gpm) for municipal 
consumption purposes and 3.0 cfs (1,347 gpm) for irrigation.  The total annual water right for 
the City and Rainier School is 1,746 acre-feet for consumption and 400 acre-feet for 
irrigation.  Source production capacity is based upon the limiting factor between water right 
limits and physical water production limits, such as pumping and treatment capacities.  The 
instantaneous production capacity for the City of Buckley and Rainier School is 1,870 gpm.  
On an instantaneous basis, the City’s existing water system production capacity will be 
exceeded by maximum day demands by the year 2025.  The transmission main from South 
Prairie Creek to the WTP has a capacity of between 900 and 1,000 gpm.  The WTP operated 
at a filter-loading rate of 0.085 gpm/sq ft has a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The Prairie 
Creek watershed is owned by the U.S. Forest Service, Longview Timberlands LLC, 
Muckleshoot Federal Corporation, Muckleshoot Indian Tribe, Manke Timber Co., Hancock 
Forest Management, Frank and Marina Wallace, and Edward Hudson. The City has obtained 
agreements from all of these parties restricting activities that might have adverse impacts on 
water quality, but does not prohibit use within the watershed.  The watershed area is 
relatively inaccessible except for a few unimproved roads, and the City restricts access along 
its service road to the headworks. 
 
In addition to South Prairie Creek, the City has several groundwater sources that are utilized 
to supplement South Prairie Creek or as backup sources.  The following groundwater sources 
provide approximately 36 percent of City’s water demands.  Inventories of these wells are 
provided below. 
 
Well No. 2 
 
Well No. 2 located adjacent to and east of the City limits on the east side of Levesque Road, 
north of Second Avenue.  This well has an 8-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth 
of 170 feet below ground surface (bgs).  The capacity of this well is 130 gpm.  Water from 
this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir via a 
6-inch water transmission main.  The water from this well is available to be chlorinated with 
gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 3  
 
Well No. 3 also located just east of city limits was drilled with a 6-inch casing alongside 
Well No. 2 to investigate the production capacity of an upper aquifer encountered at a depth 
of 60 feet.  This well is currently used as an observation well.  There are no plans to use this 
well as a water supply source for the City. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
104



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 23 of 72 

 
Well No. 4 
 
In order to take advantage of the apparent high production capacity of the upper aquifer 
encountered by Well No. 3, Well No. 4 was drilled approximately 100 feet away.  This well 
has a 16-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth of 70 feet bgs.  The capacity of this 
well is 240 gpm.  Water from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or 
directly to the reservoir via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well 
is available to be chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well) 
 
The Naches Street Well, located on the west side of Naches Street (just north of Wheeler 
Street), was placed into service in 1967.  This well has a 10-inch diameter casing and is 
finished to a depth of 130 feet bgs.  The capacity of this well is 260 gpm.  The water from 
this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site, and pumped directly into the water 
distribution system.  
 
Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well 
 
This well is finished to a depth of 180 bgs.  The capacity of this well is 215 gpm.  Water 
from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir 
via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well is not available to be 
chlorinated on site. 
 
Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1) 
 
This well was drilled in 2005 as a test well to determine how much water could be available 
at the site located south of town along SR 165, near the Foothills Trail.  The well was drilled 
to a depth of 197 feet, has a 6-inch casing to 135 feet and a 6-inch telescoping, 30-slot 
screen, installed from 135 feet to 155 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 90 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2) 
 
This well is located approximately 60 feet north of Well No. 6.  The well was drilled to a 
depth of 163 feet, has a 12-inch casing extending to 125, feet and a 12-inch telescoping 100-
slot screen extending from 125 to 140 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 205 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
105



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 24 of 72 

Well System Operations 
 
Water produced from Wells No. 2, 4, and the Rainier School Well can be directed through 
the slow sand filter or pumped directly into the reservoir.  These wells have their own 
chlorination system prior to entering the reservoir.  The Naches Street Well and the two Trail 
Wells also have their own chlorination systems and water from these wells is pumped 
directly into the distribution system.  Low water levels in the reservoir call the wells 
sequentially, as the reservoir level decreases.  As water level in the reservoir increases, the 
wells are deactivated in the reverse sequence.   
 
As a part of the above noted source of water, the City currently maintains an emergency 
intertie with the City of Tacoma.  The intertie includes a booster station and is located to 
along SR-410 near the Post Office.   
 
The locations of these sources are indicated in Figure W1 in the Utilities Element. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 
Based on the above noted supply rates and the anticipated population growth rate within the 
urban growth area boundaries, maximum day demands will exceed source capacity by 2025.  
Additional source capacity will be obtained through modifications to the slow sand filter and 
development of additional groundwater sources. 
 
The City should be cognizant of the fact that future water sources may yet be required and 
that the securing of additional rights would be beneficial and consistent to their extended 
growth plans. 
 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to source water 
improvements, which will be suggested to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   
 

S-1.   Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot Study to test the effectiveness of increasing 
the loading rate. 

S-2.   Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at the Water Treatment Plant. 
S-3.   Expand Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant-construct additional filter 

bed area; expand filter building, additional inlet and under-drain piping, site 
piping and controls.  

S-4.   Hydro-Geologic Study for a New Well- complete a hydro-geologic study to 
obtain recommendations of locations that would be most likely to support 
productive wells.  

S-5.   Drill and Test New Well. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
106



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 25 of 72 

TREATMENT 
 

Level of Service 
 
The treatment of potable water shall be provided to comply with the standards as set by the 
Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR). 
 

Inventory System 
 
The City of Buckley operates a slow sand filter water treatment plant to provide surface 
water treatment.  The filtration plant has an available filter surface area of 8,500 square feet.  
The plant is currently operated at a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The water is chlorinated 
with gas chlorine after filtration and before entering the on-site storage reservoir. Chlorine 
contact time is provided in the reservoir. 
 
Water produced from Wells 2, 4, and 5 can be directed through the slow sand filter, or they 
can be pumped directly into the reservoir. Gas chlorination is available at Wells 2 and 4, but 
is used only when the wells are discharged directly to the reservoir. When water is 
discharged from the wells directly to the reservoir, the chlorination rates at Wells 2 and 4 is 
adjusted to provide the target chlorine residual in the combined flow from Wells 2, 4 and 5. 
When the wells are discharged to the slow sand filter, the water is chlorinated as it leaves the 
filter system. 
 
The Naches Street Well (Well 1) has its own gas chlorination system, and water from this 
well is pumped directly into the distribution system. No chlorine contact time is required for 
this well. 
 
Water from Trail Wells 1 and 2 is treated with pyrolusite filter media to remove dissolved 
iron and manganese. The Trail Wells Treatment Facility includes five, 3-foot diameter 
vessels and has a design flowrate of 300 gpm and a design filter loading rate of 8.5 gpm/sq. 
ft. The raw well water is chlorinated with glass chlorine and sodium permanganate upstream 
of the filters. The treated water enters the distribution system 
near the intersection of Ryan Road and SR 165. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 
Future treatment needs include the following improvements at the WTP: 
 

• Increasing filter-loading rate and expand slow sand treatment plant to gain more 
filtration capacity.  Projects under the Source and Supply section will address the 
slow sand filtration capacity. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to water treatment plant 
improvements, which will be required to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
107



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 26 of 72 

 
TR-1.   Upgrade System Telemetry. This will allow the City to maintain more 

competitive service contracts for maintenance and repairs of its telemetry 
equipment. 

 
STORAGE 
 

Level of Service 
 
Storage capacities shall be per the Washington State Department of Health’s sizing 
guidelines and requirements as stated within the Ten State Standards.   
 

Inventory of System 
 
The system includes two storage reservoirs.  Only one reservoir, located adjacent to the 
filtration plant is normally used.  This reservoir has a capacity of 2.3 million gallons. 

 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs 

 
Based on projected growth rates and required storage volumes, the City will exceed its 
storage capacity by the year 2029.  The City will require an additional 208,000 gallons of 
storage by the year 2029.  This assumes the City increases its source capacity to meet its 
maximum day demands (from the current 1,870 to a future 2,425 gpm in 2035).  Future 
storage needs include: 
 

• Additional storage will be required by 2029.  Approximate reservoir size is 
anticipated to be 1.0 million gallons to provide redundancy for the existing 2.3 
million gallon reservoir. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to storage improvements, 
which will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate 
water service to existing development within the UGA boundary.   
 

ST-1.   Reservoir Siting Study.  Evaluate potential reservoir locations and 
configurations. 

ST-2.   Construct 1.0 MG Reservoir. 
 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service 
 
This supply of water to various areas within the urban growth boundary shall be completed to 
comply with the Department of Health, Ten State Standards, and City Fire Marshal 
Standards.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
108



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 27 of 72 

Inventory of System 
 
The existing City water system is shown in Figure W1 in the Utilities Element.  The system 
includes both transmission and distribution components.  The transmission main conveying 
water from South Prairie Creek to the slow sand filtration plant is 29,200 feet in length.  The 
City’s distribution system consists of 32 miles of pipes ranging in size from 4 to 12 inches in 
diameter.  The various pipe materials include ductile iron pipe, polyvinyl chloride pipe, cast 
iron pipe, steel pipe, and HDPE pipe.  The age of the existing system varies but a sizable 
portion of the network was installed over 50 years ago. 
 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs 
 
To determine the future impacts that increasing development may impose upon the City’s 
existing system a hydraulic model analysis was performed.  The City’s water system was 
analyzed using MWH Soft’s H2ONet hydraulic modeling software, which operates in an 
AutoCAD computer-aided design and drafting environment.  The H2ONet model was created 
using the City’s water system basemap.  Reservoir elevations and well capacities were 
determined from existing planning documents and City records.  The H2ONet model is 
configured with a graphical user interface.  Each water system element (sources, pipes, 
control valves, and reservoir) is assigned a unique graphical representation within the model.  
Each element is assigned a number of attributes specific to its function in the actual water 
system.  Typical element attributes include spatial coordinates, elevation, water demand, pipe 
lengths and diameters, and critical water levels for reservoirs.  With attributes of each system 
element as the model input, the software produces the model output in the form of flows and 
pressures throughout the simulated water system.  The following five system demand 
scenarios were used to hydraulically model the City of Buckley water system: 
 

• 2014 Average Daily Demands:  These demands were used while calibrating the 
model. 

• 2020 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2020 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

• 2035 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2035 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to improvements, which 
will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate water 
service to existing development within the urban growth area boundary (see Figures W2 and 
W3 in the Utilities Element).  The improvements, which have been noted represent additions 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
109



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 28 of 72 

to the existing main line conveyance systems and are presented to allow for the delivery of 
water, to the estimated development areas, for both potable and fire flow usage.  Additional 
improvements will undoubtedly be required within various communities as the location of 
growth and the type of developments would dictate.  The following projects are listed in 
order of priority under either, Transmission or Distribution. 
 
Transmission 
 

T-1.  Segment 6, End of Trenchless to North Slope-replace 2,440 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 5 and Segment 7 with new 12-inch HDPE 
Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-2. Segment 8, Creek Crossing Restoration.  The City installed a cable bridge across 
South Prairie Creek in 2016 to carry a segment of the transmission main.  The 
old pipeline and concrete encasement requires removal and the disturbed banks 
along the creek require additional restoration. 

T-3.  Segment 13, Between Replacement Segments-replace 260 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 14 and Segment 16 with new 12-inch 
HDPE Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-4.   Segment 15, End of Cable Bridge to Replacement Segment-replace 1,135 LF of 
the Raw Water Transmission Main from the north end of the cable bridge to 
connect the south end of the Segment 14 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water 
Transmission Main. 

T-5. Annual Transmission Main Leak Detection-continue an annual leak detection 
program to determine if there are any additional sections of the pipeline in need 
repair. 

T-6. Segment 16, Existing Cable Bridge.  Replace 200 LF cable bridge across a creek 
gully. 

T-7. Segment 19, Along Cliff Face.  Replace 200 LF of transmission main, including 
a new cliff anchorage system. 

T-8. Segment 21, Creek Bed to Headworks.  Replace 1,000 LF of transmission main 
in the South Prairie Creek streambed near the headworks of the transmission 
main. 

 
Distribution 

 
D-1. Edith from Park to Dundass, Balm from 4th to Ewing, Ewing from Dundass to 

Balm, 3rd from Main to Masin.  Install 1,200 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-2. Heather between Whitmore and Elk Ridge Elementary School.  Install 70 LF 

of 8-inch water main. 
D-3.   Mason from A to D, B south of Mason, Rainier from Main to Mason.  Install 

1,900 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-4.   A from Park to Main.  Install 850 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-5.   Division from Ryan to Fire Station.  Install 360 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-6.   Jefferson from 3rd to Pearl, Pearl from Perkings to Ryan, Mill from Pearl to 

Jefferson.  Install 2,080 LF of 8-inch water main. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
110



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 29 of 72 

D-7.   Ryan from Spiketon Road to east side of LDS Church. -Install 2,360 LF of 
12-inch water main. 

D-8.   Fulton and 4th.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-9.  Sheets, south of Ryan.  Install 600 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-10.  Klink, south of Ryan.  Install 1,400 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-11. SR 410, west to Mundy-Loss.  Install 1,100 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-12  Hinkleman Extension from SR 410 to 112th.  Install 700 feet of 8-inch water 

main. 
D-13 Hinkleman Road from Hinkleman Extension to Mundy-Loss.  Install 2,200 

feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-14.  McNeely, north of Collins.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-15.  McNeely, south of Collins.  Install 750 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-16 River, north of Dieringer.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-17 Mason from Spruce to McNeely.  Install 2,000 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-18 Dieringer from Sorenson to McNeely.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Source and Supply Projects 
 
 CF-6 presents a capital improvement plan for source and supply projects.  The  lists the year 
of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are described 
in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the source and supply projects were taken 
from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

Table CF-6 Source and Supply Water Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
S-1 2019 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $30,000 
S-2 2020 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $180,000 
S-3 2020 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $800,000 
S-4 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $25,000 
S-5 2022 Water Capital Project Fund $150,000 

 
Water Treatment Projects 

 
 CF-7 presents a capital improvement plan for water treatment projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the water treatment improvements 
were taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
111



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 30 of 72 

Table CF-7  Treatment System Improvements 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

 
Funding Source 

Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
TR-1 2020 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $180,000 

 
 

Water Storage Projects 
 
 CF-8 presents a capital improvement plan for the water storage projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the water storage projects were 
taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

Table CF-8 Storage Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (2019) 

ST-1 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $25,000 
ST-2 2022 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $2,000,000 

 
Transmission Main Projects 

 
 CF-9 presents a capital improvement plan for transmission main projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the transmission main projects 
were taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

Table CF-9 Transmission Main Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
T-1 2021 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $830,000 
T-2 2018 Water Capital Project Fund $50,000 
T-3 2020 Water Capital Project Fund $105,000 
T-4 2020 Water Capital Project Fund $390,000 
T-5 Annual Water Operating Fund $140,000 
T-6 2023 Water Capital Project Fund $203,000 
T-7 2025 Water Capital Project Fund $161,000 
T-8 2027 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $409,000 

 
Distribution Main Projects 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
112



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 31 of 72 

 CF-10 presents a capital improvement plan for distribution main projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the distribution main projects 
were taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 

 
Table CF-10 Distribution Main Projects 

 
Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
D-1 2018 Water Capital Project Fund $354,000 
D-2 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $29,000 
D-3 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $510,000 
D-4 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $250,000 
D-5 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $99,000 
D-6 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $583,000 
D-7 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $643,000 
D-8 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $211,000 
D-9 2023 Water Capital Project Fund $146,000 
D-10 2023 Water Capital Project Fund $334,000 
D-11 2024 Water Capital Project Fund $251,000 
D-12 2025 Water Capital Project Fund $158,000 
D-13 2026 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $1,071,000 
D-14 2022 Developer Extension $523,000 
D-15 2022 Developer Extension $193,000 
D-16 2024 Developer Extension $120,000 
D-17 2024 Developer Extension $475,000 
D-18 2025 Developer Extension $545,000 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The revenue to operate and maintain the City of Buckley’s water system is collected through 
a monthly water rates.  Water rates are determined by meter size serving the customer as 
shown in  CF-11. 
 

Table CF-11 Monthly Water System Rates – Base Charge for 
200 cubic feet 

 
Meter Size Cost 
Up to 3/4” $22.93 

1” $29.07 
1-1/2” $41.78 

2” $62.79 
3” $93.23 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
113



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 32 of 72 

Meter Size Cost 
4” $151.23 
6” $291.73 
8” $714.74 

 
In addition to the above meter base charges for the first 200 cubic feet per month, residential 
customers are charged $2.06 per 100 cubic feet for 200 to 700 cubic feet, $2.47 per 100 cubic 
feet for 700 to 1,500 cubic feet, and $2.94 per 100 cubic feet for over 1,500 cubic feet.  In 
addition to the above meter base charges for the first 200 cubic feet per month, commercial 
and industrial customers are charged $2.16 per 100 cubic feet and school customers are 
charged $2.04 per 100 cubic feet.  The City of Buckley Water Capital Project Fund is funded 
from revenues including the general facilities charges established by BMC 14.04.320 and the 
portion of the service charges allocated by the city council in Chapter 14.04 BMC.  The 
water capital project fund shall be used for the purpose of designing and construction 
improvements to the water system. 
 
The general facilities charge for the City water system is $6,500 for each single-family 
residence, $4,875.00 for each multi-family dwelling, and $6,500.00 for each equivalent 
residential unit, for all other uses. 
 
There are four principal ways that the improvements outlined in this water section can be 
financed aside from setting aside a portion of the monthly service charge.  Rates and charges 
must be maintained at an adequate level to ensure a sufficiency of funds to properly maintain 
and operate the system and provide funds for construction of the projects identified through a 
combination of cash contributions and debt financing. 
 
A. Developer Financing 
 
Developers of presently unimproved property will finance many of the new facilities 
constructed in the City.  All of the improvements required for service to property with new 
plats or commercial developments will be designed and constructed in accordance with the 
City’s developer project policies.  In some cases, latecomer’s agreements may be executed 
for any water main serving property other than the property owned by the developer that is 
financing the project. 
 
B. Combination Financing by the City and Developers 
 
It may be necessary in some cases to require the owner to construct a larger diameter water 
line than is required by the current development in order to support the comprehensive 
development of the City’s water system.  The City may enter into a latecomer’s agreement or 
reimburse the developer for the extra cost of increasing the size of the line over that required 
to serve the property under development.  Oversizing should be considered when it is 
necessary to construct any pipe over a certain diameter in a single-family residential area to 
comply with the water comprehensive plan.   
 
C. Revenue Bond / General Obligation Bond 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
114



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 33 of 72 

 
Water treatment plant improvements, water storage facilities, and other major capital 
improvement projects that are a general benefit to a major portion of the City may be 
financed by revenue bonds or general obligation bonds.  Improvements that will benefit 
primarily a single developer should be financed by the developer of the property.  The City 
may use whatever funds are available for the payment of the debt service on the revenue 
bonds.  A major source of these funds is from the water rate revenues from the City 
customers.  However, all funds, such as general facility fees, connection charges or latecomer 
charges, may be used for debt service.  Water system improvements that will service many 
different property owners in areas that are already developed may be financed through the 
establishment of a local improvement district (LID).  The financing is accomplished through 
the sale of revenue bonds or general obligation bonds.  These bonds are retired with income 
from the assessments and/or other funds of the City. 
 
D. Grant Funds / Loans 
 
State and federal authorities provide funds under various grant programs for the construction 
of major improvements to or rehabilitation of water systems.  Programs available include 
State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF), United States Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA RD), and Public Works Trust Fund Loan Program (PWTF). 

 
 

V. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 
 
The City of Buckley owns, operates, and maintains a sanitary collection system within City 
limits.  The City system consists of a collection system, a secondary wastewater treatment 
plant, and an outfall to the White River.  The plant is located north of Park Avenue and 
currently serves an estimated 4,300 people.  Additionally, the City receives wastewater from 
a school district lift station west of the City, which serves two existing schools of the White 
River School District.  The plant operates under NPDES WA-002336-1, which became 
effective May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended 
that permit and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the 
limitations specified in the expired permit.  Under this permit, treated effluent is discharged 
into an outfall located in a side channel of the mainstream of the White River.  The nearest 
other treatment facility is located at the Enumclaw WWTP located about 2 miles to the 
northeast of Buckley.   
 
This section of the report first addresses the conditions and needs of the sanitary collection 
system and then those for the wastewater treatment facility.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
115



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 34 of 72 

COLLECTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service-+ 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sanitary sewer system was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, Department of Ecology, 1998, and construction standards adopted 
by the City through its municipal codes.   
 
The Level of Service (LOS) requirements for the sanitary sewer collection system include the 
capability of handling peak flow and providing adequate pipeline velocity.  Gravity lines 
must be sized and sloped to provide a minimum velocity of 2 feet per second.  Minimum 
pipeline diameter for gravity service is 8 inches with a slope of 0.004 ft/ft.  In addition, 
gravity lines must be protected with a minimum of 3 feet of cover and provided with 
manholes spaced about 400 feet apart and located at all the intersections and changes of 
grade.  New construction is required to meet standards to limit infiltration and inflow into the 
system.  These standards include precast manhole sections with gasketed seals, concrete pipe 
with rubber joints, or heavy duty PVC pipe.   
 
The City of Buckley system currently has only two pump stations on the west end of the 
system, which serve two schools.  However, it is anticipated that as the City expands to 
provide service within its GMA boundaries, additional pumping stations will connect to the 
system.  Design criteria for pumping stations are established in detail in the Criteria for 
Sewage Works Design.  Among the requirements are ones for duplicate pumps for each 
station, each capable of handling the station’s maximum design flow.  Each station shall be 
protected against the 100-year flood and provide sufficient head to maintain a minimum 
velocity of 2 feet per second within the force main.  Minimum pipe size for sewage force 
mains shall be 4 inches.  In addition, an alarm system shall be provided for all pumping 
stations as well as provisions for auxiliary power. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The City’s existing sanitary sewer system consists of approximately 123,500 LF of gravity 
sewers, 10,600 LF of 6-inch and 4-inch force mains, and approximately 270 manholes.  The 
existing sanitary sewer system is shown in Figure S1 in the Utilities Element.  The system is 
more or less divided into two parts by SR 410.  Flow on the southeast side of SR 410 is 
collected, transported under the highway at Wheeler Avenue and Park Avenue, and then 
conveyed by gravity to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) north of Park Avenue.  A 
small volume of flows is conveyed across SR 410 immediately west of the intersection of SR 
410 and SR 165.  Flows northeast of the highway travel north to the main trunk line on Park 
Avenue.  A summary of this collection system is shown below in  CF-12.   
 

Table CF-12 Collection System Inventory 
 

Pipe Diameter Length (lineal feet) 
Gravity System 

4-inch 24,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
116



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 35 of 72 

Pipe Diameter Length (lineal feet) 
Gravity System 

6-inch 2,100 
8-inch 60,300 
10-inch 12,000 
12-inch 9,100 
14-inch 2,000 
15-inch 2,100 
18-inch 6,200 
Subtotal 117,800 

Force Main 
4- and 6-inch  7,800 

 
 
The collection system in Buckley was originally built in the early 1900’s as a combined 
storm and sanitary sewer system.  Over the years, extensions and sewer separations have 
occurred resulting in a total pipeline length exceeding 125,000 feet.  The older gravity sewer 
mains consist of clay pipe with mortared bell-spigot type joints.  More recent construction is 
primarily 8 and 10-inch concrete and PVC pipe with rubber joints.  However, only about 1/3 
of the system was installed with this type of construction.  The depth of the sewer mains 
typically varies from 2 to 15 feet, with 6 to 7 feet as the average depth.  Manholes in the 
older portion of the system are of brick and mortar construction, while the most recently 
installed manholes are precast concrete.  Due to the age of the system, the depths of the 
conveyance mains and type of construction, infiltration and inflow (I/I) problems have 
continued to develop.  I/I problems result during storms, when water infiltrates through pipe 
imperfections such as misaligned joints and cracks in the lines, greatly increasing flows to 
the plant.  The City has replaced most of the downtown core area gravity sewers, resulting in 
significant reductions in I/I. 

 
Proposed Location and Future Needs  

 
The evaluation of the City’s collection system conducted in 2017 identified several needs to 
serve existing and future customers.  These are briefly discussed below.  In addition, 
planning under GMA has identified other future needs.   
 
As has been previously noted, the majority of the City’s original sanitary sewer conveyance 
system consisted of 50 year old clay pipe which had deteriorated considerably and was in 
need of replacement due to the volumes of infiltration/inflow presently accessing the 
conveyance network.  Furthermore, by the Department of Ecology (DOE) standards several 
of the existing sewer mains are undersized and/or sloped at less than acceptable grades. 
 
A sewer system rehabilitation program was first developed from an I/I study in 1973.  A 
second I/I analysis and a sewer system evaluation survey were conducted in 1975.  Because 
the WWTP exceeded design flows during wet weather months, a third I/I study was 
undertaken in 1992 and completed in 1994.  This report (Infiltration/Inflow Analysis and 
Engineering Report) was amended in January 1999.  The report indicated that removal of I/I 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
117



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 36 of 72 

would be more cost-effective than expansion of the treatment plant, if 45 percent of the I/I 
were removed.  Manhole rehabilitation was also identified in the 1994 plan as another project 
aimed at reducing I/I.  The amendment to the I/I analysis and Engineering Report completed 
in January 1999 looked at reducing I/I in two of the drainage basins. 
 
As a result of the 1992-94 I/I study, the city of Buckley replaced parts of its sanitary sewer 
collection system.  In 1998, the City applied for approval from the Department of Ecology to 
increase the capacity of the WWTP by approximately 330 connections, and received 
approval on condition that the City construct wastewater improvements to remove 
approximately 45 percent of the inflow and infiltration of stormwater into the City’s sewer 
system and on the condition that the City construct a digester at the treatment plant. 
 
The future improvement projects recommended by this plan are based both on the anticipated 
maximum or build-out development within the UGA boundary and the existing condition of 
the sanitary conveyance system as described in the modeling completed in 2015. 
 
The expected future sewage flow rates were developed by applying per capita flow rates and 
peaking factors to the estimated population figures as have been presented within the land 
use element section of this plan.  
 
The 2017 Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan included a hydraulic capacity analysis of the 
existing sewer collection system using a computer software modeling program called 
InfoSewer.  The entire city was divided into eight sewer basin areas, shown in Figure S2 of 
the Utilities Element.  Interceptors within the eight areas were at least 10 inches in diameter 
or greater.  The eight areas include the existing service areas named as follows:  A1, A2, A4, 
CW, A26, B13, E2A, and F1.  The future service areas are named as follows:  Nanevicz, 
North McNeely, Central McNeely, South McNeely, Van Sickle, Shay/Rainier School, TAN-
W, TAN-E, Elk Heights, EM, and SE.  Currently, approximately 1,100 acres are being 
served by the City’s collection system.  The future service area will include an additional 800 
acres for a total of approximately 1,900 acres in the City’s collection system.  The amount of 
sanitary flow is determined by the contribution per capita and the calculated population.  The 
population density assumes the land is fully developed to the level allowed by the 
corresponding land use designation.  The future peak flow of 2.88 mgd was used in the 
modeling. 
 
All recommended pipe replacement projects include lowering the pipeline elevation and 
increasing the pipe’s existing slope.  These modifications will allow the system to serve 
outlying areas primarily by gravity. 
 
The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system identified from 
modeling and studies discussed above and are shown in Figure S3 of the Utilities Element. 
 
Gravity Sewer Main Projects 

 
G-1.  Alley to the East of Edith Street–construct 450 LF of new 8” PVC from Park 

Avenue to Dundass Street. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
118



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 37 of 72 

G-2.  Spiketon Road-construct 500 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to A Street. 
G-3.  Alley between Cascade Street and Edith Street-construct 450 LF of new 8” 

PVC from Dundass Avenue to Park Avenue. 
G-4.   Near 550 Balm Street- construct 200 LF of new 8” PVC. 
G-5.  Spiketon Road–construct 900 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to 649 

Spiketon Road. 
G-6. Alley between Naches Street and Second Street–construct 1,000 LF of new 8” 

PVC, from Park Avenue to Mason Avenue.  
G-7.  Sergeant Road-construct 700 LF of new 8” PVC from Whitmore Way to 

Collins Road. 
 
Trunk Sewer Main Projects 
 

T-1.  McNeely Street South, East on Mason to State School 
Property Line, South to Ryan Road to Klink Street-construct 
4,800 LF of new 12” PVC. 

 
AREA LIFT STATIONS 
 

There is presently sewer service to the elementary and middle schools 
which are located in the most southerly and westerly area of the GMA 
boundary via a 6-inch force main along SR 410 and a school district 
maintained lift station.  The existing topography of this area would 
dictate that gravity mains flow towards the most northerly and 
westerly area of the proposed development limits.  To convey flows 
completely by gravity from the most outlying areas to the treatment 
plant would require sewer piping installation of depths, over 25 feet.  
This type of system is not viewed as financially feasible because of 
these depths and the glacial till underlying most of the area.  An 
alternative is the installation of lift stations sized to serve the 
developing population.   

 
 The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system that are remedied 
by lift stations and force main projects: 
 
Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 

L-1.  South Spiketon Road Lift Station - 500 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency 
Generator. 

F-1.  South Spiketon Road-construct 1,300 LF of new 6” Ductile Iron Force Main.  
L-2.  Hinkleman Road Lift Station – 200 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-2.  Hinkleman Road-construct 3.800 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 
L-3.  East 112th Street Lift Station – 250 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-3.  East 112th Street-construct 2,400 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main  
L-4.  West 112th Street Lift Station – 150 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-4.  West 112th Street-construct 2.300 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
119



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 38 of 72 

 
 

COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION 
 
The system improvements and/or extensions noted above do not include additional projects 
that need to be completed for the continued improvement of the older segments of the 
collection system.  The City will complete TV inspection work and disconnection of roof, 
yard, and cellar drains as previously recommended to City.  The City will also analyze and 
collect additional flow data, conduct limited system evaluation and complete spot repairs, 
perform mainline and side sewer rehabilitation of existing sewers as identified in I/I Program 
and system evaluation. 
 
TREATMENT SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service  
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sewage treatment plant was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, DOE, 2008.  Average design flows were established from an 
average demand of 108 gallons per day per capita, and the expected service population.  
Projected wastewater flows in 2035 are 1.07 mgd annual average flow and 1.60 mgd 
maximum monthly flow. 
 
In addition to hydraulic design criteria, there are also loading criteria for LOS.  Typically 
loading criteria are established for Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD5) and Total Suspended 
Solids (TSS).  For BOD, 0.2 lbs/day per capita was utilized for design loadings; for TSS, 
0.17 lbs/day per capita were utilized. Both values are consistent with Criteria of Sewage 
Design.  Historic phosphorus literature data was used to size the nutrient removal 
components to be added treatment plant. 
 
The existing sewage treatment plant is permitted NPDES WA-00-2336-1 which was issued 
May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended that permit 
and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the limitations 
specified in the expired permit.  This permit establishes reporting requirements and 
performance criteria for the discharge of treated wastewater and the quality of wastewater 
sludge.  Phosphorus limits are not included in this permit, but are anticipated in the next 
permit cycle.  The values shown below represent the limits on what the treatment plant can 
discharge to the White River under the existing permit. 
 

Table CF-13 NPDES Permit Limits 
 

Parameter Monthly Average Weekly Average 
5-day Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand 

30 mg/L 
134 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
201 lb/day 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 30 mg/L  
114 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
171 lb/day 

Fecal Coliform Bacteria 200/100 ml 100/100 ml 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
120



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 39 of 72 

pH Shall not be outside the range of 6.5-8.5 
Total Residual Chlorine 9 ug/L 23 ug/L 
Total Ammonia (as N)  
May1 – Oct.31 

2.6 mg/L 7.43 mg/L 
62 lbs./day 

Total Ammonia (as N) 
Nov. 1 – Apr. 30 

4.5 mg/L 10.5 mg/L 

Total Copper Interim 27 ug/L 
Final 11.13 ug/L 

Interim 38.5 ug/L 
Final 16.24 ug/L 

 
A review of monthly reports for the period of 2009 to 2017 indicated that the plant did not 
fail to meet these discharge limits. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The current plant was designed to accommodate an average flow of 1.0 mgd and has a peak 
hydraulic capacity of 2.7 mgd. 
 
The system components include headworks/grit removal, two oxidation ditches, two 
clarifiers, chlorination/dechlorination, and a mechanical building housing sludge pumps and 
dewatering equipment.  The headworks of the facility consists of the influent channel, a bar 
screen, a degritter, a grinder, an adjustable flow splitter and effluent channels to the oxidation 
ditches.  From the headworks, influent enters the oxidation ditches where the main treatment 
process occurs.  Effluent is then transported to the clarifier units where solids are separated 
from liquid and either recirculated to the oxidation ditches or wasted to the sludge disposal 
system.  Effluent from the clarifiers enters the dual chlorine contact tanks prior to discharge 
into the White River via a 14-inch outfall pipe. 

 
Treatment System Improvements 

 
The City of Buckley completed major improvements to the exiting wastewater treatment, 
effluent disposal, and biosolids processing systems in 2008.  
 
The needs for these improvements are being driven by two factors.  The first is the 
implementation of phosphorous limitations for discharges to the White River.  Buckley 
currently operates a conventional secondary wastewater treatment plant.  The White River 
has been the location of the City’s treated wastewater effluent discharge.  A Total Maximum 
Daily Load (TMDL) study was performed on the White River and it was determined that 
phosphorous loadings were a threat to the health of the river.  A subsequent Waste Load 
Allocation (WLA) has determined that Buckley must reduce its phosphorous loadings to the 
river.  A conventional secondary treatment is not capable of removing phosphorous to the 
level required by the WLA, so the City proceeded with improvements necessary to remove 
phosphorous. 
 
The second factor is the need to accommodate additional growth in the Buckley Urban 
Growth Area (UGA).  The current customer base for the wastewater system consists of 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
121



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 40 of 72 

approximately 4,300 persons.  This customer base is expected to increase to 8,000 by the 
year 2035.  
 
With the substantial treatment plant upgrades completed, the City plans to make a minor 
revision to one of the plant systems and to evaluate improvements needed for reuse water to 
be distribute 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
 

TP-1.  WWTP Non-Potable Water System Upgrades 
TP-2.  WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Collection System 
 
 CF-14 presents a capital improvement plan for collection system requirements.  The table 
lists the year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects 
are described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the collection system 
improvements were taken from the City of Buckley Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan, 
August 2017. 
 

Table CF-14 Gravity Sewer and Trunk Sewer Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (2019) 

G-1 2018 Sewer Capital Project Fund $151,000 
G-2 2020 Sewer Capital Project Fund $180,000 
G-3 2018 Sewer Capital Project Fund $155,000 
G-4 2018 Sewer Capital Project Fund $101,000 
G-5 2020 Sewer Capital Project Fund $284,000 
G-6 2021 Sewer Capital Project Fund $325,000 
G-7 2021 Sewer Capital Project Fund $190,000 
T-1 2020 50% Developer Extension,    

50% Sewer Cap. Project Fund 
$1,633,000 

 
 

Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 
 CF-15 presents a capital improvement plan for the area lift station and force main projects.  
The table lists the year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The 
projects are described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the lift station and 
force main improvements were taken from the City of Buckley Draft Sewer Comprehensive 
Plan, August 2017.   
 

Table CF-15 Lift Station and Force Main Projects 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
122



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 41 of 72 

 
Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (2019) 

L-1 2019 Developer Extension $650,000 
F-1 2019 Developer Extension $50,000 
L-2 2021 Developer Extension $300,000 
F-2 2021 Developer Extension $710,000 
L-3 2023 Developer Extension $350,000 
F-3 2023 Developer Extension $450,000 
L-4 2025 Developer Extension $250,000 
F-4 2025 Developer Extension $430,000 

 
 

Treatment Plant Improvements 
 

 CF-16 presents a capital improvement plan for the Treatment Plant Improvements.  The  lists 
the year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the treatment plant improvements 
were taken from the City of Buckley Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan, August 2017  
  

Table CF-16 Treatment Plant Improvements 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (2019)  

TP-1 2018 Sewer Capital Fund  $158,000 
TP-2 2020 Sewer Capital Fund $100,000 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The revenue to operate and maintain the City of Buckley’s sewer system is collected through 
a monthly service charge.  Each single family and mobile home sewer account is charged a 
flat rate of $77.99 per month.  Multi-family residences are charged a flat rate of $65.89 per 
month.  Non-system sewage disposal within the City is $275.66 per one hundred-five cubic 
feet.  Commercial sewer accounts are charged $77.99 plus $3.05 per 100 cubic feet in excess 
of nine hundred cubic feet of water per month.  Based on the financial analysis in the 2017 
Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan, the rates are not required to increase.  The City plans to 
convert to an alternate rate structure with a base charge and a volume charge. 
 
The general facilities charge for the City sewer system is $8,100 for each single-family 
residence, $6,075 for each multi-family dwelling, and $8,100 for each equivalent residential 
unit, for all other uses. 
 
There are four principal ways that the improvements outlined in this sanitary sewer section 
can be financed aside from setting aside a portion of the monthly service charge.  Rates and 
charges must be maintained at an adequate level to ensure a sufficiency of funds to properly 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
123



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 42 of 72 

maintain and operate the system and provide funds for construction of the projects identified 
through a combination of cash contributions and debt financing. 
 

A. Developer Financing 
 
Developers of presently unimproved property will finance many of the new facilities 
constructed in the City.  All of the improvements required for service to property with new 
plats or commercial developments will be designed and constructed in accordance with the 
City’s developer project policies.  In some cases, latecomer’s agreements may be executed 
for any sewer main serving property other than the property owned by the developer that is 
financing the project. 
 

B. B.Combination Financing by the City and Developers 
 
It may be necessary in some cases to require the owner to construct a larger diameter line 
than is required by the current development in order to support the comprehensive 
development of the City’s sewer system.  The City may enter into a latecomer’s agreement or 
reimburse the developer for the extra cost of increasing the size of the line over that required 
to serve the property under development.  Oversizing should be considered when it is 
necessary to construct any pipe over 10 inches in diameter in single-family residential areas 
to comply with the sewer capital facilities plan.  Construction of any pipe in residential, 
multiple family, or commercial areas that is larger than the size required to serve that 
development is considered oversizing. 
 

C. Revenue Bond / General Obligation Bond 
 
Interceptor, lift station, force main and treatment plant improvements that are a general 
benefit to a major portion of the City may be financed by revenue bonds or general obligation 
bonds.  Improvements that will benefit primarily a single developer should be financed by 
the developer of the property.  The City may use whatever funds are available for the 
payment of the debt service on the revenue bonds.  A major source of these funds is from the 
sewer rate revenues from the City customers.  However, all funds, such as general facility 
fees, connection charges or latecomer charges, may be used for debt service.  Sewer system 
improvements that will service many different property owners in areas that are already 
developed may be financed through the establishment of a local improvement district (LID).  
The financing is accomplished through the sale of revenue bonds or general obligation bonds.  
These bonds are retired with income from the assessments and/or other funds of the City. 
 

D. Grant Funds / Loans 
 
State and federal authorities provide funds under various grant programs for the construction 
of major improvements to or rehabilitation of sewer systems.  Programs available include 
Centennial Clean Water Grant Fund (CCWF), State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF), United 
States Department of Agriculture Rural Development (USDA RD), and Public Works Trust 
Fund Loan Program (PWTF). 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
124



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 43 of 72 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
125



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 44 of 72 

 
VI. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND 

TREATMENT 
 
The storm and surface water drainage utility is owned, operated and maintained by the City 
and provides drainage, flood control, and protection of environmentally sensitive areas such 
as wetlands, steep slopes and stream corridors.  For the most part, the original system is 
somewhat antiquated and consists of piping materials and construction methods, which were 
employed nearly 60 years ago.  The majority of this original drainage network was 
completed using clay tile piping with open joint construction.  Over time, this piping has 
deteriorated to an extremely poor condition, with several areas needing immediate 
improvements. 
 
The City utilities department has completed some improvements to the system over the years.  
The installation of new piping systems and improvements to existing drainage channels has 
substantially increased the hydraulic performance of the existing system.  Current growth and 
expected growth will require more improvements and additions to the existing system.  The 
existing storm drainage system is shown in Figure D1 of the Utilities Element. 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the City’s stormwater conveyance system is to convey the 
25-year storm event.  The City of Buckley has adopted the Ecology Stormwater Management 
Manual for Western Washington (2012), as the City’s technical manual (BMC 14.30.061).  
The City has also adopted the Low Impact Development Technical Guidance Manual for 
Puget Sound (LID Manual). 
 
Moving stormwater within the City is difficult, due to the flat topography and minimal 
natural grade within the City to convey surface water runoff.  The area, prior to development, 
was dominated by wetlands and lies within the flood plain of the White River.  Several areas 
are serviced by open ditches, which convey water into the pipe collection system or into an 
open, uninhabited area. 
 
TREATMENT 
 
As stated previously, the City has adopted Ecology’s 2012 Stormwater Management Manual, 
which describes in detail the methods and practices for mitigating stormwater runoff impacts.  
 

Level of Service 
 
The Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE) has enacted certain guidelines and 
rules for the management of stormwater.  The requirements include provisions for the 
following:  ordinances to control off-site water quality, the use of source Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), effective water quality treatment for the design storm, use of infiltration 
where possible, erosion and sediment control, the protection of wetlands and stream 
channels; operation and maintenance programs for new and existing stormwater systems; 
record keeping of drainage system facilities; adoption of Ecology's Technical Manual or 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
126



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 45 of 72 

equivalent; education programs for the general public; coordination with the Growth 
Management Act; and basin planning. 
 
The City adopted stormwater management regulations are included in Buckley Municipal 
Code Chapter 14.30.  The activities covered under this regulation include land disturbing 
activities, structural development including construction, installation or expansion of a 
building or other structure, creation of impervious surfaces, Class IV general forest practices 
that are conversions from timber land to other uses, subdivision, short subdivision and 
binding site plans and redevelopment. 
 
The level of service chosen for new conveyance facilities is to provide the conveyance 
capacity of the 100-year, 24-hour event. 

 
COLLECTION 
 

Level of Service 
 
The Pierce County ordinance requires the City to develop a Storm Drainage Plan that 
describes how all storm drainage impacts will be mitigated for any existing or future project.  
This plan is required if the project consists of or results in high housing densities, changes in 
the drainage patterns, contains wetlands or swales, filling, sensitive areas, is tributary to any 
pothole off-site, changes to the runoff coefficient, changes in erosion characteristics, or if 25 
percent of the surface area becomes impervious. 
 
This plan must include a description of the property prior to development, as it exists now, 
and how it might be modified in the future; details of the topography, basin, and soils; 
downstream drainage analysis, and calculations of the runoff rates and volumes that would 
occur for the 25-year event.  In addition, the plan must include recommendations and 
construction projects necessary to manage any runoff problems. 
 
The importance of a storm drainage plan, and of properly managing storm runoff, is 
significant step in alleviating potential future drainage issues.  By detaining, retaining, or 
allowing storm runoff to infiltrate, citizens, property and environmentally sensitive areas are 
better protected from flooding, erosion, depleted groundwater and summer base flows, and 
pollution. 
 

System Inventory 
 
The City’s storm drainage network is comprised of numerous catch basins and storm drain 
manholes, piping ranging in size from 6 to 36 inches, year and/or area draws, detention 
ponds/pipes and an extensive network of storm drainage ditches that includes culverts and 
outlet channels.  Several areas are either not currently serviced or are inadequately serviced.  
Areas slated for development or currently without service will require improvements before 
any development can continue, in order to mitigate flooding and other impacts. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
127



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 46 of 72 

The City does not currently provide storm drainage for the State of Washington Rainier 
School.  The Rainier School is located along the easterly City limit and encompasses nearly 
160 acres.  The School directs a majority of its stormwater through a privately maintained 
system to an outfall in the White River, north of the City.  It is believed that the south 
campus, approximately 70 acres in area, channels storm runoff into the City’s drainage 
system located along and within the Ryan Road corridor. 
 
The collector and drainage infrastructure, as it presently exists, predominantly conveys water 
to both the north and west areas of the City to ultimately discharge into the Puget Power 
Flume and the White River Basin.  Areas to the south and east part of the City, which are less 
developed, discharge drainage flows south into the Spiketon Creek Basin area.  The City’s 
existing storm drainage system in included as Figure D1 of the Utilities Element.   
 
To analyze the existing and required future storm drainage capacities, the Urban Growth 
Area was segregated into fourteen individual drainage basins.  Some of the basins were 
divided into smaller sub-basins for the purpose of analysis.  This was accomplished based on 
the present system’s configuration and outfall locations as well as the general topography of 
the Buckley Basin.  These individual drainage basins are shown in Figure D2 of the Utilities 
Element.  Existing conveyance piping and stormwater outfall locations were surveyed to 
estimate the maximum available capacity at discharge points.  Previously, City standards 
relied on the “Yrjanainen and Warren” (Y&W) method of hydraulic analysis.  The Ecology 
Manual uses the “Unit Hydrograph Analysis Methods” for estimating storm run off volumes 
and rates as the preferred method for estimating runoff.  The Comprehensive Flood Hazard 
Management Plan for Buckley used the Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph Method to analyze 
10, 25, 100, and 500- year storm events.  The analysis reflected existing conditions as well as 
impervious areas that are likely to result from the Comprehensive Plan – designated 
development.  The existing drainage conditions, outfall capacities, and estimated future 
drainage flows were then reviewed to determine storm sewer improvements necessary to 
decrease flood potential.  There are several basins within the City with inadequate storm 
drainage.  The City lies in a relatively flat area, which makes management of drainage 
challenging. In addition, previous storm drainage detention standards either did not include 
detention, or included a 25-year Y&W detention analysis.  These standards proved to be 
inadequate during the 1996 and 1997 floods.  Some of the areas needing improvements 
simply require larger pipes or open channels.  For others, increasing conveyance will move 
existing flooding to another location.  In addition to these conveyance system mitigation 
measures, alternatives including construction of detention facilities and restoration of historic 
drainage patterns must be considered. 
 
The City currently experiences flooding and ponding in areas which are not provided with 
adequate storm drainage.  Some of the areas needing improvement simply require larger 
pipes or open channels, while others have no conveyance system in place.  Areas now being 
proposed for development will need upgrades to existing conveyance systems before any 
development can be completed.  Areas of large impervious surfaces will result in flooding 
and erosion leading to property damage, unless an adequate drainage system is constructed. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
128



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 47 of 72 

The previously completed sanitary sewer infiltration/inflow report recommends that once 
improvements to the sanitary system have been completed and sewage flows are redirected 
into the new network, the old sanitary sewer pipe can be used to collect, convey and 
discharge storm runoff.  The stormwater improvements outlined herein have been selected 
based on the use of the existing storm sewers capacity.  Additional drainage capacity could 
be achieved by the conversion of sanitary piping, and may be completed during sanitary 
system improvement projects, not included as a part of this analysis. 
 
The City’s existing storm drain outfall locations were surveyed and reviewed to estimate 
existing basin discharge capacities.  These estimates were then compared with both the 
existing drainage flows and future estimated maximum runoff flows to determine the current 
and future levels of service.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
129



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 48 of 72 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs  
 
The following project descriptions and recommendations for construction projects have been 
selected based on a review of the City’s existing storm drainage conditions.  These 
improvements are targeted to remove existing storm conveyance problems within the City.  
Each of the selected projects is to be completed with systems that will adequately pass the 
runoff from the future “build-out” developments that are presently anticipated.  The 
recommended piping has been selected to comply with the City standards, which require 
commercial and high value areas to convey a 100-year storm event at maximum development 
expected to occur in each area. 
 
Each of the indicated stormwater system improvement projects indicated in Figure D3 of the 
Utilities Element, have been proposed based on both future development and existing 
conditions.  Figure D3 indicates capital improvements recommended for the 6-year and 20-
year time frames.  The main trunk lines of each basin’s system have been shown and outfall 
locations have been selected to take advantage of existing topographic conditions.  
Improvements to the existing sanitary sewer system or roadways may significantly impact 
the development of these projects. 
 
The projects are taken from the May 2008 City of Buckley Comprehensive Stormwater 
Management Plan (CSMP) and are listed in order of priority. 
 
Stormwater Capital Improvement Projects 
 
CIP 1 – Spiketon Bridge involves the installation of a 12-foot-wide by 3-foot-tall bridge 
section at the Spiketon Road crossing. This will replace the two 24-inch concrete pipes at 
Spiketon Road and will help minimize flooding currently experienced in this area during a 
100-year storm event. 
 
CIP 2 – Dundass Avenue is a project that was brought to the attention of City staff by a 
resident in 2006. This project includes connecting 135 linear feet of new 12-inch pipe 
between 3rd Street and 4th Street to the existing storm system. The installation of this pipe 
should alleviate the flooding seen in this area.  
 
CIP 3 – The Sheets Road Diversion project involves the diversion of flow from Spiketon 
Ditch to the ditch along the east side of Sheets Road. This ditch flows north, under Ryan 
Road, and then along the west side of the Rainier School property where it crosses Collins 
Road, and eventually discharges to the PSE Flume. In diverting water north along Sheets 
Road, flooding will be lessened on the properties surrounding Spiketon Ditch west of Sheets 
Road. This project involves the upgrade of existing Sheets Road driveway culverts to 36-inch 
pipes and the replacement of a 36-inch pipe south of Collins Road with 1,025 linear feet of 
60-inch pipe. Flow splitters will also be needed to direct flow north along Sheets Road, and 
then again near Ryan Road where 
flow will need to be disbursed between the existing 18-inch and 24-inch pipes in this area.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
130



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 49 of 72 

CIP 4 – The Division Street (Ryan Road Diversion) project is a temporary measure to 
implement prior to the installation of a 48-inch pipe that will connect runoff from Ryan Road 
to the existing 48-inch pipes in Hinkelman Extension. The purpose of the Division Street 
project is to divert water from Ryan Road south along Division Street. 
By doing so, the first 645 linear feet of pipe will need to be replaced with 24-inch pipe.  In 
addition, 100 linear feet of ditch will need to be rehabilitated near the south end of Division 
Street. 
 
CIP 5 – The Hinkleman Road East Basin is a 58-acre basin that drains to the north via a ditch 
across private property midway between the Hinkleman Extension and Mundy Loss Road.  
The recommended improvements in this basin include the installation of 2,685 linear feet of 
36-inch pipe on the south side of Hinkelman Road. The drainage should be directed east, 
opposite of its current flow direction, to the 
48-inch storm sewer system installed in the Hinkleman Road Extension.  
 
CIP 6 – The Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Road Extension project was noted above as the 
installation of 3,440 linear feet of 48-inch pipe. This pipe will connect the Ryan Road storm 
system to the existing 48-inch pipes at Hinkelman Extension. The pipes will extend west of 
the intersection of Ryan Road and Division Street, west toward 
112th Street East.  This project has been completed as part of the SR410/SR165 Realignment 
Project.  The completed project has improved the flooding seen along Ryan Road and A 
Street  and has helped restore the flow back to its natural discharge location.  
 
CIP 7 – The McNeely basin includes the area between McNeely Road and the WSU Dairy 
Farm property, and is bounded on the south by Collins Road and the north by the PSE flume. 
The improvements in this basin are listed as the seventh priority of the CIP plan. The basin is 
lightly developed at this time. The ditch and driveway culverts that run north through this 
basin and along McNeely Road are not adequately sized to convey the 100-year event. The 
ditch should be rehabilitated for 354 linear feet, and 797 linear feet of pipe and culverts will 
need to be replaced with 24-inch pipes.  
 
CIPs 8 and 9 – Regional Treatment and Detention Feasibility Studies to identify the 
feasibility of installation of one or more regional stormwater treatment and detention ponds 
should be prepared. These projects were ranked eighth and ninth. The City will need the 
results of the feasibility study in order to evaluate alternatives for system improvements. The 
use of regional stormwater treatment and detention ponds could eliminate the need for 
multiple treatment and detention facilities located on private property. Regional ponds, 
because of their size, may provide better opportunities for water quality treatment and more 
effective maintenance.  
 
CIP 10 – The Elk Meadows Ditch project involves the enhancement of an existing ditch and 
culverts west of Sheets Road along private property. According to local residents, this area 
floods from Spiketon Ditch under extreme storm events. This project would involve the 
upgrade of three driveway culverts to two 3' x 3' box culverts and one 3' x 5' box culvert. In 
addition, 1,915 linear feet of ditch would need to be rehabilitated to handle the anticipated 
flow from a 100-year storm.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
131



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 50 of 72 

 
CIP 11 – The Spiketon Road project is a minor project that resulted from the hydraulic 
modeling done along Spiketon Road. Under the 100-year storm condition, a 242 linear foot 
section of ditch was found to have insufficient capacity. Therefore, it is recommended that a 
2' x 3' box culvert replace this ditch.  
 
CIP 12 – The Collins Road Basin includes the drainage systems along Collins Road, 
Sergeant Street, and Spruce Street.  The basin has a large number of drainage deficiencies 
and the continuing development in this basin will continue to exacerbate the problem. The 
improvements recommended in the Collins Road Basin include pipe and ditch replacement. 
Approximately 2,150 linear feet of 18-inch pipe and 1,464 linear feet of 24-inch pipe would 
be installed along Collins Road. South of Collins Road, 1,314 linear feet of parallel 36-inch 
pipe would be installed, which would then connect to the Collins Road system which 
continues northerly. From Collins Road north, the existing pipe would be replaced with 3,290 
linear feet of 60-inch pipe where it would then discharge into the PSE Flume.  
 
CIP 13 – The Ryan Road project includes the extension of the new 48-inch pipe of the 
Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Extension project. A 36-inch pipe was placed in Ryan Road 
during 2006 that extended from the Division Street/Ryan Road intersection east toward 
Spiketon Road. According to the hydraulic model, this pipe will need to be supplemented 
with 1,659 linear feet of a parallel 36-inch pipe. In addition, this project includes the 
installation of 3,175 linear feet of 36-inch pipe and 1,018 linear feet of 48-inch pipe.  
 
CIP 14 – The Downtown area consists of insufficient 18-inch pipes at the downstream end of 
the system in this basin. The Downtown project consists of replacing these 18-inch pipes 
with 140 linear feet of 24-inch pipes and 850 linear feet of 36-inch pipe. 
 
CIP 15 – The North Highway 410 project incorporates the replacement of existing pipes with 
1,240 linear feet of new 36-inch pipe and 210 linear feet of 48-inch pipe at the downstream 
end of this basin.  
 
CIP 16 – The River Avenue North project is similar to the Downtown and North Highway 
410 projects in that it includes the replacement of existing pipes with 1,720 linear feet of 36-
inch pipe at the downstream end of the stormwater system in this area. 
 
CIP 17 – The 112th Street Basin is bounded on the south by the high point in the topography 
south of 112th Street and Mundy Loss Road to the west.  The drainage problems here have 
been minor in nature, yet the hydraulic model indicated that during a 100-year storm along 
the west end of 112th Street, the existing pipes and ditch need to be replaced with 1,541 
linear feet of parallel 36-inch and 48-inch pipe.  
 
CIPs 18 and 19 – West Highway 410A and 410B are located on the south and north sides of 
SR 410, respectively. The results of the hydrologic/hydraulic model indicated that the ditch 
should be replaced with 5,520 linear feet of 24-inch pipe on the south side of SR 410. It was 
also found that 75 linear feet of 12-inch pipe should be installed on the 
north side of SR 410 along with 85 linear feet of ditch that should be rehabilitated.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
132



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 51 of 72 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Stormwater System 
 
 CF-17 presents a capital improvement plan for the stormwater system.  The  lists the year of 
completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are described in 
more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the stormwater system improvements were 
taken from the May 2008 City of Buckley Comprehensive Stormwater Management Plan. 
 

Table CF-17 Stormwater Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (2018)  

CIP-1 2019 Rates $700,000 
CIP-2 2018 Rates $77,500 
CIP-3 2019 Rates $672,500 
CIP-4 2020 Rates $277,500 
CIP-5 2021+ Rates $1,587,500 
CIP-6 Complete   
CIP-7 2021 Rates $438,750 
CIP-8 Complete   
CIP-9 2020  $10,000 
CIP-10 2021+  $476,250 
CIP-11 2021+ Rates $173,750 
CIP-12 2021+  $4,797,500 
CIP-13 2021+  $3,771,250 
CIP-14 2021+  $606,250 
CIP-15 2021+  $966,250 
CIP-16 2021+  $958,750 
CIP-17 2021+  $1,786,250 
CIP-18 2021+  $43,750 
CIP-19 2021+  $2,151,250 

 
 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The current Stormwater Utility rates are $22.64 per month for a single-family residence, 
$14.94 per month for multi-family residential units, and $22.64 per month per each 
equivalent service unit (ESU) for all other parcels.  An ESU is defined to mean 8,000 square 
feet of impervious surface area. 
 
In addition to the monthly stormwater utility fee, the City collects a surface water 
management general facilities charge of $7,578 per single-family residence or ESU (BMC 
14.28.140). 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
133



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 52 of 72 

 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
134



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 53 of 72 

VII. OTHER UTILITIES 
 

NATURAL GAS UTILITY 
 
The natural gas distribution utility is owned, operated, and maintained by the Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE).  
 
Company Overview:  Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing natural gas 
and electric service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region of Western Washington 
and portions of Eastern Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square 
miles.  PSE’s regional and local natural gas and electric planning efforts are integrated and 
centered on providing safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides natural 
gas to more than 770,000 customers, throughout 6 counties, covering approximately 2,900 
square-mile area.  As of 2017, PSE provides natural gas service to approximately 1,500 
customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE natural gas utility operations and 
standards are further regulated by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), including 
the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Administration (PHMSA).  PHMSA’s Pipeline Safety 
Enforcement Program is designed to monitor and enforce compliance with pipeline safety 
regulations.  This includes confirmation that operators are meeting expectations for safe, 
reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s pipeline infrastructure. PHMSA and 
the WUTC update pipeline standards and regulations on an ongoing basis to assure the 
utmost compliance with standards to ensure public safety. The residents within the City of 
Buckley rely on the coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and 
enforcement of ordinances and/or codes to support on the  safe, reliable, and environmentally 
sound construction, operation and maintenance of PSE’s natural gas facilities. 
 
INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLAN 
 
In order for PSE to meet its regulatory requirements, it updates and files an Integrated 
Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP identifies methods to 
provide dependable and cost effective natural gas service that address the needs of retail 
natural gas customers. Natural gas sales resource need is driven by design peak day demand. 
The current design standard ensures that supply is planned to meet firm loads on a 13-degree 
design peak day, which corresponds to a 52 Heating Degree Day (HDD).  Currently, PSE’s 
supply/capacity is approximately 970 MDth/Day at peak.  This figure will be updated in the 
fall of 2015. The IRP suggests the use of liquefied natural gas (LNG) for peak day supply 
and support the needs of emerging local maritime traffic and truck transport transportation 
markets. 
 
Natural Gas Supply: PSE controls its gas-supply costs by acquiring gas, under contract, 
from a variety of gas producers and suppliers across the western United States and Canada. 
PSE purchases 100 percent of its natural-gas supplies needed to serve its customers.  About 
half the natural gas is obtained from producers and marketers in British Columbia and 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
135



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 54 of 72 

Alberta, and the rest comes from Rocky Mountain States. All the gas PSE acquires is 
transported into PSE’s service area through large interstate pipelines owned and operated by 
Williams Northwest Pipeline. PSE buys and stores significant amounts of natural gas during 
the summer months, when wholesale gas prices and customer demand are low, and stores it 
in large underground facilities and withdraws it in winter when customer usage is highest; 
ensuring a reliable supply of gas is available. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley and adjacent communities with natural 
gas, PSE builds, operates, and maintains an extensive system consisting of transmission and 
distribution natural gas mains, odorizing stations, pressure regulation stations, heaters, 
corrosion protection systems, above ground appurtenances, and metering systems. When PSE 
takes possession of the gas from its supplier, it is distributed to customers through more than 
21,000 miles of PSE-owned natural gas mains and service lines.  
 
PSE receives natural gas transported by Williams Northwest Pipeline’s 36” and 30” high 
pressure transmission mains at pressures ranging from 500 PSIG to 960 PSIG.  The custody 
change and measurement of the natural gas occurs at locations known as Gate Stations.  PSE 
currently has 39 such locations throughout its service territory. This is also typically where 
the gas is injected with the odorant mercaptan.  Since natural gas is naturally odorless, this 
odorant is used so that leaks can be detected. The Gate Station is not only a place of custody 
transfer and measurement but is also a common location of pressure reduction through the 
use of “pressure regulators”.     Due to state requirements, the pressure is most commonly 
reduced to levels at or below 250 PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout 
PSE’s high pressure supply system in steel mains ranging in diameter of 2” to 20” until it 
reaches various other pressure reducing locations. PSE currently has 755 pressure regulating 
stations throughout its service territory. These locations consist of Limiting Stations, Heaters, 
District Regulators, and/or high pressure Meter Set Assemblies. 
 
The most common of these is the intermediate pressure District Regulator.  It is at these 
locations that pressures are reduced to the most common levels ranging from 25 PSIG to 60 
PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout  PSE’s intermediate pressure 
distribution system in mains of various materials consisting of  polyethylene and wrapped 
steel that range in diameters from 1-1/4” to 8” (and in a few cases, larger pipe). The gas 
flows through the intermediate pressure system until it reaches either a low pressure District 
Regulator or a customer’s Meter Set Assembly.  
To safeguard against excessive pressures throughout the supply and distribution systems due 
to regulator failure, over-pressure protection is installed.  This over-pressure protection will 
release gas to the atmosphere, enact secondary regulation, or completely shut off the supply 
of gas. To safeguard steel main against corrosion, PSE builds, operates, and maintains 
corrosion control mitigation systems to prevent damaged pipe as a result of corrosion. 
 
Future Projects: To meet the regional and City of Buckley natural gas demand, PSE’s 
delivery system is modified every year to address new or existing customer growth, load 
changes that require system reinforcement, rights-of-way improvements, and pipeline 
integrity issues.  The system responds differently year to year and PSE is constantly adding 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
136



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 55 of 72 

or modifying infrastructure to meet gas volume and pressures demands. At this time, there 
are no known major construction projects anticipated in the City of Buckley.  
 
Current and future system integrity work will include ongoing investigations throughout the 
city to determine the location of where gas lines have been cross bored through sewer lines 
and make subsequent repairs. 
 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES  
 
Puget Sound Energy (PSE) serves the City of Buckley. 
 
Company Overview: Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing electric and 
natural gas service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region and portions of Eastern 
Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square miles.   PSE’s regional 
and local electric and natural gas planning efforts are integrated and centered on providing 
safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides electrical power to more than 
1.2 million electric customers throughout 8 counties.  As of 2017, PSE provides electric 
service to approximately 2,000 customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE electric utility operations and 
standards are further governed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the 
National Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC), and the Western Electricity Coordinating 
Council (WECC). These respective agencies monitor, assess and enforce compliance and 
reliability standards for PSE. The residents of the City of Buckley and the region rely on the 
coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and enforcement  of ordinances 
and/or codes to protect transmission and distribution line capacity and support federal and 
state compliance of safe, reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s  electric  
facilities. Routine utility maintenance work, including vegetation management is required to 
maintain compliance with FERC, NERC, and WECC regulations.   
 
Integrated Resource Plan:   In order for PSE to meet regulatory requirements, it updates 
and files an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP) 
presents a long-term forecast of the lowest reasonable cost combination of resources 
necessary to meet the needs of PSE’s customers to provide dependable and cost effective 
service over the next 20 years. The current plan, which was filed in May of 2013, details both 
the energy supply and transmission resources needed to reliably meet customers’ wintertime, 
peak-hour electric demand over the next 20 years. The plan, which will be updated, 
forecasted that PSE would have to acquire approximately 4,900 megawatts of new power-
supply capacity by 2033. This resource need is driven mainly by expiring purchased-power 
contracts and expected population and economic growth in the Puget Sound region.  The IRP 
suggests that roughly more than half of the utility’s long-term electric resource need can be 
met by energy efficiency and the renewal of transmission contracts. This reduces the need 
down to 2,200 MW by 2033. The rest of PSE’s gap in long-term power resources, the IRP 
stated is likely to be met most economically with added natural gas-fired resources.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
137



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 56 of 72 

PSE generates approximately 46 percent of the electricity for its customers’ from its own 
generation specifically generation plants; hydro, thermal, solar and wind.  PSE currently has 
about 3,000 megawatts of power-generating capacity, and purchase the rest of its power 
supply from a variety of other utilities, independent power producers and energy marketers 
across the western United States and Canada. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley with electricity, PSE builds, operates, and 
maintains an extensive integrated electric system consisting of generating plants, 
transmission lines, substations, switching stations, sub-systems, overhead and underground 
distribution systems, attachments, appurtenances, and metering systems. 
 
Electricity provided by PSE to the City of Buckley is often produced elsewhere and is 
interconnected to the Northwest’s regional transmission grid through an extensive network of 
transmission facilities providing bulk transmission service to meet the demands of electricity 
customers within the region’s eight states. The PSE electric transmission facilities in the City 
of Buckley are important components of the electric energy delivery grid serving the Puget 
Sound region.  As electricity reaches the City of Buckley the voltage is reduced and 
redistributed through lower-voltage transmission lines, distribution substations, overhead and 
underground distribution lines, smaller transformers, and to individual meters. 
 
PSE will be prudently and systematically deploying smart grid technology at each level of 
infrastructure to enhance and automate monitoring, analysis, control and communications 
capabilities along its entire grid. Smart grid technologies can impact the electricity delivery 
chain from a power generating facility all the way to the end-use application of electrical 
energy inside a residence or place of business. The ultimate goals of smart grid are to enable 
PSE to offer more reliable and efficient energy service, and to provide customers with more 
control over their energy usage. 
 
Future Projects: To meet regional and City of Buckley electric demand, PSE is upgrading 
the existing 55 kilovolt (kV) substations and transmission lines between Electron Heights 
(vicinity of Kapowsin) and Enumclaw to 115 kV. The multi-year projects began in 2009 and 
entail converting the voltage of over 20 miles of transmission line between the Electron 
Heights and Krain Corner (Enumclaw) substations, installing roughly 1.5 miles of new 
transmission line in Enumclaw, as well as converting, upgrading or completely rebuilding 
four substations as well as constructing a new substation in Buckley and adding a fiber-optic 
line to existing transmission facilities between Buckley and Enumclaw. 
 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES  
 
The City of Buckley is served by CenturyLink.  Various facilities are located throughout the 
County and the City. 
 
Many of the telecommunication facilities are co-located with those of Puget Power.  Buckley 
has digital electronic facilities available through CenturyLink, which allow call forwarding 
and a number of other features to be available to the customer.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
138



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 57 of 72 

CenturyLink reacts to customer demands, since the telecommunications industry is required 
to provide service upon demand.  CenturyLink has indicated to the City that there is capacity 
for the City and its Urban Growth Area. 
 
Cellular telephone service is provided in the Buckley area by Comcast.  Cable TV is 
provided to the Buckley area by Comcast for areas surrounding the City.   
 
The provision of telecommunication services is driven by the needs of its customers.  As the 
city grows, telecommunication facilities will be upgraded to ensure adequate service levels.  
Facilities will be upgraded as technology advances. 
 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION  
 
The City contracts with D.M. Disposal Company for solid waste collection.  Collection is 
performed once a week. in the unincorporated portion of the Planning Area, solid waste is 
collected also by D.M. Disposal.   
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
The transportation system serving the residents of the City of Buckley has been analyzed as 
part of this initial step in the comprehensive planning process.  The detailed inventory and 
analysis are presented in the Transportation Element, which was adopted by the City in 
December, 2017.  According to the analysis there are significant transportation facilities 
required to support the growth projected within the UGA. 
 
The City of Buckley 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan, adopted in July, 2018 is 
included in CF-18.  The primary outside funding source for City transportation projects is the 
Washington State Transportation Improvement Board (TIB).  City funding of the local match 
for TIB funded projects is funded primarily by the street impact fees, which are currently 
$6,074 for each single-family home, $4,243 for each multi-family unit, and $638 per average 
daily trip (ADT) for non-residential, based on trip generation in the City’s adopted  based on 
the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual.    
 

Table CF-18 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan 
(2020 – 2025) 

 

Project 
Number Project Name 

Est 
Project 

Date 
Funding Source 

Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
1 Sergeant Street 2020 TIB, Local $421,000  
2 Cedar Street 2020 TIB, Local $280,700  
3 Naches Street 2020 TIB, Local $224,000  
4 River Avenue 2020 TIB, Local $352,500  
5 112th Street Resurfacing 2021 TIB, Local $207,700  
6 Spruce Street Reconstruct 2021 TIB, Local $319,000  
7 Naches Street Resurfacing 2021 TIB, Local $90,000  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
139



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 58 of 72 

Project 
Number Project Name 

Est 
Project 

Date 
Funding Source 

Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
8 Pearl & Jefferson Int Imp 2021 TIB, Local $80,000  
9 Mt. View Resurfacing 2021 TIB, Local $193,600  
10 Division St Imp Project 2022 TIB, Local $1,501,500  
11 Division Street Overlay 2022 TIB, Local $211,900  
12 Dundass Street Overlay 2022 TIB, Local $233,500  
13 Hinkleman Rd Resurfacing (Ph II) 2022 TIB, Local $160,200  
14 Jefferson Ave Overlay 2023 TIB, Local $689,500 
15 White River Bridge (Trail) 2023 Multi & Local $7,436,100 
16 View Place Overlay 2024 TIB, Local $29,200  
17 Whitmore Way Overlay (Ph II) 2024 TIB, Local $185,000  
18 Main Street Rehab 2024 TIB, Local $326,900  
19 River Ave & Main St Int Imp 2024 TIB, Local $1,247,100  
20 Spiketon Rd Ped Imp 2025 TIB, Local $1,258,500  
21 "A" Street Overlay 2025 TIB, Local $227,200  
22 Pearl Street Overlay 2025 TIB, Local $661,900  
23 Mundy Loss Ped Imp  2025 TIB, Local $433,100  
24 Ryan Road (Ph II) Reconstruct 2028 TIB, Local $3,075,100  
 
PARKS AND RECREATION  

 
The City of Buckley adopted its initial Parks and Recreation Element in December, 1996.  
The original Element was compiled through the collaborative effort of the Park Board, City 
Council, citizens and staff and resulted in a basic plan that the City could use to move 
forward in the development of park and recreation facilities and programs to meet the 
demands of a growing community.  The Park Board updated the Park and Recreation Plan in 
2004 and again in 2015 and it is intended to be used both as a “stand-alone” document and as 
an element of the City of Buckley Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Level of Service 
 
The Parks & Recreation Level of Services Standards included in the 2015 update are as 
follows: 
 

Table CF-19 Parks & Recreation LOS Standards 
 

Facility Acres/Units/pop 
Mini-Park 0.25 acre:1,000 
Neighborhood Park 1.0 acre:1,000 
Community Park 5.0 acre:1,000 
Sports Complex  

• Softball Fields 1 facility:2,000 
• Baseball Fields 1 facility:2,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
140



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 59 of 72 

Facility Acres/Units/pop 
• Basketball Courts 1 facility:3,500 
• Soccer Fields 1 facility:3,500 
• Volleyball (Outdoor) 1 facility:4,000 
• Tennis Courts 1 facility:4,000 

Special Facilities  
• Skate Park 1 facility:7,500 
• Splash Park 1 facility:7,500 
• Climbing Rock 1 facility:7,500 
• Pump/Bicycle Track 1 facility:7,500 

Pathways  
• Park Trails 1.0 mile:2,000 
• All Terrain Bike Trail 0.5 mile:3,000 

 
In addition to a population based LOS city staff and planning commission recommended that 
the complimentary levels of development adopted in the 2004 Park and Recreation Plan be 
retained for neighborhood and community parks, except that the Level of Development for 
each category 1-3 should be the same for each type of park. While overall features and 
facilities may be different at the two types of facilities, the needs associated with use of the 
facilities remain the same. Parking, restrooms and picnic areas are basic amenities that 
should be provided at each neighborhood or community park facility to support use. So the 
minimum level of development for neighborhood and community parks should be a Level 2. 
At Level 3 the facility is expected to be fully developed whether it’s a neighborhood park or 
a community park. The adopted complimentary levels of development are as follows: 
 
 Neighborhood Parks and Community Parks – Level of Development 

 
 Level 1 provides rough grading, fencing, fire hazard mowing, and brush/trash 

removal; it is intended to reduce liability and unsightliness. 
 
 Level 2 provides fine grading, seeding, limited parking facilities, playground 

equipment, restroom, picnic facilities, back stop panel and signage; it is 
intended to offer a basic level of park improvements and usability. 

 
 Level 3 provides sports/tennis courts, asphalt trails, picnic shelters, 

landscaping, interpretive areas, and irrigation; it is intended to provide a full 
level of service for a range of intensive uses. 

 
Inventory of System 

 
 CF-20 includes the City of Buckley’s existing park and recreational facilities. 
 

Table CF-20 Existing Inventory of Facilities 
 

Existing Facility Size of Facility 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
141



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 60 of 72 

Existing Facility Size of Facility 
Thunderbird Park 0.4 acres 
‘A’ Street Mini Park 0.25 acres 
Mt. View Mini Park 0.25 acres 
Elk Heights Mini Park 1.0 acre 
River Avenue Park 1.0 acre 
Vanhoof Park 2.6 acres 
Miller Park 3.5 acres 
White River Athletic Fields 8.0 acres 
Riverside Park 1.0 acres 
Mundy-Loss Passive 5.0 acres 

Total 23.0 acres 
Sports Complex Facilities Number 

Baseball Fields 1 
Softball Fields 4 
Basketball Courts 1 
Soccer Fields 0 
Volleyball (outdoor) 0 
Tennis Courts 0 

Total 6 
Special Facilities Number 

Skate Park 1 
Splash Park 0 
Climbing Rock 0 
Pump/Bicycle Track 0 

Pathways Length 
Park Trails 2.37 miles 
All Terrain Bike Trail 0.0 miles 

 
Facility Needs 

 
 CF-21 includes the Parks and Recreation facility needs based on population projections for 
years 2015 and 2025. 
 

Table CF-21 Parks and Recreation Facility Needs 
 

Park Facility Size for 2015 
Population 

Size for 2025 
Population 

Mini Park 1.15 acres 1.64 acres 
Neighborhood Park 4.62 acres 6.55 acres 
Community Park 23.08 acres 32.74 acre 

Sports Complex Facilities Number Number 
Baseball Fields 2.31 3.27 
Softball Fields 2.31 3.27 
Basketball Courts 1.32 1.387 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
142



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 61 of 72 

Park Facility Size for 2015 
Population 

Size for 2025 
Population 

Soccer Fields 1.32 1.87 
Volleyball (outdoor) 1.15 1.64 
Tennis Courts 1.15 1.64 

Special Facilities Number Number 
Skate Park 0.62 0.87 
Splash Park 0.62 0.87 
Climbing Rock 0.62 0.87 
Pump/Bicycle Track 0.62 0.87 

Pathways Length Length 
Park Trails 2.31 miles 3.27 miles 
All Terrain Bike Trail 0.77 miles 1.09 miles 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Parks and Recreation 
 
 CF-22 presents a capital improvement plan for the Parks and Recreation system.  The  lists 
the year of completion and the source of funding for each project.  The projects are described 
in more detail in the Parks and Recreation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.   
 

Table CF-22 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement 
Schedule 

 
No. Project Years Estimated  

Project 
Cost (2018) 

P-1 Miller Neighborhood Park 2018–2023 $823,226 
P-2 City Ag-Land Multi-Use Community 

Park 
2019-2025 $3,741,300 

P-3 Lot #19 South of Youth Center 2019-2024 $765,000 
P-4 White River Property west of SR410 2019-2025 $146,875 

 Total  $5,476,401 
 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The City of Buckley collects revenues for capital improvements, which may be used as a 
source of funding for park and recreation facilities (when not dedicated for other purposes, 
i.e. water or sewer).  These funds are being deposited into the following three funds: 
 
Fund 135:  This fund, otherwise known as the “Park and Construction Fund” (or the “Park 
and Open Space Fund”), consists of revenues collected from the “Impact Fee for Parks and 
Recreation Facilities,” which are currently $1,625 for each single-family home, $1,332 for 
each multi-family unit.  Collection of this fee is authorized under BMC 3.50.040.  These 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
143



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 62 of 72 

funds can be used only for the acquisition, construction, improvements, maintenance, and 
repair of parks, open space, and recreational facilities. 
 

Fund 137:  This fund is known as the “Capital Improvements Fund”, and consists of 
revenues collected from a one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) excise fee levy on real 
property transaction, authorized under State law.  These funds may be spent for 
capital improvements or facilities provided by State law, such as streets, utility 
facilities, and parks. 

 
Fund 308:  This fund, known as the “Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvements Fund”, and 
authorized under Section 36 of the Growth Management Act, consists of revenues collected 
from another one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) excise fee levy on real property 
transactions.  These funds may be spent only on capital facilities identified in a capital 
facilities element of a Comprehensive Plan, adopted in accordance with the requirements of 
the Growth Management Act.   
 
 CF-23 shows the Parks and Recreation capital improvement projects, year or completion, 
funding source, and estimated project cost. 
 

Table CF-23 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement 
Funding Sources 

 
Project Year of 

Completion 
Funding Source Estimated 

Project Cost 
(2018) 

P-1 2023 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $823,226 
P-2 2025 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $3,741,300 
P-3 2024 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $765,000 
P-4 2025 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $146,875 

 
MUNICIPAL FACILITIES  
 
The facilities for public administration including City Hall, library, Public Works, Fire 
Station and Police Station are currently in good condition.  As the population in the City 
grows, the concomitant growth in City services will require additional facilities.  The extent 
of the need will depend on several key factors including the amount of growth, the pace of 
new growth, and the level of service expected to be provided. 
 
The inventory collected during this phase of the comprehensive planning process did not 
include information about the quality of social services provided through the local 
government, educational facilities, churches, emergency services, and the library.  As a 
result, it is not possible to provide a reasonable estimate of potential future needs beyond a 
qualitative evaluation that City staff and policy-makers need to address these issues in 
subsequent iterations of the planning process. 
 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
144



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 63 of 72 

CF-24 includes the planned Public Facilities Project in the City. 
 

Table CF-24 Public Facilities Projects 
 

Project Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project 

Cost 
(2018) 

Building / Planning Remodel 2019 Local $105,000 
Public Works Admin Bldg Ph. 3 2019 Local $130,000 
Remodel City Hall 2021 Local $100,000 
Foothills Trail Parking/Trailhead 2019 RCO Grant/Local $200,000 
Public Works Storage Facility 2020 Local $100,000 

 
 
FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES  
 
A new Fire Station was completed in 2012 on Division Street to the south of Ryan Road.  
The projected was funded via voter approved bond.  The facility is roughly 20,000 square 
feet and should meet the needs of the City for the 20-year horizon and beyond. 
 
POLICE PROTECTION  
 
Although the City of Buckley is a relatively small and rural community, the Buckley Police 
Department is a full service police agency.  The Buckley Police Department delivers the 
same, if not better, police service to its citizens than larger metropolitan agencies.  The City 
of Buckley Police Department provides the following services. 
 

• Enhanced E-911 Police and Fire emergency dispatching 
• 24-hour police patrol coverage 
• Part-time police coverage for the Town of Carbonado 
• Technical accident investigation 
• Specialized Police K-9 Unit 
• Crime follow-up investigations 
• State certified reserve officer training academy 
• Three full-time detention officers 
• Assigned patrol vehicles 
• State accreditation 
• State approved emergency operations plan 
• First level supervision training for supervisors 
• Computerization of police records 
• Narcotics investigations 
• Gang resistance education training 
• Neighborhood officer assignments (community policing) 
• Modern state-of-the-art communications center 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
145



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 64 of 72 

 
Police Facilities  

 
One of the most urgent needs of the Buckley Police Department is the upgrading and 
expansion of department facilities.  The current facility needs to be upgraded as funding 
becomes available.  The Police Department needs to provide its employees with a productive 
working environment.   
 

VIII. GENERAL CITY FINANCE  
 
As with most cities in Washington, the City of Buckley receives revenue from a variety of 
sources including:  several locally imposed taxes; shared state revenues; service fees, permits 
and licenses; and fines and other forfeitures.   CF-25 shows the distribution of City revenues 
available for current expenses (i.e. general fund revenues).  The largest share of these 
revenues comes from local taxes such as the property tax, sales tax, utilities taxes, and the 
gambling tax.  The second largest share, comes from other financing sources which primarily 
derive from transfers from various utility and enterprise accounts for administrative 
allocations. These categories of income account for approximately 72.58% percent of the 
general-purpose revenues available to the City annually.  

 
Table CF-25 Distribution of City Revenues Available for 

Current Expenses 
 

Source of Funds 2012 2013 2014 Percent of Total 
2012 2013 2014 

Beginning fund balance $25,109 $28,426 $103,716 0.63% 0.81% 2.85% 
Property Tax $792,651 $779,087 $791,402 19.80% 22.18% 21.76% 
Sales & Use Tax $461,706 $528,870 $573,807 11.54% 15.05% 15.78% 
Utility Tax $814,739 $825,647 $804,319 20.36% 23.50% 22.11% 
Gambling & Excise Tax $9,344 $8,990 $14,718 0.23% 0.26% 0.40% 
Licenses & Permits $113,441 $157,045 $143,358 2.83% 4.47% 3.94% 
Intergovernmental $481,410 $51,297 $51,472 12.03% 1.46% 1.42% 
Goods & Services $268,830 $270,991 $329,460 6.72% 7.71% 9.06% 
Fines & Penalties $156,283 $142,122 $117,391 3.90% 4.05% 3.23% 
Miscellaneous  $13,562 $41,194 $58,699 0.34% 1.17% 1.61% 
Nonrevenues $318,701 $162,094 $142,111 7.96% 4.61% 3.91% 
Other Financing Sources $492,820 $477,477 $455,465 12.31% 13.59% 12.52% 
Community Services $54,028 $40,085 $51,230 1.35% 1.14% 1.41% 
Total general fund revenues $4,002,623 $3,513,325 $3,637,148 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 
Total general fund expenditures $3,974,197 $3,409,609 $3,633,850       
Surplus/(deficit) $28,426 $103,716 $3,297       

 
Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
146



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 65 of 72 

The total general fund revenues have remained fairly stagnant since the last Comprehensive 
Plan update in 2005. With the advent of the housing downturn and nationwide recession the 
City experienced significant loss of revenue to the general fund, as well as population loss 
that resulted from the number of vacant units within the community. During the last update 
the Comprehensive Plan identified a trend of 4% gain in total revenue between 2002 and 
2004 with a total of $3.918 million in 2004. Table 25 above which reflect comparisons 
between 2012 and 2014 illustrates that total revenue actually decreased over the period. In 
2012 total revenue was $4,002,623, but by 2014 had dropped by 9.13% to $3,637,148.  
 
The downturn and subsequent recession impacted the City beginning in 2008 and the City 
didn’t see any recovery until the 2013 to 2014 period. During this period the City Council 
had to make some difficult decisions in order to maintain levels of service. Their main goal 
was to identify core levels of service and eliminate those that were no longer necessary. Their 
exercise in efficiency resulted in the closure of the City’s Jail and 911 Dispatch Center both 
of which had generated some amount of revenue through outside contracts. This directly 
correlates to the lower revenue after 2012. In addition the City sold the Natural Gas System 
Utility to Puget Sound Energy in 2014.    
 
These steps prepared the City to be well positioned financially once the recover was in full 
swing. At this writing the City ended 2018 with total general fund revenue of $5,676,856 
with a 2019 beginning fund balance of $813,301. 

 
The City’s current expense revenues and expenditures are relevant to a discussion about 
capital financing, since most of the City’s financial resources are general purpose revenues 
which can be used for operating or capital needs.  In most cases, the operating requirements 
of a jurisdiction will account for virtually all of the available general-purpose funds, forcing 
cities to look to other ways of financing capital improvements.  This is especially true in 
small jurisdictions, where larger capital projects are relatively infrequent and can amount to a 
sizable percentage of the operating budget.  Therefore, the ability of the City to fund capital 
improvements will depend in large measure on the relative prosperity and population of 
Buckley that relates directly to sources of expense revenues. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL FUNDING 
 
One relative indicator of prosperity is the importance of intergovernmental transfers in the 
funding of the City’s expenses.  According to data summarized in CF-23, the City is 
dependent on the County, State and/or Federal Government for approximately 8.47% to 
11.84% percent of its expense revenues for the annual comparison. CF-26 presents a 
tabulation of intergovernmental assistance for the years 2012-2014. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
147



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 66 of 72 

Table CF-26 Intergovernmental Assistance for the Years 2012 
to 2014 

 
Program 2012 2013 2014 
Local vehicle license (TBD)     $63,617 
Equalization - City Assistance $14,461 $9,136 $4,431 
Gas tax street (combined) $88,794 $90,237 $90,143 
Disaster Assistance $64,198     
Liquor excise $16,003 $2,924 $8,212 
Liquor board profits $43,342 $39,237 $38,829 
DOT Transportation Grant    $27,435 $154,944 
Transportation Improve Board 
(TIB) $193,526 $5,531 $271,622 
Real estate excise tax $49,094 $107,316 $84,397 
Board of prisoners $359,447 $12,642   
Emergency dispatch $101,246 $27,622   
Fire service contracts $77,127 $98,676 $128,640 
Law enforcement services $58,562 $80,640 $91,836 
Dept. of Justice grant $5,250     
WASPC grant $3,784     
Local sales tax criminal justice $55,859 $61,050 $64,406 
Criminal Justice low population $1,002 $1,050 $1,151 
Crim Justice - Spec Programs $3,682 $3,907 $4,164 
US Fire Administration grant $31,721     
Hotel motel excise tax $17,726 $22,371 $18,507 
PWTF Loan (Water Sys Const.)   $270,579 $457,969 
DOE Stormwater Phase II Grant $17,482 $103,858 $53,093 
DOC Shorelines Grant $25,755     
DOC Energy Grant     $316,923 
DOC GMA Grant     $16,200 
FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant $657,411 $161,335   
DEM Hazard Mitigation Grant $152,310 26889.65   
EPA Booster Station Grant $29,870 $106,143 $225,185 
PC Youth Violence Prevention 
Grant $25,481 $14,076 $12,500 
Pierce County Grant $3,500 $1,008 $7,956 
Total Financial Assistance $2,096,629 $1,273,663 $2,114,725 
Total Citywide Budget $17,713,549 $18,363,739 $24,953,618 

Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
148



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 67 of 72 

CAPITAL FUNDS  
 
Aside from general-purpose revenues, the City also receives revenues that are earmarked for 
capital expenditures.  The primary sources of dedicated capital funds are the combined state 
motor fuel tax and the real estate excise tax.   CF-27 summarizes the income received from 
these sources in the period 2012 to 2014. 
 

Table CF-27 City of Buckley Capital Funds Sources for the 
Years 2012 to 2014 

 
Source of Funds 2012 2013 2014 

Motor fuel tax $88,794 $90,237 $90,143 
REET $49,094 $107,316 $84,397 
Total revenues  $137,888 $197,553 $174,539 

                            Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 
These revenues, along with any general-purpose revenues transferred from the current 
expense fund, are placed in one of several enterprise funds for use in capital facility 
financing.  These funds can accumulate until such time as there is enough revenue to fund a 
particular improvement.   For comparative analysis the City will use the current cash 
balances “on hand” as of the close of the most recent 2018 fiscal year. CF-28 presents the 
current 2018 balance in the major capital improvement enterprise funds.  The table shows the 
beginning balance, revenues added, expenditures, and ending balance for the period in 
question.  In all cases, the funds are accumulating surpluses for future expenditures. 
 

Table CF-28 Current 2018 Balance in the Major Capital 
Improvement Enterprise Funds 

 

  

Railroad Row 
Maint & 

Devel (008) 

Park 
Construction 
Fund (035) 

Arterial 
Street 

Fund (102) 

Fire Station 
Constructio

n Fund 
(134) 

Capital Imp 
Fund (307) 

Comp Plan 
Capital Imp 
Fund (308) 

Beginning cash & 
investments $109,162 $112,654 $206,620 $202,689 $625,482 $259,618 

Revenues added $24,730 $86,580 
$1,077,36

5 $15,309 $437,566 $193,374 

Total resources $133,892 $199,234 
$1,283,98

6 $217,998 $1,063,048 $452,993 

Expenditures $28,702 $49,225 
$1,058,99

2 $9,965 $496,053 $205,058 
Ending net cash 
& investments $105,190 $150,009 $224,994 $208,032 $566,995 $247,935 

Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
149



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 68 of 72 

CITY-OWNED UTILITIES  
 
The City of Buckley operates three public utilities, providing water and sewer service, and 
stormwater management to local residents.  These City-owned utilities are self-supported 
financial entities, financed through the revenues generated by the utility customers and 
responsible for operations, maintenance, and capital improvements.  Capital improvements 
can be funded, either on a pay-as-you-go basis, or through the issuance of revenue bonds.  
The pay-as-you-go approach requires that revenues in excess of operating and maintenance 
costs be held in reserve for capital improvements until enough funding capacity is available 
for project development.  This makes sense for many smaller projects, which can be funded 
out of cash flow. 
 

Table CF-29 City-Owned Utilities – Water, Sewer, Storm 
Revenue Generated 

 

  

Water 
System 

Fund (402) 

Sewer 
System Fund 

(402) 

Stormwater 
Management 
Fund (407) 

Beginning cash & investments $177,453 $381,631 $18,563 
Revenues added $988,900 $2,073,052 $558,964 
Total resources $1,166,353 $2,454,682 $577,527 
Expenditures $1,111,861 $2,176,728 $502,862 
Excess (deficit) $54,492 $277,954 $74,665 
Ending net cash & investments $54,492 $277,954 $74,665 

Source:  City of Buckley, Annual Financial Reports. 
 

For larger projects, where cash requirements are substantially greater than is available, the 
utility can issue tax-exempt revenue bonds to fund the improvement.  This provides the 
utility with a large capital budget and allows the cost of the facility to be repaid from future 
operating revenues.  One of the advantages of this approach, besides allowing for larger 
projects, is that the cost of the facility is shared by both the existing ratepayers and future 
ratepayers.  For facilities with lengthy useful lives this provides a more equitable distribution 
of costs to the beneficiaries of the improvement. 
 
CF-29 presents the most recent financial data for the Water, Sewer and Stormwater Utilities. 
Capital financing capacity, whether it is pay-as-you-go or debt financed, is determined by the 
net cash after operations.  These figures imply that without a rate increase the utilities face 
limited capital financing opportunities.  As a result, a utility rate study should be undertaken 
after the Water and Sewer Comprehensive Plan, and Stormwater Management Plan are 
completed.  The study would determine the necessary rate schedule required to fund the 
improvements called out in these studies. 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
150



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 69 of 72 

POTENTIAL SOURCES OF ADDITIONAL REVENUES/FUNDING CAPACITY  
 
There are two methods available to a city to raise revenues:  1) raise the rate of taxation for 
taxes currently levied; and 2) levy new taxes.  The following are some potential new sources 
of revenue, which the City could tap to increase its financial capacity to fund additional 
capital improvements. 
 

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET)  
 
The Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) is a transfer tax imposed whenever an interest in real 
property is transferred, and is due on the date of the transfer.  The 1990 Legislature has 
authorized cities and counties to impose an additional tax on the sale of real estate.  This 
additional tax of 0.25 percent is to use to support capital projects specified in a capital 
facilities plan element of the City’s comprehensive plan.  The first 0.25 percent REET 
imposed by the City of Buckley received approximately $22,000 in 1992; the City added a 
second 0.25 percent provided under the Growth Management Act, to raise additional revenue 
for capital projects.  In 2018, the City of Buckley received $373,892 from the REET. 
 

B&O Tax on General Business  
 
Cities and towns may levy a business and occupation (B&O) tax on general business of up to 
0.2 percent of gross receipts.  A city may increase the tax rate above this statutory limit, but 
only if approved by the voters of the jurisdiction.  There are only a couple of dozen cities in 
the State of Washington that collect municipal B&O taxes on general business.  The City of 
Buckley has no longer has a B&O tax on general business within the City limits.  
 

B&O Tax on Utilities  
 
Municipalities are permitted to charge a B&O tax on utilities operating within their 
jurisdiction.  Cities may levy up to 6 percent of gross receipts on electrical, natural gas, steam 
energy, and telephone businesses.  There is no limit in the rate levied on gross receipts for 
other utilities such as garbage, surface water management, and water and sewer services.  
Current utility B&O rates for the City of Buckley are shown in CF-30. 
 

Table CF-30 Current Utility and B&O Rates 
 

Utility City of Buckley 
Natural gas 6.0% 
Electric 6.0% 
Telephone 6.0% 
Cellular telephone 6.0% 
Garbage (start 3/05) 10.0% 
Water 10.0% 
Sewer 10.0% 
Drainage 10.0% 
Cable TV 4.0% 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
151



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 70 of 72 

                         Source:  City of Buckley BMC 3.96.050 - Ord. 01-09 § 1, 2009 
 
With the passage of the Growth Management Act, the state gave cities and counties much 
greater flexibility to charge impact fees on new development.  Given the large increments of 
growth projected for the Buckley area, impact fees assist in providing a mechanism for 
shifting some of the financial burdens associated with expanding services.  Good candidates 
for impact fee treatment include:  schools, fire protection, transportation, and parks and 
recreation. 
 

Formation of Local Improvement District (LID)  
 
Another mechanism for allocating the costs of growth, to the responsible individuals is 
through the formation of a Local Improvement District (LID).  Where a new development 
requires some significant improvements, such as a new road or extended water and sewer 
system, an LID can be formed whereby benefiting properties are each assessed for their fair 
share of the cost of the improvement.  This mechanism provides a dedicated revenue stream 
that is pledged to the repayment of bonds used to fund the improvement.  The bonds are 
secured by the value of the land.  This mechanism can also be used in built-up areas to fund 
system replacement or expansion, though it is much more difficult if there are numerous 
property owners, since the formation requires support from benefited property owners 
accounting for over 50 percent of the proposed assessment.  The major difference between 
issuing General Obligation (GO) bonds and using an LID to finance capital improvements is 
the GO bonds will be supported by all taxpayers in the community, while the LID bonds will 
be retired by the beneficiaries of the improvement. 
 

Transportation Benefit Districts 
 
In 1987, the Washington State Legislature approved legislation that allows jurisdictions the 
ability to establish Transportation Benefit Districts as an option for local governments to 
fund transportation improvements. Since 2005, the Legislature has amended the TBD statute 
to expand its uses and revenue authority. More recently, in 2007, the Legislature amended 
the TBD statute (ESHB 1858). 
 
Engrossed Senate and House Bill 1858 authorized a funding mechanism for cities and 
counties that could provide necessary resources to help maintain and preserve transportation 
infrastructure. A TBD can fund transportation improvements contained in any existing state 
or regional transportation plan that is necessitated by existing or reasonably foreseeable 
congestion levels. This can include maintenance and improvements to city streets, county 
roads, state highways, investments in high capacity transportation, public transportation, 
transportation demand management and other transportation projects identified in a regional 
transportation planning organization plan or state plan. 
 
In November of 2012, the City created the new Buckley Transportation Benefit District and 
enacted a $20 vehicle registration fee (for each eligible vehicle registered in Buckley) for the 
purpose of supporting street maintenance and transportation projects. In 2015, the City of 
Buckley received $84,783 in vehicle fee revenue from the TBD. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
152



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 71 of 72 

Transportation Improvement Board  
 
The Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) is a State agency that funds transportation 
improvements on state, city and county arterials. 
 
The primary purpose of the TIB is to administer state funding for local government 
transportation projects.  Projects are funded by utilizing TIB revenue in combination with 
local matching funds and private sector contributions.  Revenues for these grant programs are 
generated from the state fuel tax.  Projects seeking TIB funds are submitted to the Board and 
are prioritized on the basis of several criteria, to determine the eligibility and relative merit of 
each.  The distributions are then determined by going down the prioritized list of projects 
until the budget is depleted.  The City of Buckley’s population is approaching a TIB 
threshold limit that separates small city projects from urban projects.  The threshold 
population is 5,000; those cities below this population are eligible as a small city and those 
cities over are classified as urban.  
 
PLAN OF FINANCE, CAPITAL FACILITIES FINANCE STRATEGY 
 
In keeping with the incremental approach undertaken in this comprehensive planning effort, 
this Plan of Finance is not intended to be a detailed six-year capital facilities plan.  Since 
many of the capital facility needs are yet to be identified and prioritized, an attempt to 
produce a project level CIP was not reasonable at this time.  In its place, the following 
Capital Facilities Finance Strategy will provide the City with a framework strategy to help 
with capital financing decisions during the next couple of years as the detailed engineering 
work is completed.  It will also allow the City to put into place the requisite capital finance 
mechanisms, which will fund the identified priority projects as well as address the longer-
term growth-driven capital needs. 
 
To ensure that the City of Buckley has the necessary financial capacity to fund current and 
future capital improvements, while maintaining an equitable balance between the burden of 
providing new facilities and the beneficiaries of those facilities the City should: 
 

• Expand the existing revenue base where it is deemed practical 
 

• Add new revenue sources primarily for capital funding 
 
• Maintain financial policies which will ensure future population pays its fair 

share of the cost of capital improvements 
 
• Actively pursue state financial assistance for capital projects which will allow 

for the leveraging of local funds (i.e., Transportation Improvement Board) 
 

Expanded Revenue Base 
 
The City should explore possible avenues for expanding the current revenue base.  Toward 
this end the following should be analyzed. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
153



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 12/5/2019 2:35 PM Page 72 of 72 

 
Adjust Utility Rate Structure 
 
In keeping with the overall strategy of ensuring that new development is paying a fair share 
of the costs of development, the utility rates should be structured such that new connections 
are assessed at a level approximating the marginal cost of infrastructure development. 
 

New Revenue Sources 
 
The other way to expand current financial capacity is to begin to levy new taxes or impose 
new fees.  The following available new taxes or fees should be explored as a means of raising 
additional funds for capital improvements. 
 
Impact Fees 
 
One of the better mechanisms available to the City is to try to equitably allocate the cost of 
new infrastructure among the existing residents and the new population is through the 
establishment of impact fees.  The City should explore the reasonableness of setting up 
impact fee schedules to help defray the costs of transportation improvements, parks and 
recreation facilities, and fire protection services. 
 
The White River School District No. 416, which serves Buckley and the greater Buckley 
area, created a capital facilities plan to calculate impact fees for the city to consider charging. 
This work is attached together with its Resolution Number 18/13 and considered part of this 
element. 
 
Local Improvement Districts 
 
When a particular improvement will benefit only a portion of the population, the City should 
consider the formation of an LID to fund the necessary improvements.  This is especially 
relevant in the case where a new development is proposed and seeking to be annexed, the 
City could require that an LID be in place which funds the appropriate capital improvements.  
This way the value of the land can support the infrastructure development without affecting 
the City’s ability to use general obligation debt or special levies supported by property tax 
revenues and the costs will be borne by the beneficiaries of the improvements. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
154



ORD No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ELEMENTS 7, UTILITIES, AND 8, CAPITAL 
FACILITIES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), the City is required to 

adopt a Comprehensive Plan that provides for goals, coordination and a planned use of land within the 

community to protect the environment and public interest; and  

WHEREAS, in order to comply with RCW 36.70A, the City of Buckley adopted its first 

Comprehensive Plan in May 1995; and  

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.130 provides that cities shall take action to continuously review and, 

if needed, revise their comprehensive plans and development regulations to ensure the plan and 

regulations comply with the requirements of that chapter; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council previously adopted elements 1 through 6; and 

WHEREAS, the element was received by the Department of Commerce on November 23, 2018, 

under Material Identification Number 25513; and  

WHEREAS, environmental review was completed and a determination of non-significance was 

issued March 28, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a hearing on Elements 7 and 8 of the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan on May 6, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on May 6, 2019, the Planning 

Commission voted to transmit the elements to the City Council with a recommendation for approval;  

WHEREAS, the City Council identified additional capital improvement projects that were 

needed to serve underdeveloped areas and these items were added to the draft versions forwarded from 

the Planning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a subsequent public hearing on the revised elements on 

November 26, 2019; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
155



ORD No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

Section 1. The Utilities Element dated November 6, 2019, is hereby adopted by reference as 

Element 7 of the City of Buckley comprehensive plan and replaces the current Utilities Element of the 

comprehensive plan.   

Section 2. The Capital Facilities dated November 6, 2019, is hereby adopted by reference as 

Element 8 of the City of Buckley comprehensive plan and replaces the current capital facilities element of 

the comprehensive plan. 

Section 3. Copy to the Department of Commerce. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the City 

Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to provide a copy of this ordinance to the State 

Department of Commerce within 10 days of adoption. 

Section 4. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be 

held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 

unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this ordinance. 

Section 5. Effective date. This ordinance or a summary thereof consisting of the title shall be 

published in the official newspaper of the city, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after 

publication. 

 

Introduced, passed, and approved this 10th, day of December 2019. 

 

     

Pat Johnson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney 
 

PUBLISHED:     
EFFECTIVE:     

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
156



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-126 
ORD No. ____-19 Amending Section 
3.50.010 and 3.50.050 of the Buckley 
Municipal Code Related to 
Adopting an Impact Fee for White 
River School District 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $ Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Kathy James   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Memo, School District Resolution, Ordinance       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  The City adopted Ordinance 15-97 establishing an impact fee for White 
River School District, which was amended in 2007 after the school district submitted a new Capital 
Facilities Plan and calculated fee to the City.  In February 2010, the school district submitted an updated 
Capital Facilities Plan along with a letter to the City stating that they could no longer justify the 
imposition of an impact fee based upon calculations listed within their updated Capital Facilities Plan 
and requested the City eliminate this fee for the time being.  Through the adoption of Ordinance No. 05-
10, the City eliminated the impact fee for the White River School District. 
 
In February 2019, the School District submitted a new Capital Facilities Plan to the City and requested 
that the fee obligation be reinstated to correspond with the Plan and fee calculation.  The new Capital 
Facilities Plan the school district submitted identifies impact fee calculations of $11,391 for each single-
family dwelling and $4,001 for multi-family dwellings. 
 
The City Council has the authority to adopt the school impact fees up to the maximum amount set by the 
District’s Capital Facilities Plan but as a matter of policy, has the authority to make discretionary 
adjustments to the schedules. 
 
In reviewing other jurisdictions within Pierce County, eleven (11) of sixteen (16) have adopted a reduced 
fee that corresponds to the reduction factor adopted by Pierce County and three (3) jurisdictions impose 
no school impact fee.  
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: A/F/PS recommends the City adopt a reduction 
factor used by Pierce County and cap the fee amount adopted by the County and multiple other 
jurisdictions. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
157



 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve ORD No. 33-19 Amending Section 
3.50.010 and 3.50.050 of the Buckley Municipal Code Related to Adopting an 
Impact Fee for White River School District to Correspond with the Capital 
Facilities Plan and Request from the School District. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
158



 

City of Buckley  
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Memo 
 

To:       Mayor & City Council 
 
From:   City Administrator 
 
Date:    March 26, 2019 

RE:       White River School District Impact Fee 

 
On February 13, 2019 I received an email from the White River School District requesting 
that the City reinstate the school impact fee that was eliminated in 2010. The message 
included a copy of their new Capital Facilities Plan (attached) along with an adopting Board 
Resolution (attached). 
 
The new Capital Facilities Plan includes a fee calculation that identifies a maximum fee of 
$11,390.54 per single family residence and $4,000.76 per multi-family residence can be 
imposed. 
 
In order to evaluate how the District’s maximum fees compared to other jurisdictions staff 
pulled data from Pierce County’s website and/or directly called other jurisdictions within the 
County. The results of this evaluation are listed in the Table below: 
 

Pierce County PER SINGLE-FAMILY 
DWELLING UNIT 

PER MULTI-FAMILY 
DWELLING UNIT 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

School 
District Fee 
Calculation 

Impact Fee 
(Maximum 

Fee Obligation 
is $3,770) 

School 
District Fee 
Calculation 

Impact Fee 
(Maximum 

Fee Obligation 
is $2,000) 

Bethel $19,345 $3,770 $8,728 $2,000 
Carbonado $3,594 $3,594 $866 $866 
Dieringer $3,216 $3,216 $450 $450 
Eatonville $0 $0 $0 $0 
Fife $4,946 $3,770 $2,043 $2,000 
Franklin Pierce $14,038 $3,770 $7,071 $2,000 

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
159



  December 5, 2019 

  Page 2 

Orting $15,136 $3,770 $5,723 $2,000 
Peninsula $12,154 $3,770 $7,181 $2,000 
Puyallup $13,333 $3,770 $4,570 $2,000 
Steilacoom $4,083 $3,770 $0 $0 
Sumner-Bonney Lake $14,485 $3,576 $1,945 $1,818 
White River $11,391 $3,770 $4,001 $2,000 
Yelm $4,450 $3,770 $1,812 $1,812 
          
White River School District 

    Buckley $11,391 $0 $4,001 $0 
Bonney Lake*  $11,391 $3,770 $4,001 $2,000 
Wilkeson $11,391 $0 $4,001 $0 
South Prairie $11,391 $0 $4,001 $0 
Pierce County $11,391 $3,770 $4,001 $2,000 

     * Note: currently going to PC then Council 
    

The Table above reflects that within Pierce County eleven (11) of sixteen (16) has adopted a 
reduced fee that corresponds to the reduction factor adopted by Pierce County and three (3) 
jurisdictions impose no school impact fee. 
 
The City Council is authorized to reduce or to increase the adjustments as part of its annual 
review of the fee schedule and as illustrated above the majority of many jurisdictions in the 
County have opted to adopt fees that are in line with the County. 
 
It is therefore staff’s recommendation that the City Council do the same and set the impact 
fee at the amount adopted by Pierce County.  
 
Dave 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
160



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
161



ORD No. _____-19 Page 1 
 

 CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___- 19         
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF 
BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING SECTION  
3.50.010 AND 3.50.050 OF THE BUCKLEY MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
RELATED TO ADOPTING AN IMPACT FEE FOR WHITE RIVER 
SCHOOL DISTRICT TO CORRESPOND WITH THE CAPITAL 
FACILITIES PLAN AND REQUEST FROM THE SCHOOL DISTRICT.  

 
 WHEREAS, The City of Buckley adopted Ordinance number 15-97 establishing an 
impact fee for the White River School District, which was amended in 2007 after the School 
District  submitted a new a Capital Facilities Plan and calculated fee to the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, in February, 2010 the School District submitted an updated Capital 
Facilities Plan along with a Letter to the City stating that they could no longer justify the 
imposition of an impact fee based upon calculations listed within their updated Capital Facilities 
Plan and requested that the City eliminate this fee for the time being; and 

 
WHEREAS, through adoption of Ordinance number 05-10 the City eliminated the 

impact fee for the White River School District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the school district is responsible for planning how it will provide and fund 

services to its projected student population. In order to be eligible for school impact fees the 
school district must submit a Capital Facilities Plan and calculated impact fee to the City, 
pursuant to RCW 82.02.050 to 82.02.090; and 

 
WHEREAS, adjusting the Fee Obligation means that the school impact fees collected for 

new residential development will more closely match the school districts calculated need for 
impact fee, which reflects the specific, per residence costs for the district to serve new students 
from new residential development; and 

 
WHEREAS, in February, 2019 the White River School District submitted a new Capital 

Facilities Plan to the City and requested that the fee obligation be reinstated to correspond with 
the Plan and fee calculation; and  

 
WHEREAS, the a new Capital Facilities Plan  that White River School District has  

submitted identifies an impact fee calculation of $11,391 for each single-family dwelling and  
$4,001 for multi-family dwellings; and 
 

WHEREAS, The school impact fee values set forth above accurately characterize the 
cost of the schools and school facilities required for each new development, as documented in the 
district’s capital facilities plan, the Council has the authority to reduce or to increase the 
adjustments as part of its annual review of the fee schedule, or at any other time, by adopting an 
amendatory ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, in reviewing other jurisdictions within Pierce County eleven (11) of sixteen 

(16) has adopted a reduced fee that corresponds to the reduction factor adopted by Pierce County 
and three (3) jurisdictions impose no school impact fee; and 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
162



ORD No. _____-19 Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the Admin/Finance Committee reviewed the information and the School 
Districts request on April 9, 2010 and recommended that the City Council adopt a reduction 
factor used by Pierce County and cap the fee at the amount adopted by the County and multiple 
other jurisdictions; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Section’s 3.50.010 and 3.50.050 to 
reinstate an impact fee for White River School District as recommended by the Admin/Finance 
Committee; now, therefore 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 
PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:   Chapter 3.50.010 of the Buckley Municipal Code entitled “Definitions” is 
hereby amended to read as follow; 
 
3.50.010 Definitions. 
The following words and terms shall have the following meanings for the purposes of this title, 
unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Terms otherwise not defined herein shall be defined 
pursuant to RCW 82.02.090, or given their usual and customary meaning. 

“Act” means the Growth Management Act, Chapter 17, Laws of 1990, 1st Extraordinary Session, 
Chapter 36.70A RCW, et seq., and Chapter 32, Laws of 1991, 1st Special Session, RCW 
82.02.050, et seq., as now in existence or as hereafter amended. 

“Boeckh Index” means the area cost allowances for school construction determined under WAC 
180-27-060. 

“Capacity” means the number of students the White River School District’s facilities can 
accommodate district-wide at each grade span, based on the district’s adopted level of service. 

“Capital facilities” means the facilities or improvements included in the city of Buckley capital 
facilities element of the city of Buckley comprehensive plan adopted pursuant to the Act. 

“City Comprehensive Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan – Buckley” means the planning 
document that includes a park and recreation inventory, facility demand, policy and guidance on 
developing regional/city-wide and local park and recreation facilities. 

“Department” means the planning department. 

“Development activity” means any construction or expansion of a building, structure or use, any 
change in use of a building or structure, or any change in use of land that creates additional 
demand and need for public facilities. 

“Development approval” means any written authorization from the city which authorizes the 
commencement of a development activity. 

“Encumber” means to reserve, set aside or otherwise earmark the impact fees in order to pay for 
commitments, contractual obligations or other liabilities incurred for public facilities. 

“Impact fee” means the fee levied pursuant to this chapter as a condition of issuance of a building 
permit or development approval. “Impact fee” does not include a reasonable permit or application 
fee and does not preclude a SEPA mitigation fee. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
163



ORD No. _____-19 Page 3 
 

“Impact fee account” or “account” means the account established for each type of public facility 
for which impact fees are collected. Such account shall be established pursuant to this chapter and 
shall comply with the requirements of RCW 82.02.060. 

“Impact fee schedule” means the fee schedules set forth in this chapter. 

“Independent fee calculation” means the park impact calculation, the traffic engineering 
calculation, the school impact fee calculation, and/or economic documentation prepared by a 
feepayer to support the assessment of an impact fee other than by the use of impact fee schedules. 

“Level of service (LOS)” means an established minimum capacity for public facilities or services 
that is planned to be provided per unit demand or other appropriate measure of need and is used 
as a gauge for measuring the quality of service. 

“Park and recreation facilities” means those parks and recreation facilities so designated in the 
Parks, Recreation and Open Space element of the city of Buckley comprehensive plan adopted 
pursuant to the Act. 

“Project improvements” mean site improvements and facilities that are planned and designed to 
provide service for a particular development or users of the project, and are not system 
improvements. No improvement or facility included in a capital facilities plan approved by the 
council shall be considered a project improvement. 

“Public facilities” means publicly owned parks and recreational facilities, public roads and the 
White River School District. 

“Residential” or “residential development” means all types of construction intended for human 
habitation. This shall include, but is not limited to, single-family, duplex, triplex, and other 
multifamily development. 

“Service area” means a geographic area described in the city’s capital facilities plan in which a 
defined set of public facilities provides service to development within the area; provided, that the 
service area for schools shall be the White River School District. Service areas may be separately 
described for each type of public facility. 

“Square footage” means the square footage of the gross floor area of the development. 

“State” means the state of Washington. 

“Street” means a right-of-way that affords the principal means of access to abutting property, and 
its accompanying signalization improvements, including an avenue, place, way, drive, lane, 
boulevard, highway, road and other thoroughfare, except an alley. 

“System improvements” mean public facilities that are included in the capital facilities plan and 
are designed to provide service within the community at large, in contrast to project 
improvements. 

“Transportation plan” means the transportation element of the city of Buckley comprehensive 
plan adopted pursuant to the Act. 

“White River School District study” means the “White River School District Capital Facilities 
Plan,” and such study as amended, which is incorporated herein by reference, a copy of which is 
on file with the department.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
164



ORD No. _____-19 Page 4 
 

Section 2:   Chapter 3.50.050 of the Buckley Municipal Code entitled “Impact Fees” is 
hereby amended to read as follow; 
 
3.50.050 Impact fee accounts for the White River School District. 
 
1) White River School District impact fees shall be submitted to the White River School 

District upon receipt. The fee shall be collected pursuant to BMC 3.50.035. 
 

(a) White River School District impact fees shall be assessed to all new residential 
construction as follows: 

 
 
2) The school impact fee schedules set forth in BMC 3.50.050 (1)(a) above reflects the 

legislative determination that while the full impact fees per dwelling unit accurately 
characterize the cost of the schools and school facilities required for each new 
development, as documented in the district’s capital facilities plan, the council has, as a 
matter of policy, decided to make a discretionary adjustment to the schedules. The 
council is authorized to reduce or to increase the adjustments as part of its annual review 
of the fee schedule, or at any other time, by adopting an amendatory ordinance. 

 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper posting 

and publication.  A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 

 
Section 4.  If any provision of this ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 

any other provision, or the applications thereof, which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are to be declared 
severable. 
 
Introduced, passed, and approved this 10th day of December, 2019. 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia Johnson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

Type of Construction WRSD Fee Calculation Buckley Impact Fee/Dwelling Unit 

Single-family homes $11,391 $3,770 
Multiple-family residential $4,001 $2,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
165



ORD No. _____-19 Page 5 
 

 
_________________________________    
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney      
                                
 

PUBLISHED: ____________ 
EFFECTIVE: ____________ 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
166



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-127 
 
ORD No. ___-19: Updates to the Use 
Table in Title 19 (Zoning) 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival  X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $ Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Kathy James X  
Timeline: Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren  X 
 Planning Dept – Evan Lewis  X 
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Staff Report 2019 Use Table Update, Track Changes Use Table, Ordinance       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
In general, the purpose of updating the use table is to make the code more legible by eliminating 
redundancies, creating consistency, making information easier to find (more intuitive and user friendly), 
bringing the uses up to date (eliminating things like “photo developing”), clarifying definitions/ creating 
consistency between definitions and uses, and considering locations as appropriate.  
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  
Planning Commission- Approval Recommended 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 34-19, Title 19 
Zoning Use Table Update 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

9/24/2019 Did not proceed, will move to another meeting. 
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
167



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
168



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
169



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
170



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
171



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
172



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
173



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
174



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
175



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
176



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
177



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
178



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
179



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
180



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
181



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
182



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
183



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
184



2019 use table worksheet 12/5/2019 2:36 PM Page 1 of 6 

From proposed use table: 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Permitted uses in the LI zone  P/C           
Adult entertainment businesses X C X X X X X X X X X X 

Auto recycling and rebuilding P P X X X X X X X X X X 

Automobile towing services X P A A X X X X X X X X 

Construction/contractors yards X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Custom art and craft work P P A A A X A X X X X X 

Electrical and electronic goods manufacture and 
assembly X P XC X X X X X X X X X 

Food processing and packing X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Fuel storage facilities X C X X X X X X X X X X 

Hazardous waste on-site treatment and storage 
facilities X C X X X P X X X X X X 

Manufacturing, assembling and packaging of articles, 
products, or merchandise conducted entirely within a 
building 

X P XC XA XA P1 XA X X X X X 

Mini-storages and mini-warehouses X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Recycling facilities, minor X P X X X P X X X X X X 

RV park, commercial X P X X X C X XC X X X X 

Warehousing and distribution facilities, to include 
wholesale trade not open to general public X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Welding and fabrication X P XC X X P X X X X X X 

Wholesaling X P X X X X X X X X X X 
Permitted uses in the GC zone   P/C          
Motor vehicle sales P X P X X X X X X X X X 
Permitted in the public zone      P/C       
RV/tent campground X X X X X C X A X A A X 
Permitted uses in the LI GC zone  P/C P/C          
Automobile sales and service establishments, new or 
used P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Bowling alleys P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Lumber sales P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Mobile, manufactured and modular housing sales X P P X X X X X X X X X 

Outdoor storage yards X P C X X P X X X X X X 

Printing, publishing, and allied industries including 
such processes as lithography, etching, engraving, 
binding, blueprinting, photocopying, and film 
processing 

X P P A A X A X X X X X 

Truck, trailer and recreational vehicle rental P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Equipment rental services, commercial X P P X X X X X X X X X 
Permitted uses in the GC CC zones   P/C P/C         
Automobile rental agencies P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Conference centers P X P P CX P1 X X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
185



2019 use table worksheet 12/5/2019 2:36 PM Page 2 of 6 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Cemeteries X X P P X P X X X X X X 

Funeral parlors and mortuaries P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Hotels/motels P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Hospitals P X P P X X X X X X X X 
Permitted uses in the LI GC CC zones  P/C P/C P/C         
Automobile repair establishments, minor repair P P P P X X X X X X X X 

Car washes P P P P X X X X X X X X 

Recreation, commercial P C P P XC PC XC C XC XC XC C 

Service stations, automotive P P P P X X X X X X X X 
Permitted uses in the GC CC HC zones   P/C P/C P/C        
Drinking establishments (bars, cocktail lounges, 
nightclubs and taverns) P X P P PC X X X X X X X 

Printing, commercial X X P P P X X X X X X X 
Permitted uses in the GC CC NMU zones   P/C P/C   P/C      
Arcade, amusement P X P P XC P1 C X X X X X 

Catering establishments X X P P A X P XC XC XC XC X 

Flea markets, periodic, or seasonal sales P X P P X P P X X X X X 

Restaurants with drive-in or drive-through service P XC P P X X C X X X X X 

Veterinary hospitals P X P P X X P X X X X X 
Permitted uses  in the GC CC HC NMU zones   P/C P/C P/C  P/C      
Apparel and accessory stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Art galleries P X P P P P1C1 PC X X X X X 

Antique and secondhand sales  P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Banks P X P P P X PC X X X X X 

Financial institutions P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Beauty salons and barber shops X X P P P X CP X X X X X 

Bicycle repair shops P X P P P X P C C C C X 

Bicycle storessales and repair shops P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Book stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Business services P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Carnivals/circuses P X P P C P1 C X X X X X 

Drug stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Pharmacies and medical supply stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Food stores and grocery stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Furniture, home furnishings, and appliance stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

General merchandise stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Jewelry stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Farmer’s markets P X P P P P P X X X X X 

Fabric stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Flower stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
186



2019 use table worksheet 12/5/2019 2:36 PM Page 3 of 6 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Hardware stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Hobby, toy and game stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Laundromats P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Laundry services P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Motor vehicle supply stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Massage clinics or center P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Offices, government P X P P P P CP X X C C X 

Offices, medical, dental P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Office supplies and equipment P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Offices, business and professional P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Pet and pet supply stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Pet grooming parlor P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Plant nurseries, landscaping materials, greenhouses 
(commercial) P XC P P P P P X X X X X 

Retail sales P X P P P P1 P X X X X P 

Servicing of personal apparel and equipment P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Small appliance repair shops P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Sporting goods stores P X P P P X P X X X X P 

Specialty stores P X P P P X P X X X X P 

Stationery and gift stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Theaters, not including drive-ins P X P P PC X PC X X X X X 

Nursing home or rehabilitation center P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Libraries P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Health clubs, dance studios, martial arts studios P X P P PC P1 PC X X X X X 

Museums X X P P P P P X X X X X 
permitted uses  in the LI GC CC zones  P/C P/C P/C         
Swap meets P P P P X P1 X X X X X X 

Electrical distribution substations P P P P X P X X X X X X 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Public transportation stations and park and ride lots 
(not including bus stops, which are allowed along all 
rights-of-way) 

P P P P CX P XC XC X X C X 

permitted uses  in the LI GC CC HC zones  P/C P/C P/C P/C        
Microbreweries P C P PC PC P X X X X X X 

Radio and television studios (including recording 
studios) X P P P P X X X X X X X 

permitted uses  in the LI GC CC HC NMU zones  P/C P/C P/C P/C  P/C      

Bakeries, retail P XC P P P P1 PC XC X X X X 

Building materials, garden and farm supply stores P P P P P X P X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
187



2019 use table worksheet 12/5/2019 2:36 PM Page 4 of 6 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Confectioneries P C P P P P1 PC XC X X X X 

Convenience stores P P P P P X P X X X X X 

Other fFood servicea establishments including 
coffeehouses, delicatessens, ice cream parlors, juice 
bars, etc. 

P PC P P P P1 PC XC X X X C 

Kennels, as regulated in Title 9, BMC P P P P C P C X X X CX X 

Retail or service activities conducted out of temporary 
structures and/or trailers P C C C C P C X X X X P 

Stadiums, arenas and assembly halls P PC P P PC P1 PC X X X X X 

permitted uses  in the LI GC CC HC NMU HDR   P/C P/C P/C P/C  P/C P/C     

Garage, public parking P C P P C P C C X X X X 
Permitted in nearly all zones  P/C P/C P/C P/C  P/C P/C P/C P/C P/C  
Accessory parks and recreation facilities for use by on-
site employees or residents X P P P P X P P P P P X 

Accessory buildings and structures X P P P X P P P P P P X 

Rummage sales X P P P P P1 P P P P P X 

Contractor/construction offices X P P P P X P P P P P X 

Outdoor art and craft sales P X P P P P P P P P P X 

Parking lot/sidewalk sales P X P P P P P P P P P X 
Educational enhancement uses             
Job training and vocational rehabilitation P P P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Colleges and universities (public or private) without 
students in residence P C P P X P1 X X X X X X 

Schools, commercial X C P P X C X X X X X X 

Schools, public X X X X X P X C C C C X 

Schools, public or private elementary X X X X X P P X P P P X 

Schools, public or private middle X X X X X P P X P P P X 

Schools, public or private secondary X X X X X P P X P P P X 

Schools, except for post-secondary education X X X X X P P X P P P X 

Schools, public or private post-secondary education 
for certificates or degrees X P P X X P P X P P P X 

Community enhancement uses             
Civic and community events P P P P P P P P P P P C 

Day care, adult  X C C P X P1 P C C X X X 

Day care, child center and preschools X X X P X P1 P C C C C X 

Day care, child day care center X P P P P P1 P C C X X X 

Day care, family home X X P P P X P P P P P X 

Parks and recreation, public X C P P P P P P P P P P 

Fraternal organizations P X P P P P1 C X X X X X 

Places of worship X X P P X P1 P P P P P X 

Personal wireless service facilities X P P P P P P X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
188



2019 use table worksheet 12/5/2019 2:36 PM Page 5 of 6 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Conditional uses only             
Radio and television towers X C C C C X C C C C C X 

Satellite dishes, noncommercial, and antennas X C C C C X C C C C C X 

Personal ham radio antennas X C C C C X C C C C C X 

MARIJUANA USES             

Medical marijuana cooperatives X X X X X X P P P P P X 

Marijuana producing X P P X X X X X X X C X 

Marijuana processing X P P X X X X X X X C X 

Marijuana retailer P P P P P X C X X X X X 

AGRICULTURAL USES (also see Title 9, BMC)             

Agriculture, not including marijuana X P X X X P C X X P P X 

Agricultural production, not including marijuana X P X X X P C X X P P X 

Agricultural support goods and services X P P P X P P X X X X X 

Commercial produce stand (selling of agricultural 
products) P P P P P P P X X X CP X 

Keeping of livestock, poultry, rabbits, or bees X P XC XC X P CC X C P P X 

Selling of agricultural products raised or grown on-
premises X P P P P P P P P P P X 

Stables and riding academies X P X X X P X X XC XC P X 
Residential uses             
Caretaker dwelling X C C C C X XC XC XC XC XC X 

Owner/operator residences X P X P P X P X X X X X 

Apartment hotels X X P P P X P X X X X X 

Nursing, rest or convalescent homes P X P P X X P X X X X X 

Bed and breakfast inns X X P P P X P P P P P X 

Assisted living facility X X PC PC X X P P P X X X 
Accessory uses only              
Accessory dwelling unit X X X X A X A A A A A X 

Adult family home   X X X P X P1 P P P P P X 

Group homes X X X X X X P P P P P X 

Home occupations X P P P P X P P P P P X 
Permitted uses in the NMU HDR R-6,000, 8,000, 20,000       P/C P/C P/C P/C P/C  
Single-family detached dwellings X X X X X X P P P P P X 

Boarding, lodging and rooming houses (six and fewer 
roomers) X X X X X XC P P PC PC PC X 

Permitted uses in  the NMU HDR, R-6,000 8,000       P/C P/C P/C P/C   
Townhomes (four and fewer attached units with 
ground floor entrances) X X X X X X P P P P X X 

Permitted uses in  the HDR, R-6,000,8,000,         P/C P/C P/C   
Carriage dwelling units X X X X X X X P P P X X 

Cottage housing development X X X X X X X P P P X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
189



2019 use table worksheet 12/5/2019 2:36 PM Page 6 of 6 

DISTRICT: 
Front
age 

zone3 
LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 
R-

8,000 
R-

20,000 S2 

Duplexes X X X X X X X P P P X X 
Permitted uses in the CC HC NMU zones    P/C P/C  P/C      
Dwelling units above commercial uses X X X P P X P X X X X X 
Permitted uses in HC, NMU, HDR, R-6,000      P/C  P/C P/C P/C    
Multifamily dwellings (three or more units attached 
and made accessible through a common entrance) X X X XP* P**C X P P P X X X 

Permitted uses in R-6,000 8,000         P/C P/C   
Residential cluster X X X X X X X X P P X X 
Permitted uses in CC NMU HDR R-6,000     P/C   P/C P/C P/C    
Senior citizen low-income housing X X XC PC X C P P P X X X 
Permitted uses in the HDR zone        P/C     
Mobile home parks X X X X X X X P X X X X 
 
* ASSOCIATED WITH and on the same lot as the development’s COMMERCIAL use; OR above commercial uses 
** ABOVE COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
190



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY,  
WASHINGTON, AMENDING SECTIONS 16.40.030(1), 19.12.150, 
19.12.165, 19.12.170, 19.12.215, 19.12.265, 19.12.335, 19.12.345, 19.12.355, 
19.12.520, 19.12.560, 19.12.566, 19.12.568, AND 19.28.020; ADDING 
SECTIONS 16.10.005 AND 19.12.196 FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLES AND 
19.12.242 FOR GROOMING PARLORS; REPEALING SECTIONS 
19.12.120, 19.12.250; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the zoning ordinance is a system of regulations that periodically needs to be 
updated; and 

 
WHEREAS, the planning commission reviewed the use table found in Section 19.20.130 

Buckley Municipal Code and found undefined terms, repetition, and regulation in the table; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission reviewed the use list and associated definitions 

with the goal to make the title readable, non-redundant, internally consistent, and easy to find 
information; and 

 
WHEREAS, definitions for certain uses contained regulations already contained in code; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, terms on the use list contained regulations already within the definition for 

that term; and  
 
WHEREAS, certain terms on the use list were similar and should be joined as one use; 

and  
 
WHEREAS, certain terms on the use list were archaic, no longer used, or regulated under 

different municipal codes, and should be deleted; and  
 
WHEREAS, the “60-day notice” request for expedited review was received July 2, 2019, 

by the Washington State Department of Commerce for the proposed change in development 
regulations under Submittal ID Number 2019-S-376; and 

 
WHEREAS, a determination of non-significance was issued July 10, 2019, in accordance 

with the State Environmental Policy Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Commerce granted expedited review 

for the proposed change in development regulations under Submittal Identification Number 
2019-S-346 on July 16, 2019; and 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
191



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the planning commission conducted a public hearing on this proposal on 
September 9, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, in regular session on September 9, 2019, the planning commission 

recommended the council approve the proposed ordinance and accept its Planning Commission 
Report as its findings;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. New. A new section is added to Chapter 16.10 BMC, concerning 

definitions of temporary homes, to read as follows: 
 
16.10.005 Definitions. 
“Temporary dwelling” means any structure that is placed upon a piece of property in a 
residential zone and that is intended to be occupied while the principal residence of the 
temporary dwelling occupant is being constructed upon said property. 
 

Section 2. New. A new subsection is added to 16.40.030(1), General installation 
requirements, to read as follows: 
 
16.40.030(1)(a) The manufactured home shall be placed upon masonry or concrete perimeter 
foundation walls unless placed in a manufactured home park. 
 

Section 3. Repeal. Section 19.12.120, Cabaret, is hereby repealed. 
 

Section 4. Amendment. Section 19.12.150, cottage housing development, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
19.12.150 Cottage housing development. 
“Cottage housing development” means a residential development consisting of clusters  
in accordance to the regulations in BMC 19.24. of up to 12 detached dwelling units that may 
include both cottage housing units and carriage units that are grouped around a common open 
space area and meet the following criteria: 
(1) Dwelling units are limited to a maximum square footage; and 
(2) Dwelling units are grouped around a common open space; and 
(3) Developments meet a set of design criteria not applicable to typical single-family 
developments as stipulated in Chapter 19.24 BMC. (Ord. 22-08 § 1 (Exh. A), 2008).  

  
Section 5. Amendment. Section 19.12.165, Dwelling, single family, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 
19.12.165 Dwelling, single-family. 
“Single-family dwelling” means a building, except a manufactured home, designed or used by 
one family for residential purposes; provided, however, that in order for a manufactured home to 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
192



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 3 
 

be treated as a single-family dwelling pursuant to this section, the manufactured home shall be 
placed upon masonry or concrete perimeter foundation walls. 

 
Section 6. Amendment. Section 19.12.170, Dwelling, temporary, is hereby amended 

to read as follows: 
 
19.12.170 Dwelling, temporary. 
“Temporary dwelling” means any structure that is placed upon a piece of propertyis as defined in 
BMC 16.10.005 . in a residential zone and that is intended to be occupied while the principal 
residence of the occupant is being constructed upon said property; provided, however, travel 
trailers and motor homes shall not be permitted as temporary dwellings. A temporary dwelling 
shall be permitted in all residential zones, but must meet the requirements of Chapter 16.10 
BMC. (Ord. 22-08 § 1 (Exh. A), 2008; Ord. 22-05 § 1, 2005; Ord. 8-84 § 1, 1984. Formerly 
19.12.165). 
 

Section 7. New. A new definition is added to the zoning ordinance concerning 
electric vehicles, to read as follows: 
 
19.12.196 Electric vehicles, stations, and infrastructure. 
1. “Electric vehicle” means any vehicle that operates, either partially or exclusively, on 

electrical energy from the grid, or an off-board source, that is stored on board for motive 
purpose. “Electric vehicle” includes a battery electric vehicle, a plug-in hybrid electric 
vehicle, a neighborhood electric vehicle, and a medium-speed electric vehicle. 
a. “Battery electric vehicle” or “BEV” means any vehicle that operates exclusively on 

electrical energy from an off-board source that is stored in the vehicle’s batteries, and 
produces zero tailpipe emissions or pollution when stationary or operating. 

b. “Plug-in hybrid electric vehicle” or “PHEV” means an electric vehicle that  
(i)  contains an internal combustion engine and also allows power to be delivered to drive 

wheels by an electric motor;  
(ii)  charges its battery primarily by connecting to the grid or other off-board electrical 

source;  
(iii) may additionally be able to sustain battery charge using an on-board internal-

combustion-driven generator; and  
(iv) has the ability to travel powered by electricity. 

c. “Neighborhood electric vehicle” means a self-propelled, electrically powered four-wheeled 
motor vehicle whose speed attainable in one mile is more than 20 miles per hour and not 
more than 25 miles per hour and conforms to federal regulations under Title 49 C.F.R. 
Part 571.500. 

d. “Medium-speed electric vehicle” means a self-propelled, electrically powered four-
wheeled motor vehicle, equipped with a roll cage or crush-proof body design, whose 
speed attainable in one mile is more than 25 miles per hour but not more than 35 miles 
per hour and otherwise meets or exceeds the federal regulations set forth in 49 C.F.R. 
Part 571.500. 

2. “Electric vehicle charging station” means a public or private parking space that is served by 
battery charging station equipment that has as its primary purpose the transfer of electric 
energy (by conductive or inductive means) to a battery or other energy storage device in an 
electric vehicle. An electric vehicle charging station equipped with Level 1 or Level 2 
charging equipment is permitted outright as an accessory use to any principal use. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
193

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/571.500
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/49/571.500


Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 4 
 

a. “Electric vehicle charging station – restricted” means an electric vehicle charging station 
that is  
(i) privately owned and restricted access (e.g., single-family home, executive parking, 

designated employee parking), or  
(ii) publicly owned and restricted (e.g., fleet parking with no access to the general 

public). 
b. “Electric vehicle charging station – public” means an electric vehicle charging station that is  

(i)  publicly owned and publicly available (e.g., park and ride parking, public library 
parking lot, on-street parking), or  

(ii) privately owned and publicly available (e.g., shopping center parking, non-reserved 
parking in multifamily parking lots). 

c. “Electric vehicle charging station – accessible” means an electric vehicle charging station 
that has been sized, designed and located consistent with Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) requirements for persons with disabilities. 

3. “Electric vehicle infrastructure” means structures, machinery, and equipment necessary and 
integral to support an electric vehicle, including battery charging stations, rapid charging 
stations, and battery exchange stations. 

6. “Electrical distribution substation” means an assembly of equipment designed to receive 
energy from a high voltage distribution supply system, to convert it to a form suitable for 
local distribution and to distribute the energy to feeders through switching equipment 
designed to protect the service from the effects of faults. 

 
Section 8. Amendment. Section 19.12.215, Family, is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 
 
19.12.215 Family. 
“Family” means an individual or a group of two or more individuals related by blood, marriage, 
or adoption, together with not more than two additional persons not related by blood, marriage or 
adoption, living together as a single housekeeping unit; or not more than five persons who are 
not related by blood or marriage or adoption, living together as a single housekeeping unit. 
People residing in group homes or adult family homes shall not be considered “family” under 
this definition. 
 

Section 9. New.  A new section is added to Chapter 19.12, as follows: 
 
19.12.242 Grooming parlor. 
“Grooming parlor” or “pet grooming parlor” shall be as defined in BMC 9.10.020. 
 

Section 10. Repeal. Section 19.12.250, Hotel, is repealed. 
 
Section 11. Amendment. Section 19.12.265, Kennel, is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 
 
19.12.265 Kennel. 
“Kennel” shall be as defined in BMC 9.10.020means any place where more than three dogs or 
cats, or more than five in combination of dogs and cats, and their young up to four months old, 
are kept for the purpose of sale, rental, boarding, breeding, hire as guard dogs on other property, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
194



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 5 
 

or for any commercial purpose or economic venture. A kennel shall not be interpreted to include 
a pet shop or grooming shop. 
 

Section 12. Amendment. Section 19.12.335, Manufactured home (also mobile home), 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
19.12.335 Manufactured home (also see mobile home). 
“Manufactured home” or “mobile home” shall be as defined in BMC 16.40.020.means a 
structure designed and constructed to be transportable in one or more sections, built on a 
permanent chassis, designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation 
and which is built in accordance with the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Manufactured Home Construction and Safety Standards Act. 
 

Section 13. Amendment. Section 19.12.345, Mobile home, is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

 
19.12.345 Mobile home. 
“Mobile home” shall be as defined in BMC 16.40.020.means a factory-built dwelling built prior 
to June 15, 1976, that complied with the applicable state codes in effect when constructed or 
when introduced into this state.  
 

Section 14. Amendment. Section 19.12.355, Motel, is hereby amended to read as 
follows 
 
19.12.355 Motel/Hotel. 
1.  “Motel” means a building or a group of buildings containing individual sleeping units where 

a majority of such units open individually and directly to the outside and where a majority of 
said units are designed for or occupied by transients.  

2. “Hotel” means a building containing individual sleeping units that have at least one 
entrance to the outdoors and common hallways to each room. 

3. “Apartment hotel” is a hotel that offers long-term rooming accommodations, for example by 
the week or month. 

 
Section 15. Amendment. Section 12.12.520 School, is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 
 
19.12.520 School. 
“School” means an public or private institution of learning that offers offering instruction in the 
several branches of learning and study required by the education code of the state to be taught in 
the public, private and parochial schools. 
(1) “Elementary school” means a school for early education that provides basic education from 
generally pre-school through grade 5 the first four to eight years of basic education and is 
recognized by the Washington State Superintendent of Public Instruction. 
(2) “Middle school” means a school that provides education for generally grades 6 through 8 and 
is recognized by the Washington State Superintendent of Public Instruction. 
(3) “High School" means a school for students who have completed their primary and middle 
school education and is recognized by the Washington State Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, and is usually attended by children in generally grades 9 to 12. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
195



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 6 
 

(4) “Post-secondary education” means education for students who graduated from high school 
and seek a certificate or a degree. 
(2) “Secondary school” or “senior high school” means school for students who have completed 
their primary education and is recognized by the Washington State Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, and is usually attended by children in grades nine to 12. (Ord. 19-17 § 9, 2017; Ord. 
22-08 § 1 (Exh. A), 2008; Ord. 22-05 § 1, 2005; Ord. 1020 § 2, 1981. Formerly 19.12.690). 
 

Section 16. Amendment. Section 19.12.560, Swap meet or flea market, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
19.12.560 Swap meet andor flea market. 
“Swap meet” andor “flea market” means and includes, but is not limited to, a business enterprise 
whereby arrangements are made to sell, lease, rent, offer or donate to one or more persons a 
place or area where such persons may offer or display secondhand personal property for sale or 
trade. shall be as described in BMC 6.04.020 in the definition for “temporary business”. 
 

Section 17. Amendment. Section 19.12.566, Unit, carriage, is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 
 
19.12.566 Unit, carriage. 
“Carriage unit” means a single-family dwelling located above a garage structure constructed in 
accordance with BMC 19.24. unit not to exceed 950 square feet in gross floor area normally 
located above a garage structure within a cottage housing development. (Ord. 22-08 § 1 (Exh. 
A), 2008). 
 

Section 18. Amendment. Section 19.12.568, Unit, cottage, is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

 
19.12.568 Unit, cottage. 
“Cottage unit” means a detached single-family dwelling within a cottage housing development 
constructed in accordance with BMC 19.24.unit containing 1,200 square feet or less of gross 
floor area within a cottage housing development. (Ord. 22-08 § 1 (Exh. A), 2008). 
 

Section 19. Repeal and replace. Section 19.20.130 is hereby repealed and replaced 
with the following: 

 
19.20.130 Permitted uses for all zones.  
Permitted, Conditional, Accessory and Prohibited Uses in Zoning Districts  
Table legend: P = Permitted outright; C = Subject to a conditional use permit; A = Subject to accessory use requirements in BMC 19.22;  
X = Prohibited; N/A = Not applicable 

 DISTRICT: Frontage 
zone3 LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 R-8,000 R-
20,000 S2 

Agricultural uses and animals (also see Title 9, BMC).             
Agricultural production X P X X X P C X X P P X 

Agricultural support goods and services X P P P X P P X X X X X 

Agriculture, not including marijuana X P X X X P C X X P P X 

Commercial produce stand (selling of agricultural 
products) P P P P P P P X X X P X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
196



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 7 
 

Permitted, Conditional, Accessory and Prohibited Uses in Zoning Districts  
Table legend: P = Permitted outright; C = Subject to a conditional use permit; A = Subject to accessory use requirements in BMC 19.22;  
X = Prohibited; N/A = Not applicable 

 DISTRICT: Frontage 
zone3 LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 R-8,000 R-
20,000 S2 

Keeping of livestock, poultry, rabbits, or bees X P X X X P C X C P P X 

Kennels P P P P C P C X X X X X 

Selling of agricultural products raised or grown on-
premises X P P P P P P P P P P X 

Stables and riding academies X P X X X P X X X X P X 
Commercial, retail uses.             
Adult entertainment businesses X C X X X X X X X X X X 

Antique and secondhand sales  P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Apparel and accessory stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Art galleries P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Bakeries, retail P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Bars, pubs, and nightclubs P X P P P X X X X X X X 

Beauty salons and barber shops X X P P P X P X X X X X 

Bicycle sales and repair shops P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Book stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Bowling alleys P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Building materials, garden and farm supply stores P P P P P X P X X X X X 

Confectioneries P C P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Convenience stores P P P P P X P X X X X X 

Drug stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Fabric stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Farmer’s markets P X P P P P P X X X X X 

Flea markets, periodic, or seasonal sales P X P P X P P X X X X X 

Flower stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Food stores and grocery stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Food services including coffeehouses, delicatessens, ice 
cream parlors, juice bars, etc. P P P P P P1 P X X X X C 

Furniture, home furnishings, and appliance stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

General merchandise stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Grooming parlors and pet supply stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Hardware stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Hobby, toy and game stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Jewelry stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Lumber sales P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Manufactured and modular housing sales X P P X X X X X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
197



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 8 
 

Permitted, Conditional, Accessory and Prohibited Uses in Zoning Districts  
Table legend: P = Permitted outright; C = Subject to a conditional use permit; A = Subject to accessory use requirements in BMC 19.22;  
X = Prohibited; N/A = Not applicable 

 DISTRICT: Frontage 
zone3 LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 R-8,000 R-
20,000 S2 

Microbreweries P C P P P P X X X X X X 

Motor vehicle supply stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Multi-use retail center P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Office supplies and equipment P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Outdoor art and craft sales P X P P P P P P P P P X 

Parking lot/sidewalk sales P X P P P P P P P P P X 

Periodic sales: Rummage sales X P P P P P1 P P P P P X 

Periodic sales: Swap meets P P P P X P1 X X X X X X 

Plant nurseries, landscaping materials, greenhouses 
(commercial) P X P P P P P X X X X X 

Printing, commercial X X P P P X X X X X X X 

Recreation, commercial P C P P X P X C X X X C 

Restaurants P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Restaurants with drive-in or drive-through service (fast 
food) P X P P X X C X X X X X 

Retail or service activities conducted out of temporary 
structures and/or trailers P C C C C P C X X X X P 

RV/tent campground X X X X X C X A X A A X 

Sales, retail P X P P P P1 P X X X X P 

Small appliance repair shops P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Specialty stores P X P P P X P X X X X P 

Sporting goods stores P X P P P X P X X X X P 

Stationery and gift stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Theaters, auditoriums P X P P P X P X X X X X 
Commercial service uses.             
Arcade, amusement P X P P X P1 C X X X X X 

Banks and financial institutions P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Business services P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Catering establishments X X P P A X P X X X X X 

Cemeteries X X P P X P X X X X X X 

Conference centers P X P P X P1 X X X X X X 

Equipment rental services, commercial X P P X X X X X X X X X 

Funeral parlors and mortuaries P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Laundromats and Laundry services P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Offices, general P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
198



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 9 
 

Permitted, Conditional, Accessory and Prohibited Uses in Zoning Districts  
Table legend: P = Permitted outright; C = Subject to a conditional use permit; A = Subject to accessory use requirements in BMC 19.22;  
X = Prohibited; N/A = Not applicable 

 DISTRICT: Frontage 
zone3 LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 R-8,000 R-
20,000 S2 

Office park P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Offices, government P X P P P P P X X C C X 

Parking, private for fee X C P P X X P P X X X X 

Parking, public  X C P P P P A A A A A A 

Parking, public garage  P C P P C P C C X X X X 

Printing, publishing, and allied industries including such 
processes as lithography, etching, engraving, binding, 
blueprinting, photocopying, and film processing 

X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Public transportation stations and park and ride lots (not 
including bus stops, which are allowed along all rights-of-
way) 

P P P P X P X X X X C X 

Radio and television studios (including recording studios) X P P P P X X X X X X X 

RV park, commercial X P X X X C X X X X X X 

Servicing of personal apparel and equipment P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Sports, health, spa, or karate clubs P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 
Community enhancement uses             
Accessory parks and recreation facilities for use by on-site 
employees or residents X P P P P X P P P P P X 

Carnivals/circuses P X P P C P1 C X X X X X 

Civic and community events P P P P P P P P P P P C 

Club  P X P P P P1 C X X X X X 

Day care, adult  X C C P X P1 P C C X X X 

Day care, child center and preschools X X X P X P1 P C C C C X 

Day care, child day care center X P P P P P1 P C C X X X 

Day care, family home X X P P P X P P P P P X 

Electrical distribution substations P P P P X P X X X X X X 

Libraries P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Museums X X P P P P P X X X X X 

Multi-use community center P X X P X P P X X X X X 

Parks and recreation, public X C P P P P P P P P P P 

Place of worship X X P P X P1 P P P P P X 

Stadiums, arenas and assembly halls P P P P P P1 P X X X X X 
Educational uses             
Job training and vocational rehabilitation P P P P P P1 P X X X X X 

School, public or private elementary X X X X X P P X P P P X 

School, public or private middle X X X X X P P X P P P X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
199



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 10 
 

Permitted, Conditional, Accessory and Prohibited Uses in Zoning Districts  
Table legend: P = Permitted outright; C = Subject to a conditional use permit; A = Subject to accessory use requirements in BMC 19.22;  
X = Prohibited; N/A = Not applicable 

 DISTRICT: Frontage 
zone3 LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 R-8,000 R-
20,000 S2 

School, public or private high X X X X X P P X P P P X 

School, except for post-secondary education X X X X X P P X P P P X 

School, public or private post-secondary education  X P P X X P P X P P P X 
Health care uses.             
Hospitals P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Massage clinics or center  P X P P P P1 P X X X X X 

Offices/clinics, health care providers P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Pharmaceutical and medical supply stores P X P P P X P X X X X X 

Veterinary clinic/hospitals P X P P X X P X X X X X 
Light industrial, manufacturing uses.             
Auto – Auto recycling and rebuilding P P X X X X X X X X X X 

Auto – Automobile rental agencies P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Auto – Automobile repair establishments P P P P X X X X X X X X 

Auto – Automobile towing services  X P A A X X X X X X X X 

Auto – Car washes or quick-service lubrication facilities P P P P X X X X X X X X 

Auto – Motor vehicle sales and service establishments for 
new or used vehicles P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Auto – Truck, trailer and recreational vehicle rental P P P X X X X X X X X X 

Contractor/construction offices X P P P P X P P P P P X 

Construction/contractors yards X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Custom art and craft work P P A A A X A X X X X X 

Electrical and electronic goods manufacture and assembly X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Food processing and packing X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Fuel storage facilities X C X X X X X X X X X X 

Hazardous waste on-site treatment and storage facilities X C X X X P X X X X X X 

Manufacturing, assembling and packaging of articles, 
products, or merchandise conducted entirely within a 
building 

X P X X X P1 X X X X X X 

Mini-storages and mini-warehouses (warehousing, 
storage) X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Recycling facilities, minor X P X X X P X X X X X X 

Sales, wholesale (wholesaling) X P X X X X X X X X X X 

Service station, motor vehicle (gas station) P P P P X X X X X X X X 

Storage yard, outdoor storage X P C X X P X X X X X X 

Warehousing and distribution facilities, to include 
wholesale trade not open to general public X P X X X X X X X X X X 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
200



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 11 
 

Permitted, Conditional, Accessory and Prohibited Uses in Zoning Districts  
Table legend: P = Permitted outright; C = Subject to a conditional use permit; A = Subject to accessory use requirements in BMC 19.22;  
X = Prohibited; N/A = Not applicable 

 DISTRICT: Frontage 
zone3 LI GC CC HC P NMU HDR R-

6,000 R-8,000 R-
20,000 S2 

Welding and fabrication X P X X X P X X X X X X 
Marijuana uses.              
Marijuana producing X P P X X X X X X X C X 

Marijuana processing X P P X X X X X X X C X 

Marijuana retailer P P P P P X C X X X X X 

Medical marijuana cooperatives X X X X X X P P P P P X 
Miscellaneous uses.              
Accessory buildings and structures X P P P X P P P P P P X 

Personal ham radio antennas X C C C C X C C C C C X 

Personal wireless service facilities X P P P P P P X X X X X 

Radio and television towers X C C C C X C C C C C X 

Satellite dishes, noncommercial, and antennas X C C C C X C C C C C X 
Residential uses and places where people stay.             
Accessory dwelling unit X X X X A X A A A A A X 

Adult family home   X X X P X P1 P P P P P X 

Apartment hotels (see “motel/hotel” definition) X X P P P X P X X X X X 

Assisted living facility X X P P X X P P P X X X 

Bed and breakfast inns X X P P P X P P P P P X 

Boarding, lodging, and rooming houses  X X X X X X P P P P P X 

Cottage housing development X X X X X X X P P P X X 

Dwelling, Caretaker’s X C C C C X X X X X X X 

Dwelling, carriage unit X X X X X X X P P P X X 

Dwelling, Duplex or two-family  X X X X X X X P P P X X 

Dwelling, Multiple-family  X X X P4 P5 X P P P X X X 

Dwelling, Single-family  X X X X X X P P P P P X 

Dwelling, Townhomes  X X X X X X P P P P X X 

Group homes X X X X X X P P P P P X 

Home occupations X A A A A X A A A A A X 

Manufactured home park or MPH X X X X X X X P X X X X 

Motels/hotels P X P P X X X X X X X X 

Nursing home or rehabilitation center P X P P X X P X X X X X 

Owner/operator residences X P X P P X P X X X X X 

Residential cluster X X X X X X X X P P X X 

Senior citizen low-income housing X X X P X C P P P X X X 
1     Uses are allowed within existing public buildings. 
2 Uses are to be as described in the city’s shoreline master program. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
201



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 12 
 

3 This frontage overlay zone is defined as west of the SR 410 and SR 165 intersection and 150 feet north and south of SR 410 from Mundy 
Loss Road to the SR 410 and SR 165 intersection on the south and the eastern property line of Tax No. 0619044016 (Rose’s IGAMr. Bill’s 
Plaza) on the north. Once an authorized use is established along SR 410 right-of-way, any other use authorized by the underlying zone is 
permitted behind the authorized use. Properties directly accessing from SR 410 and within 150 feet of the right-of-way shall contain only 
uses such as retail and offices in accordance with the use table in this section. 

4 Multifamily is allowed in this zone above commercial uses, beside commercial uses, or on the same parcel as commercial uses; density is 
to be based on the HDR zone for multifamily units. 

5 Multifamily is allowed in this zone above commercial uses; for more than one unit, density is to be based on the HDR zone for multifamily 
units. 

 
Section 20. Amendment. A new subsection (8) is added to BMC 19.28.020 to read as 

follows: 
 
19.28.020 Basic regulations for off-street parking. 
… (8) All parking lots allowed or required under this code shall also allow electric vehicle 

stations and/or infrastructure. 
 

Section 21. Copy to the Department of Commerce. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the 
City Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to provide a copy of this ordinance to the 
State Department of Commerce within 10 days of adoption. 

 
Section 22. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

 
Section 23. Effective date. This ordinance or a summary thereof consisting of the title 

shall be published in the official newspaper of the city, and shall take effect and be in full force 
five (5) days after publication. 

 
APPROVED by the Buckley City Council this 10th day of December 2019. 

 

 
 ----       

Pat Johnson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 ----         

Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney       

Published:       

Effective:      

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
202



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-128 
 
TIB Grant Agreement – River 
Avenue, Jefferson Ave to Main St. 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller  X 
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $50,307 Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  Fund 102 (Street Cap) & Grant Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  2020 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: TIB Grant Agreement       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: This is an agreement between the City and TIB accepting the $285,063 
grant for River Avenue, Jefferson Ave. to Main St. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve TIB Grant Funding Agreement 
for River Avenue, Jefferson Ave to Main St. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
203



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
204



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
205



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
206



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
207



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
208



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
209



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
210



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
211



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-129 
 
Engineering Services Proposal for 
Wastewater Water Reuse Plan 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller  X 
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $100,000 Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Engineering Services Proposal       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This proposal identifies tasks to complete a Wastewater Water Reuse Plan 
for the City. The plan will evaluate alternatives for improvements to the City’s Wastewater Treatment 
Plant necessary to generate reclaimed water and evaluate alternatives for facilities necessary for storage, 
conveyance, and reuse of the reclaimed water. The plan will utility and build on information in the 2017 
draft General Sewer Plan and 2017 Water System Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Identified in the Comprehensive Utility Plans 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve the Engineering Services Proposal 
for Wastewater Water Reuse Plan. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
212



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
213



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
214



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
215



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
216



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
217



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
218



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
219



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
220



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
221



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
222



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
223



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
224



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
225



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-130 
 
Interlocal Agreement Between 
WRSD & the City Regarding 
Impact Fees 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $ Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Interlocal Agreement       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: The City has adopted an Ordinance which provides for the collection, 
receipt and expenditure of school impact fees in conformance with the Growth Management Act and the 
City has adopted by reference the District’s Capital Facilities Plan as part of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
The City and the White River School District are entering into this Interlocal Agreement pursuant to 
Chapter 39.34 RCW for the purposes of setting forth the duties and responsibilities of the parties with 
regards to the Ordinance adopted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: A/F/PS April 2019 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve the Interlocal Agreement between 
White River School District and the City regarding Impact Fees. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
226



  1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
AND 

WHITE RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 416 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this   , by and between the City of 
Buckley (hereinafter "City") and the White River School District No. 416  (hereinafter 
"District"). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature passed the Growth Management Act, 
Chapter 36.70A RCW, and Chapter 82.02 RCW (hereinafter "Act"), which authorizes the 
imposition of impact fees on development activity as part of the financing for public facilities, 
which financing must provide for a balance between impact fees and other sources of public 
funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act permits the collection and expenditure of impact fees only for 
public facilities which are addressed by a capital facilities element of a comprehensive land use 
plan adopted under the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared a capital facilities plan, and authorization to 
collect and expend fees is contingent upon the City adopting the District's Capital Facilities Plan 
as part of the City's Comprehensive Plan, all as required by RCW 36.70A.070, and on the Plan's 
adherence with the statutory requirements of the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has adopted    which provides for the collection, 
receipt and expenditure of school impact fees in conformance with the Act and the City has 
adopted by reference the District’s Capital Facilities Plan as part of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the District have entered into this Interlocal Agreement 
pursuant to Chapter 39.34 RCW, for the purposes of setting forth the duties and responsibilities 
of the parties with regard to      and all future amendments thereto 
(collectively hereinafter “School Impact Fee Ordinance”); 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 

I.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT 
 
 The District, by and through its officials, employees, agents, and representatives, agrees 
to: 
 
 A. Annually, as designated by the City, submit to the City a six (6) year capital 
facilities plan or an update of the previously adopted plan together with an impact fee schedule 
which meets the requirements of the Act and the School Impact Fee Ordinance. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
227



  2 

 
 B. Establish and maintain impact fee accounts as required by RCW 82.02.070 and 
Section 19.08.080(B) of the School Impact Fee Ordinance, and collect fees and provide the City 
with required notices pursuant to Section 19.08.080(B) of the School Impact Fee Ordinance. 
 
 C. Properly expend and account for impact fees as required in RCW 82.02.050(4) 
and 82.02.070(2). 
 
 D. Annually, as designated by the City, prepare a report showing the source and 
amount of all moneys collected, earned, or received, and all system improvements that were 
financed in whole or in part by impact fees during the preceding calendar year, together with all 
information necessary to allow the City to meet all of the requirements of RCW 82.02.070(1). 
 
 E. Encumber and expend impact fees only as provided in RCW 82.02.070(3), and 
where the District has extraordinary and compelling reasons for noncompliance with this statute, 
the District shall identify such reasons in written findings to the City Council. 
 
 F. Make timely payments of refunds due under RCW 82.02.080, together with any 
interest which may be due thereon. 
 
 G. Review and approve as to form all covenants and declarations of restrictions, as 
these documents are required to maintain exemptions from payment of impact fees. 
 
 H. Maintain all accounts and records necessary to ensure compliance with this 
Agreement, the School Impact Fee Ordinance, and Chapter 82.02 RCW. 
 

II.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CITY 
 
 The City, by and through its officers, officials, employees, agents and representatives, 
agrees to: 
 
 A. Collect impact fees from residential development as required by the City’s 
adopted school impact fee ordinance,   and distribute such impact fees to the District as provided 
for under this Agreement. 

 
 B. Consider adopting amendments to its school impact fee ordinance as requested by 
the District to the extent consistent with applicable law 
 
 C. Enforce covenants or declarations of covenants and restrictions within the City 
which have been executed and recorded as a condition of an exemption of a development activity 
from school impact fees.  When enforcement action is appropriate, the City shall advise the 
District of such potential enforcement action, and the District shall determine whether to request 
that the City take enforcement action.  The District shall compensate the City for all expenses 
incurred in such enforcement actions.   
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
228



  3 

 
III.  INDEMNIFICATION, HOLD HARMLESS, AND WAIVER 

 
 A. , The District acknowledges that the City has no obligation to adopt any school 
impact fee ordinance.  To this end, the The District shall, at its own cost and expense, protect, 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, and agents, from any and 
all costs, claims, judgments or awards of damages, including attorney fees, arising out of or in 
any way resulting from the School Impact Fee Ordinance or amendments thereto, or performance 
of the duties set forth in Section I of this Agreement, except for the intentional or negligent acts 
or omissions of the the City.   
  
 B. The District's duties to the City under this Section shall not be diminished or 
extinguished by the prior termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section IV. 
 

IV.  EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION 
 

 A. Only upon the repeal or invalidation of the School Impact Fee Ordinance, shall 
this Agreement be terminated.  All other obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect 
until both of the following conditions shall have been satisfied: 
 

1. The City or the District provides written notice that this Agreement is 
being terminated; and 

 
2. The District no longer retains unexpended or unencumbered impact fees 

and interest earned thereon. 
 

 The obligations under Section III, Indemnification, shall be continuing and shall not be 
diminished or extinguished by the termination of this Agreement. 
 
 B. The District shall, upon the repeal of the School Impact Fee Ordinance and/or 
termination of this Agreement, either properly expend or refund any remaining unexpended or 
unencumbered impact fees together with interest earned thereon pursuant to Chapter 82.02 RCW. 
 
 C. Nothing herein shall limit, waive or extinguish any right or remedy provided by 
this Agreement or by law that either party may have in the event that the obligation, terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement are breached by the other party. 
 

V.  MODIFICATION 
 

 No changes or modifications of this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon either party 
unless such changes or modifications are in writing and executed by both parties. 
 

VI.  INTEGRATION 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
229



  4 

 This Agreement, together with the School Impact Fee Ordinance, contains all the terms 
and conditions agreed upon by the parties.  No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding 
the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to bind either party. 
 

VII.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 In the event that any term or condition of this Agreement or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms, conditions or 
applications of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid term, condition or 
application.  To this end, the terms and conditions of this Agreement are declared severable. 
 

VIII.  RIGHTS OF OTHER PARTIES 
 
 It is understood that this Agreement is solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and 
conveys no right to any other party. 
 

IX.  DISPUTES 
 

 Jurisdiction of any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be in Pierce County 
Superior Court, and the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs and 
reasonable attorney fees. 
 

X.  GOVERNING LAW AND FILING 
 

 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and the validity and 
performance hereof shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Washington.  This Agreement 
shall become effective following occurrence of the following: 
 
 A. Adoption of the School Impact Fee Ordinance by the City; 
 
 B. Approval of this Agreement by the official action of the governing bodies of each 
of the parties hereto; 
 
 C. Execution of this Agreement by the duly authorized representative of each of the 
parties hereto; and 
 
 D. The filing of the Agreement by the District with the following public officials: 
 

1. The City Clerk of the City of Buckley;  
 
2. The Secretary of the Board of Directors of the White River School 

District; and 
 
3. The Pierce County Auditor. 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
230



  5 

XII.  ADMINISTRATION 
 
 A. The City's representative for purposes of administering this Agreement is the 
Buckley City Administrator or his/her designee whose address is c/o City Hall, PO Box 1960, 
933 Main Street, Buckley, WA  98321. 
 
 B. The District's representative for purposes of administering this Agreement is the 
Superintendent or his/her designee whose address is P.O. Box 2050, Buckley, WA 98321. 
 

XIII.  WAIVER OF DEFAULT 
 

 Waiver of any default in the performance of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not 
be deemed to be waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a 
modification of this Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year set forth below. 
 
 
CITY OF BUCKLEY  WHITE RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NO. 416 
 
 
By: 

  
 
By: 

Mayor  Superintendent 
 
Date: 

  
Date: 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
       

City Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
231



  6 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF PIERCE ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________________ 
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that (he/she) signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that (he/she) was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the ___________________ of the City of Buckley to be the free and 
voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 Dated:  ____________________. 
 
 

       
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington, residing at     
My Commission expires     

 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF PIERCE ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that _____________________ is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on 
oath stated that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the 
Superintendent of the ___________________School District to be the free and voluntary act of 
such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 Dated:  ____________________. 
 
 

       
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
Washington, residing at     
My Commission expires     

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
232



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-131 
 
Bid Award: Police Station Roof 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $45,609.89 Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  Police Reserve (Fund 007) Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  Immediate Police Dept – Chief Arsanto  X 
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Quote       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  The Buckley Police Department building located at 146 S. Cedar St is in need of 
roof replacement, in late summer, the City was contacted by the Buckley building inspector regarding standing 
water on the Police Station roof. After an inspection with the Buckley Building Inspector of the roof and its 
drains, it was determined the roof was sagging and did not have a pitch to drain properly.  While on the roof, 
standing water was located approximately 1-2 inches deep covering approximately 25% of the roof area after a 
normal summer rain event, this would be much greater in a winter/snow event. 
 
To the best of our knowledge, the roof is over 20 years old and reached the end of its service life. At this time, 
we have contacted Coast Exteriors; a contractor the City has relied upon in the past to provide input on 
replacement/solutions.   
 
Please review the estimate for the roof to be replaced to avoid any further damage and or failures to the 
structure caused by the standing water on the flat roof surface.   
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: A/F/PS 11/26/19 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Award the Police Station Roof Repair to 
Coast Exteriors, Inc. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
233



 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
234



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-132 
 
Early Separation Agreement 
between the City and Police Chief 
Arsanto. 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  $ Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Agreement       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: The draft being presented for Council consideration is an employee 
separation agreement between the City and Chief Arsanto for early retirement, severance pay and other 
benefits. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: A/F/PS 11-26-19 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve the Early Separation Agreement 
Between the City and Chief Jim Arsanto for Early Retirement, Severance Pay 
and Other Benefits. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
235



{GAR2036733.DOCX;1/13047.900000/ } 
KNE1077379.DOCX;2\13047.900000\  

DELIVERY OF PROPOSED, SEVERANCE, RELEASE 
AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT AND 

ADVICE TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY 
 

 
TO: James Arsanto: 

 

 Attached hereto as Exhibit A you will find a complete copy of the “Employment Separation 

Agreement” that is proposed to be entered into by you and the City of Buckley.   

 You are advised to consult an attorney concerning the proposed Employment Separation 

Agreement prior to executing it. 

 The purpose of this document is to provide you with a proposed Severance Agreement, Release 

and Hold Harmless (“Agreement”) which includes, among other things, a payment in exchange for 

releases of claims, including a release of age discrimination claims under the Age Discrimination in 

Employment Act of 1967, Chapter 14 of Title 29 of the United States Code, as amended by the Older 

Workers Benefit Protection Act and any subsequent amendments, 29 U.S.C. §§621-634 (“ADEA”).  In 

accordance with the ADEA, you are advised to consult an attorney concerning the Agreement prior to 

executing it.  As noted in the Agreement, you may choose to sign it at any time during the twenty-one 

(21) day period beginning on the date it was delivered to you, and you have seven (7) days after signing it 

to revoke the Agreement by giving the Board written notice of revocation as described in the Agreement.  

If the Agreement is signed by you and by the Board and is not withdrawn or revoked prior to the end of 

the seven (7) day period, the Agreement shall become effective the day after the revocation period has 

expired (the “Effective Date”).  If this Agreement is revoked or withdrawn prior to the Effective Date, it 

shall be null and void.  

 Please evidence your receipt of this document, and of a copy of the proposed Employment 

Separation Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, by dating and signing this document in 

the locations provided below. 

 

 I, ____________________________________, hereby certify and acknowledge that on the ____ 

day of _______________, 20__, I received a copy of this document and a complete copy of the proposed 

Employment Separation Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
 DATED this ______ day of _________________, 2020.  
 

         
         

         

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
236



 
 

(Exhibit A) 

 

CITY OF BUCKLEY  

EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement relating to employment separation (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between 

James Arsanto (“Employee”) on behalf of himself and his present and future marital community (if any), 

heirs, successors, agents, attorneys, representatives, and assigns and the City of Buckley (“City”), 

collectively hereinafter referred to as “Parties”. 

 

RECITALS 

 

 Employee has been a regular full-time employee of the City of Buckley since April 1, 1991 and 

serves as the Buckley Police Chief. 

 

 Due to medical related issues the City has developed concerns about the ability of Employee to 

physically continue his services to the City as a law enforcement officer.  Therefore, the Parties desire to 

enter into this voluntary separation agreement to effectuate Employee’s separation from employment.  

 

The Employee intends to apply for early medical and disability retirement from his position 

of Chief of Police and file a complete application for medical and disability retirement with the 

appropriate State of Washington pension plan (LEOFF II; PERS; etc.). 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, the Parties agree as 

follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. The Mayor has offered certain incentives, described more specifically herein, to 

Employee to voluntarily separate from employment through early retirement.  Therefore, Employee has 

agreed to this separation and irrevocably resigns from his employment with the City effective 5:00 p.m. 

on April 3, 2020.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
237



 
 

2. If Employee executes this Agreement and does not revoke it, as consideration for this 

Agreement, the City agrees to pay the premiums directly to insurer under COBRA for Employee and 

Employee’s spouse to receive the same medical benefits as those employees covered under the most current 

Bargaining Unit Agreement between the City and Buckley Police Officers, for a maximum period of thirty-

six (36) months (if qualified) following Employee’s resignation from employment.  In addition, Employee 

shall be compensated for all accrued vacation time, all paid holidays, administrative/executive 

compensatory time, 60% of sick time and other benefits to date. The sums of the premiums for COBRA 

coverage and other cash-outs or benefits due Employee under the City’s personnel policy, employment 

agreement and Collective Bargaining Agreement, if any, collectively constitute “Consideration” under this 

Agreement.  Employee acknowledges that Employee is not entitled to receive the Consideration unless 

Employee signs this Agreement and does not revoke it prior to the Effective Date.  Employee agrees that if 

he signs this Agreement and does not revoke it, the only compensation of any kind or nature he is entitled to 

receive from the City and/or its elected officials, employees, volunteers, contractors, agents and assigns is 

the consideration set forth in this Section 2.    

 

3. Employee acknowledges that on __________________, 20__, Employee was given 

twenty-one (21) days to consider and accept the terms of this Agreement and that Employee was advised 

to consult with an attorney about this Agreement before signing it.  To accept this Agreement, Employee 

must date and sign this Agreement and return it to the City Administrator, on or before 5:00 p.m. 

on ___________________, 2020 in order for it to be effective.  If this Agreement is not signed and 

returned by that date and time, or if this Agreement is not executed by the City, this Agreement shall not 

be effective.  Once Employee returns this Agreement to the City Administrator, Employee will still have 

seven (7) additional days from the date Employee signs this Agreement to revoke Employee’s acceptance 

(“revocation period”).  If Employee decides to revoke this Agreement after signing and returning it, 

Employee must deliver to the City Administrator a written statement of revocation by hand delivery or 

registered mail that arrives no later than 5:00 p.m. on the seventh (7th) day after Employee signed the 

Agreement. If Employee elects to revoke this Agreement during the revocation period, it shall be null and 

void.  If Employee does not revoke it during the revocation period, the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement will take effect on the eighth day after the date Employee executed this Agreement, provided 

that the City has also executed the Agreement (“Effective Date”). 

 

4. In consideration of the provisions of this Agreement, the Employee fully and completely 

releases and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, employees, representatives and agents 

(collectively the City) from any and all claims (including claims for attorneys’ fees and costs), 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
238



 
 

complaints, causes of action, demands, sums of money, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, 

liabilities, damages or judgments, and compensation of every kind and nature whatsoever in law or in 

equity which the Employee ever had, now has, or which he, hereafter, can, shall, or may have against the 

City for or by any reason of or in connection with any actions, conduct, decisions, behavior, events, 

transactions, omissions, or accounts, occurring up to the date of this Agreement.  The Employee 

acknowledges that this release specifically covers, but is not limited to, any and all claims, complaints, 

causes of action or demands which he has or may have against the City relating in any way to the terms, 

conditions and circumstances of his employment and the termination, layoff, resignation and/or retirement 

thereof, whether based on statutory or common law claims for wrongful discharge, breach of contract or 

collective bargaining agreement, wrongful withholding of wages and/or other wage-related claims under 

state or federal law, breach of any express or implied promise, any covenant of good faith and fair 

dealing, expressed or implied, misrepresentation, fraud, retaliation, breach of public policy, infliction of 

emotional distress, claims for personal injuries, emotional or mental distress of any kind or nature, 

discrimination, harassment, outrage, defamation, promissory estoppel, invasion of privacy, United States 

and/or Washington Constitutional claims or employment discrimination, including without limitation, to 

claims under the Federal Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, the Older 

Workers Benefit Protection Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Washington Law Against 

Discrimination or any other theory or basis whether legal or equitable (collectively hereinafter 

“Employee’s Claims”).  Employee further agrees to indemnify and defend the City and hold the City 

harmless from Employee’s Claims.   

 

  a. The Employee expressly acknowledges that this release does not relinquish any 

protected rights he may have under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Equal Pay Act, the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act or the Age Discrimination in 

Employment Act to file a charge, testify, assist or participate in any manner in an investigation, hearing or 

proceedings conducted by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or the Office of Federal 

Contract Compliance.  However, the Employee may not recover additional compensation or damages as a 

result of that participation. 

  

  b. The Employee represents that he has not filed any claims, complaints, 

grievances, charges, lawsuits, or appeals against the City with any governmental agency or any court, 

organization, or entity and, except as expressly provided otherwise in Paragraph 4.a., agrees that he will 

not initiate, assist or encourage such actions.  To the extent allowed by law, Employee agrees not to make 

or bring any claims, grievances, appeals, complaints, or other efforts to seek redress against the City in the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
239



 
 

future.  Employee represents and warrants he has not assigned or transferred or otherwise encumbered any 

claims he may have against the City.   

 

  c. This waiver and release shall not waive or release claims where the events in 

dispute first arise after execution of this Agreement, nor shall it preclude the Employee from filing a 

lawsuit for the exclusive purpose of enforcing his rights under this Agreement. 

 

5. ADEA Claims Expressly Released; Indemnification, Defense and Hold Harmless.  

Employee further understands and acknowledges that Employee’s Claims that are hereby released, 

waived and discharged include, without limitation, any claims Employee may have for age 

discrimination under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, Chapter 14 of Title 29 of 

the United States Code, as amended by the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act and any 

subsequent amendments, 29 U.S.C.  §§621-634 (“ADEA”).  This waiver, release and discharge of 

Employee’s Claims do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date the waiver is 

executed.  Employee further agrees to indemnify and defend the City and hold the City harmless 

from any Employee’s Claims that arise under the ADEA. 

 

6. The City agrees not to oppose any claim for unemployment benefits so long as the factual 

grounds are accurate and state that the Employee voluntarily resigned his employment. 

 

7.  Inquiries and Other Investigations.  Inquiries by person or telephone regarding the Employee 

will be forwarded and responded to by the City's Chief of Police who, in the absence of a written release 

from the Employee, will provide the Employee’s dates of employment and salary, as well as the 

Employee’s final rank.  Other limited information as shall be subject to public disclosure under the laws 

of the State of Washington may also be provided.   

 

a. This paragraph and undertaking is based upon the assumption that the 

Employee's representations to future employers, the media and public are limited to the Employee’s 

resignation for early retirement, and the information contained in this Agreement.  If the Employee elects 

to comment on matters beyond the scope of such responses, the City reserves the right to respond 

factually to the issues raised.  Nothing herein shall be interpreted to limit the City’s right and/or 

obligation to respond to a judicial or administrative subpoena, nor to limit its required lawful response to 

any public disclosure request.   

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
240



 
 

 b. Nothing in this Agreement limits either party’s rights or duties in any criminal or 

other investigation conducted by any other governmental entity.  Any such investigation, including any 

criminal charging decision, is separate and distinct from this agreement and are not limited or otherwise 

impacted by this agreement. 

 

8. This Agreement contains all of the promises and covenants exchanged by the parties.  In 

executing this Agreement, each party warrants that it is relying solely upon its judgment and knowledge 

and that it is not relying on any statement or representation made by the other party or its agents.  Any 

modification to this Agreement must be made in writing, signed by the party to whom it applies in order 

to be valid and binding. 

 

9. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 

State of Washington.  Jurisdiction and venue for any disputes arising under this Agreement shall be in 

Pierce County Superior Court in Tacoma, Washington.   

 

 10. All parties have participated or had the opportunity to participate in drafting this 

Agreement.  No ambiguity shall be construed against any party based upon a claim that that party drafted 

ambiguous language.   

 

 11. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any part of it is found to be 

unenforceable, the other paragraphs shall remain fully valid and enforceable. 

 

 12. This Agreement can be executed in duplicate and/or counterpart originals, and/or by 

execution of facsimiles.  Each duplicate and/or counterpart original and signatures reproduced by facsimile 

shall have the force and effect of an original document. 

 

 13. By signing this Agreement, Employee acknowledges that Employee was advised by 

the City to consult with an attorney and has had the opportunity to consult with an attorney of 

Employee’s choice; that Employee has carefully reviewed and considered this Agreement; that 

Employee understands the terms of the Agreement; and that Employee voluntarily agrees to them.    

 

 

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
241



 
 

         CITY OF BUCKLEY                                         EMPLOYEE 
 
 
 
         _____________________________                 By_________________________ 
         Mayor Pat Johnson                                                     James Arsanto 
 
 
 
        Attest/Authenticated 
 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
 
       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
        City Attorney 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
242



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: December 10, 2019       AB19-0133 
 
Agreement – Professional 
Consulting Services for City 
Administration 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  TBD Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  Fund 001 Planning Dept – Kathy James   
Timeline:  Immediate Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Agreement       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  Our current City Administrator, Dave Schmidt is retiring March 6, 2020, 
and the City will begin to advertise for a replacement within the next 2 weeks with the anticipation that a 
new City Administrator can be selected, hired and in place early in February, 2020.  As has been done in 
the past, we would like to retain Dave through 2020 on a limited basis as an on-call consultant that the 
new City Administrator and Department Managers can use for knowledge and information as they 
transition into the new positions.  This agreement will be for a monthly retainer as outlined in agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: A/F/PS 11-26-2019 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve the Professional Consulting 
Agreement for City Administration Consultant. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
243



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING 
 SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF BUCKLEY AND  

DAVID SCHMIDT, CITY ADMINTRATION CONSULTANT 
 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made this 10th day of December, 2019, by and between the City of 

Buckley (hereinafter referred to as “City”), a Washington Municipal Corporation, and David Schmidt, an 

independent contractor (hereinafter referred to as “Service Provider”). 

 

 WHEREAS, Service Provider is a previous employee of the City who served in the capacity of 

City Administrator for over 18 years; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Service Provider while employed with the City has gained invaluable 

knowledge, expertise and familiarity with the City’s overall administration/finance, public works/utilities, 

planning/building, parks/recreation and public safety/emergency services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is experiencing a significant organizational shift with several department 

heads and the City Administrator retiring,  and in order to maintain a level of continuity in the City, the 

Mayor and City Council believe that the City would benefit from having an experienced consultant 

available to guide and assist new appointees with familiarizing them with City processes; and 

 

WHEREAS, Service Provider will be retired and residing in Lyle, WA and is available to 

communicate and provide support with the Mayor, new City Administrator and other Department heads 

as needed; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with Service Provider on an "on-call" basis for a limited 

period to act as a mentor and assist the Mayor, new City Administrator and other Department heads in 

managing City operations, and Service Provider agrees to contract with the City for same;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it is agreed by and 

between the parties as follows: 

 

T E R M S 
 
1. Description of Work.  Service Provider shall perform work as described in Exhibit A, Scope of 

Work, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, according to the existing 
standard of care for such services.  Service Provider shall not perform any additional services 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
244



without the expressed permission of the City. The Service Provider warrants that he has the 
requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to provide the Services. The Service Provider 
agrees to perform the services to the City for up to an estimated 15-20 hours per month, or for the 
actual hours necessary to complete the work on a time basis as approved by the Mayor and/or new 
City Administrator. 

 
2. Compensation and Method of Payment.  The Service Provider’s services shall be compensated at 

the rates and in the manner set forth in this section and Exhibit B. 
 

A. Monthly Retainer.  The Service Provider shall be paid a monthly retainer of two-thousand 
one-hundred and twenty-five dollars ($2,125) per month for up to 20 hours of consulting per 
month. 

 
B. Ongoing Consulting.  The Consultant shall be paid the hourly rate of one-hundred and five 

dollars ($105.00) for any additional hours over the 20 hour per month retainer amount for 
actual time spent as approved by the Mayor and/or City Administrator.   

 
C. Expense Reimbursement.  Separate from and in addition to the hourly charges provided in 

subsection (B), the City shall reimburse the Consultant for any transportation and lodging 
costs associated with the implementation of this Agreement at the City’s current mileage rate 
and actual cost of lodging should it be required to attend meeting(s). 

 
D. Invoice Payment and Procedure.  The Consultant shall submit monthly written invoices to the 

City for services rendered during the preceding month.  Each invoice shall detail the services 
provided and any reimbursable expenses incurred.  The City shall remit appropriate payment 
to the Consultant within 30 days of receiving each invoice.  If the City objects to all or any 
portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the Consultant of the same within five (5) days from 
the date of receipt and shall pay that portion of the invoice not in dispute.  The parties agree 
to make every effort to settle the disputed portion through informal negotiation.  

 
4. Duration of Agreement.  Service Provider shall perform the services described in Attachment A, 

commencing March 7, 2020 through December 31, 2020, unless sooner terminated under the 
provisions hereinafter specified. PROVIDED, the Mayor and/or City Administrator and Service 
Provider may jointly agree to extend this agreement on the same terms and conditions up to two 
subsequent six (6) month increments through December 31, 2021.  

 
5. Relationship of Parties.  The Parties intend that the Service Provider shall be an independent 

contractor and that the Service Provider has the ability to control and direct the performance and 
details of its work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.  The 
City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay Service Provider sick leave, vacation pay or any 
other benefit of employment, nor to pay any social security or other tax which may arise as an 
incident of employment.  Service Provider shall take all necessary precautions and shall be 
responsible for the safety of its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of the 
contract work and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at 
Service Provider’s own risk, and Service Provider shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to 
materials, tools, or other articles used or held for use in connection with the work.  The Service 
Provider shall pay all income and other taxes due except as provided in Section 9.  Industrial or any 
other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether such may provide 
a secondary or incidental benefit to the Service Provider, shall not be deemed to convert this 
Agreement to an employment contract.  Even though Service Provider is an independent contractor, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
245



the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general right of 
inspection to secure satisfactory completion 

 
6. Project Name.  Administrative Consulting. 
 
7. Termination. 
 

A. Termination Upon the City's Option.  The City shall have the option to terminate this 
Agreement at any time.  Termination shall be effective upon sixty (60) days written notice to 
the Service Provider. 

 
B. Termination Upon the Service Provider's Option.  The Service Provider shall have the option 

to terminate this Agreement at any time.  Termination shall be effective upon sixty (60) days 
written notice to the City. 

 
C. Termination for Cause.  If Service Provider refuses or fails to complete the tasks described in 

Attachment A, or to complete such work in a manner unsatisfactory to the City, then the City 
may, by written notice to Service Provider, give notice of its intention to terminate this 
Agreement.  After such notice, Service Provider shall have thirty (30) days to cure, to the 
satisfaction of the City or its representative.  If Service Provider fails to cure to the 
satisfaction of the City, the City shall send Service Provider a written termination letter which 
shall be effective upon deposit in the United States mail to Service Provider's address as 
stated below. 

 
D. Rights upon Termination.  In the event of termination, the City shall only be responsible to 

pay for all services satisfactorily performed by Service Provider to the effective date of 
termination, as described in the final invoice to the City.  The City Administrator shall make 
the final determination about what services have been satisfactorily performed.   

 
8.   Assignment and subcontracting.  The Service Provider shall not assign any portion of this 

Agreement without the written consent of the City. The parties agree that the services provided for 
herein are personal to the Service Provider who was accepted by the City for this contract based 
upon his personal skills and experience. It is further agreed that consent for an assignment must be 
sought by the Service Provider not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any proposed 
assignment. 

 
9. Taxes.  City will not withhold federal or state taxes. All compensation received by the Service 

Provider will be reported to the Internal Revenue Service at the end of the calendar year in 
accordance with applicable IRS regulations. 

 
10. Indemnification / Hold Harmless.  The Service Provider shall defend, indemnify and hold the 

City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of 
the City. 

 
 Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 

then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to 
property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Service Provider and the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Service Provider’s liability hereunder 
shall be only to the extent of the Service Provider’s negligence.  It is further specifically and 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
246



expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Service Provider’s 
waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this 
indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this 
section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
11. Entire Agreement.  The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with all 

documents attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other 
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into 
or forming a part of, or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement. 

 
12. City's Right of Supervision, Limitation of Work Performed by Service Provider.  Even though 

Service Provider works as an independent contractor in the performance of his duties under this 
Agreement, the work must meet the approval of the City and be subject to the City's general right of 
inspection and supervision to secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  In the performance of 
work under this Agreement, Service Provider shall comply with all federal, state and municipal 
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that are applicable to Service Provider's business, 
equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement or accruing out of the 
performance of such operations. 

 
13. Work Performed at Service Provider's Risk.  Service Provider shall be responsible for the safety 

of its employees, agents and subcontractors in the performance of the work hereunder and shall take 
all protections reasonably necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at Service Provider's 
own risk, and Service Provider shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or 
other articles used or held for use in connection with the work. 

 
14. Ownership of Products and Premises Security. 
 

A. All reports, plans, specifications, data maps, and documents produced by the Service Provider 
in the performance of services under this Agreement, whether in draft or final form and 
whether written, computerized, or in other form, shall be the property of the City. 

 
B.   While working on the City’s premises, the Service Provider agrees to observe and           

support the City’s rules and policies relating to maintaining physical security of the City’s 
premises. 
 

15. Modification.  No waiver, alteration or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and 
Service Provider. 

 
16. Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by Service Provider without the written consent 

of the City shall be void. 
 
17. Written Notice.  All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the 

addresses listed below, unless notified to the contrary.  Any written notice hereunder shall become 
effective as of the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently 
given if sent to the addressee at the address stated in this Agreement or such other address as may 
be hereafter specified in writing. 

 
18. Non-Waiver of Breach.  The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the 

covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
247



more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, 
agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 
19. Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall use their best efforts to resolve disputes and issues arising 

out of or related to this Agreement.  Disagreements will be resolved promptly and at the lowest 
level of authority.  Each Party shall notify the other in writing of any problem or dispute.  This 
written notice shall include: 
 

(1) A description of the issue to be resolved; 
(2) A description of the difference between the Parties on the issue; and 
(3) A summary of steps taken by the Parties to resolve the issue. 

 
The Parties shall meet within ten (10) business days of receiving the written notice and attempt to 
resolve the dispute.  In the event the Parties cannot resolve the dispute (and that dispute is not 
subject to some other formal appeal process), the City and the Service Provider mutually agree to 
use a formal dispute process such as mediation, through an agreed-upon mediator and process.  All 
costs for mediation services would be divided equally between the City and the Service Provider.  
Each party would be responsible for the costs of their own legal representation.  The parties shall 
use the mediation process in good faith. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be reimbursed for its reasonable attorney fees from the other party.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year above 

written. 
 
CITY OF BUCKLEY SERVICE PROVIDER 
 
By:   By:   
 Patricia Johnson, Mayor Title:   
  
 
CITY CONTACT SERVICE PROVIDER CONTACT 
City Administrator                                         David Schmidt  
City of Buckley 25 Hida Way 
P.O. Box 1960 Lyle, WA  98635 
Buckley, WA  98321                                                     Phone:  (253) 740-5757 (mobile) 
Phone:  360-761-7802  Phone:  (509) 365-0076 (home) 
E-mail:                                                                                E-mail: dwca822@centurylink.net 
                                    
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED 
 
By:   
 Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
By:   
 Office of the City Attorney 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
248



EXHIBIT A 
 
Contract for Services – Scope of Work 

The City of Buckley will provide: 

• A laptop computer with Microsoft Office and Adobe Professional installed. 
• Access to the City’s Network via secure remote access. 
• City email address for use by staff and consultant. 

 
The Service Provider will:  
 

CONSULTATION SERVICES 
 
Be available to communicate Monday through Friday via phone and/or email to assist in mentoring and 
training the new City Administrator and/or Department heads by: 

 
  Advise when requested on administration and coordination of the activities and functions of the 

various City offices, departments, commissions and boards in carrying out the requirements of the 
City ordinances and the policies of the City Council; and 

 Advise when requested on administration and supervision of the carrying out of the decisions, 
regulations and policies of the various City departments; and 

 When requested assist in reporting to the mayor and the City Council concerning the status of all 
assignments, duties, projects and functions of the various offices, departments, commissions and 
boards; and 

 When requested offer assistance in the preparation of the annual budget; and  

 Provide guidance or assistance in advising the Mayor and City Council on the financial condition 
of the City and its future needs and to provide assistance in the preparation and submission to the 
mayor and council of any reports necessary for the expedient running of the business of the City; 
and 

 Offer guidance when requested on expenditures by the various City offices, departments, 
commissions and boards, for the purpose of keeping the same within the limitations of the annual 
budget for the City. 

 Provide guidance or assistance on personnel and human resource issues;  

 When requested attend at least one meeting per month to assist the Mayor and/or City 
Administrator on any issues that require the Service Provider’s presence; and 

 Provide guidance and/or assistance on all franchises and permits granted by the City; and 

 Provide guidance and/or assistance on the capital improvements program based on long-range 
plans and policies developed by the City; and 

 Provide guidance and/or assistance to the City Administrator for each department to ascertain 
whether or not all City departments are adequately and properly manned and organized in order 
to carry out their functions; and 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
249



 Any other assistance requested by the Mayor and/or City Administrator in the conformance of 
their duties in the administration of the business of the city government. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
250



EXHIBIT B 
 
 
Cost.   
 
Monthly Retainer: 
For up to 20 hours per month                                  $2,125 per month  
Additional hours approved by Mayor/City Administrator                                 $105 per hour  
 
Meetings: 
If required to attend any meeting(s), round trip travel time and time spent in attendance will be deducted 
from the monthly 20 hour threshold. Any hours over the 20 hours will be billed at the above rate. 
 
Expenses:  
 
Mileage as required to attend any required meetings will be reimbursed at the current City reimbursement 
rate. 
 
Any lodging expenses that the Service Provider may incur to attend meeting(s) will be reimbursed in full. 

 
 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
251



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
252



 

City Council Study Session – February 6, 2018 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
       STUDY SESSION 

 
December 3, 2019 

 
ATTENDEES:  Councilmembers Bender, S. Burkett, B. Burkett, Leggett, Tremblay, Smith and Wilbanks.  
Also in attendance were Mayor Johnson, City Administrator Schmidt, Planner Wallgren and Planning 
Assistant Lewis. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay called the Study Session to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay opened the study session by introducing members of the Planning 
Commission Rose and McPhail.  The Council discussed any questions they had regarding the Use Tables 
update with the Planning Commission members. 
 
The Council then had a discussion regarding the Ag lease and also discussed options regarding the ROW 
Vacation. 
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 8:02 PM.    
 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator Dave Schmidt   Mayor Pat Johnson 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
253



CITY OF BUCKLEY TRANSFER VOUCHER
November 30, 2019

From Fund # To Fund #
              NAME AMOUNT               NAME

Bars Number Bars Number
1 General Fund 291,653.66$             Payroll Fund

102,107.75$             Claims Fund
597.00.40 84.00$                      430 Utility Equip Res 397.00.60
597.00.65 4,166.00$                 2 Contingency Reserve Fund 397.00.10 St Merge

3 GF Cumulative Reserve
597.00.30 4.78$                        1 G F Investment Interest 397.00.45 St Merge

4 Cemetery 1,804.17$                 Claims Fund
597.00.00 84.00$                      430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.20

597.00.50.30 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.80 St Merge

7 P D Maintenance Reserve -$                          Payroll Fund
140,336.96$             Claims Fund

8 Railroad ROW 2,167.08$                 Payroll Fund
-$                          Claims Fund

597.00.50.30 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.81 St Merge
597.00.00.46 84.00$                      430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.70

30 Fire Equipment & EMS Reserve -$                          Payroll Fund
10,206.09$               Claims Fund

35 Park Construction -$                          Payroll Fund
3,800.66$                 Claims Fund

597.10.00.10 259.92$                    1 G F Investment Interest 397.00.40 St Merge
597.10.10.10 417.00$                    307 Cap Imp Trailhead Parking 397.10.40

597.10.20 167.00$                    430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.75

101 Street Operations 7,201.41$                 Payroll Fund
25,162.90$               Claims Fund

597.00.00 42.00$                      430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.10
597.50.00.30 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.82

597.20.00 1 GF Administration 397.60.20
597.30.00 -$                          102 Street Capital Improvement 397.00.10.50

597.50.00.70 42.00$                      1 GF Dispatch 397.60.22

102 Street Capital Improvement -$                          Payroll Fund
58,762.66$               Claims Fund

597.10.00.30 -$                          1 GF Investment Interest 397.00.40
597.10.00.31 3,518.00$                 1 GF Project Administration 397.60.95 

City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019
 

254



From Fund # AMOUNT To Fund #
              NAME               NAME

Bars Number Bars Number
102 Street Capital Improvement

597.10.00.32 1,250.00$                 307 Cap Imp Trailhead Parking 397.10.80.60
597.10.00.33 834.00$                    430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.80

103 Tranportation Benefit District 20.00$                      Claims Fund
597.00.00 3,125.00$                 101 City Street 397.42
597.30.48 3,883.00$                 101 City Street 397.20.10

105 EMS 9,053.15$                 Payroll Fund
8,131.66$                 Claims Fund

597.90.00 500.00$                    030/131 Fire Equip/EMS Res 131-397
597.90.00.40 125.00$                    30 Fire/EMS Bunker Gear 397.10.10

109 Criminal Justice -$                          Payroll Fund
-$                          Claims Fund

597.10.00.20 4,167.00$                 7 PD Maintenance Reserve 397.00.00

134 Fire Dept Facility Maint & Cap Imp -$                          Payroll Fund
909.68$                    Claims Fund

597.10.00.30 71.24$                      202 FS Bond Investment Interest 397.00.40

136 Visitor Promo -$                          Payroll Fund
392.36$                    Claims Fund

597.10.00.10 -$                          1 GF Investment Interest 397.00.40
597.51.00.30 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.90
597.52.00.60 1 GF Brick Sales Administration 397.60.91

202 Fire Station Construction Bond 194,510.00$             Claims Fund

307 Capital Improvement -$                          Payroll Fund
67,153.29$               Claims Fund

597.10.00.10 -$                          1 GF Investment Interest 397.00.40
597.10.00.31 2,438.00$                 1 GF Project Administration 397.60.99
597.00.20.00 102 St CIP - River Avenue 397.00.20
597.10.00.32 102 PW Admin Bldg 397.10.50

308 Comp Plan Cap Imp 7,037.26$                 Payroll Fund
8,996.68$                 Claims Fund

597.10.30 1,250.00$                 307 Cap Imp - PW Admin Bldg 397.10.80.50
597.10.20 102 St CIP - River Avenue 397.10.40

401 Natural Gas Operations Claims
6% tax                533.10.54 8.42$                        1 GF Business Tax 316.43

597.00.00.70 1 GF Gas System Sale 397.60.93 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
255



From Fund # AMOUNT To Fund #
              NAME               NAME

Bars Number Bars Number
402 Water Sewer Operations 98,161.59$               Payroll Fund

41,813.29$               Claims Fund
10% tax W     534.10.54 6,833.38$                 1 GF Business Tax 316.42
10% tax S     535.10.54 14,197.51$               1 GF Business Tax 316.44

597.00.00.50 542.00$                    1 GF Dispatch 397.00.60
597.00.00.51 6,016.00$                 1 GF Admin Water 397.60.10
597.00.00.52 7,360.00$                 1 GF Admin Sewer 397.60.10

W 597.00.00.53 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.60
S 597.00.00.55 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.60

597.00.00.70 59,354.00$               405 Sewer Imp Fund 397.00.00 St Merge
597.00.00.80 16,815.00$               406 Water Imp Fund 397.00.00 St Merge
597.00.00.40 2,084.00$                 430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.40
597.00.00.90 1,250.00$                 307 Cap Imp - PW Admin Bldg 397.10.60

403 Solid Waste 85,159.95$               Claims Fund
10% tax          537.10.54 9,921.59$                 1 GF Business Tax 316.45

597.00.00.10 5,077.00$                 1 GF Administration 397.60.40
597.00.00.55 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.83

405 Sewer Ext & Replacement -$                          Payroll Fund
13,816.29$               Claims Fund

597.10.00.31 2,231.00$                 1 GF Project Administration 397.60.96
597.10.00.32 1,250.00$                 307 Cap Imp - PW Admin Bldg 397.10.80.70
597.10.00.33 2,083.00$                 430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.85

406 Water Line Replacement & Ext -$                          Payroll Fund
13,900.56$               Claims Fund

597.10.00.31 2,678.00$                 1 GF Project Administration 397.60.97
597.10.00.32 1,250.00$                 307 Cap Imp - PW Admin Bldg 397.10.80.80
597.10.00.40 1,250.00$                 430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.90

407 Storm Drain Operation & Maint 16,139.45$               Payroll Fund
7,827.64$                 Claims Fund

10 % tax     531.30.44.01 4,692.32$                 1 GF Business Tax 316.48
597.00.00 1,250.00$                 430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.50

597.00.00.10 9,549.00$                 408 Storm Drain Cap 397.00.30 St Merge
597.00.00.20 5,820.00$                 1 GF Admin 397.60.40.10
597.00.00.53 1 GF Insurance Portion 397.60.71
597.00.00.57 42.00$                      1 GF Dispatch 397.60.21

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
256



From Fund # AMOUNT To Fund #
              NAME               NAME

Bars Number Bars Number
408 Stormwater Capital 217,728.94$             Claims Fund

597.10.00.31 2,290.00$                 1 GF Project Administration 397.60.98
597.10.00.32 1,250.00$                 307 Cap Imp - PW Admin Bldg 397.10.80.10
597.10.00.33 2,084.00$                 430 Utility Equipment Reserve 397.00.95

430 Utility Equipment Reserve 262.63$                    Claims Fund
597.10.00.10 465.54$                    1 GF Investment Interest 397.00.40

103 Transportation Benefit District 101 City Street
597.30.48 17,000.00$               397.20.10

Total Investment Interest to 202 71.24$                      
Total Investment Interest to 001 730.24$                    
Total Payroll 431,413.60$             
Total Claims 1,002,804.16$          
Total Treasurer Checks $20,391.93

Date Approved by Council December 10, 2019 Finance Director Saundra Groshong

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
257



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
258



  
STATE OF WASHINGTON             )     

 County Pierce    )     ss.                                              OATH OF OFFICE 

                                                              ) 

 
I,     MARVIN SUNDSTROM         
   _______________________________________________________ 
____881 Sheets Road, Buckley, WA 98321________________360-829-5249_____________                     
        ADDRESS              PHONE 
 
do solemnly swear (or affirm) to support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and 

laws of the State of Washington, and all valid local ordinances, and will faithfully and impartially per-

form and discharge the duties of the office of ____________________ according to law, to the best of 

my ability in and for Pierce County, Washington, as such duties are prescribed by law, so help me God. 

    
                                                                 ____________________________________________ 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______________day of _______________,20__. 
 
                                                                     ____________________________________________ 
 
 
                                                                     ____________________________________________ 
                                 
                                                                     
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 12/10/2019

 
259


	1. City Council Agenda 12-10-2019 (Website Agenda Packet)
	2. CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST
	3. December - 2019
	     December 2019              

	4. A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	5. B. STAFF REPORTS
	6. C. MAIN AGENDA
	7. Agenda Bill 19-122 (ORD No. ____-19 Amending the 2019 Budget)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	8. ORD No.  ___- 19 - 2019 Budget Amendment
	9. Agenda Bill 19-123 (ORD No. ___-19 Amending BMC Pitbulls)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	10. ORD No. ____-19 (Possession of dangerous dog)
	11. Agenda Bill 19-124 (ORD No. ____-19, Adopting the 2017 Comprehensive Sewer Plan)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	12. ORD ___-19 - Adopting New 2017 Comprehensive Sewer System Plan (final)
	13. Agenda Bill 19-125 (ORD No. _____-19 Adopting Elements 7 - Utilities  8 - Capital Facilities of the City Comprehensive Plan)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	14. Memo to Mayor  Council - Comp Plan Elements 7  8 - Changes
	15. Comp Plan Staff Report
	16. Comp Plan E-7 - Utilities Element (Final to Council)
	I. Purpose of the Utilities Element
	Urban Growth Area
	Federal and State Laws and Regulations
	Revised Codes of Washington and Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
	Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
	Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978
	Northwest Power Planning Council
	1991 Clean Air Amendments


	II. Inventory and analysis
	Inventory
	City-Owned Utilities
	Privately- or County-Owned Utilities


	III. water system
	Source and Supply
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Well No. 2
	Well No. 3
	Well No. 4
	Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well)
	Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well
	Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1)
	Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2)
	Well System Operations

	Forecast of Future Needs

	Treatment
	Level of Service
	Inventory System
	Forecast of Future Needs

	Storage
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Transmission and Distribution System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs


	IV. sewage collection and treatment
	Collection System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Location and Future Needs

	Area Lift Stations
	Completion of Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation
	Treatment System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Treatment System Improvements


	V. Stormwater Collection and Treatment
	Treatment
	Level of Service

	Collection
	Level of Service
	System Inventory
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs


	VI. Other Utilities
	Natural Gas Utility
	Electrical Utilities
	Telecommunication Utilities
	Solid Waste Collection

	VII. Goals, Objectives, and Policies and Consistency with County-Wide Policies
	Plan for Future Utilities
	Vision Statement and Comprehensive Plan Goals
	Utility Goals
	General Utility Policies
	Policy U-1
	Policy U-2
	Policy U-3
	Policy U-4
	Policy U-5
	Policy U-6
	Policy U-7
	Policy U-8
	Policy U-9
	Policy U-10
	Policy U-11
	Policy U-12
	Policy U-13
	Policy U-14
	Policy U-15
	Policy U-16
	Policy U-17
	Policy U-18
	Policy U-19
	Policy U-20

	Water Utility Policies
	Policy W-1
	Policy W-2
	Policy W-3
	Policy W-4
	Policy W-5
	Policy W-6
	Policy W-7

	Sewer System Policies
	Policy S-1
	Policy S-2
	Policy S-3

	Storm and Surface Water Drainage Utility Policies
	Policy D-1
	Policy D-2

	Hazardous Waste Policies
	Policy H-1
	Policy H-2
	Policy H-3
	Policy H-4
	Policy H-5

	Solid Waste Policies
	Policy SW-1
	Policy SW-2
	Policy SW-3
	Policy SW-4
	Policy SW-5
	Policy SW-6
	Policy SW-7

	Relationship to Growth Management Plans and Requirements
	Pierce County Comprehensive Plan
	Countywide Planning Policies




	17. Comp Plan E-7 - Utility Element Figures (Final to Council)
	Blank Page

	18. Comp Plan E-8 - Capital Facilities (Final to Council)
	I. Introduction
	Purpose of the Capital Facilities Element
	Urban Growth Area

	II. Municipal Facilities
	Existing Facilities
	City Hall Building
	Multi-Purpose Center
	Public Works Facilities
	Youth Center
	Fire Station
	Police Station


	III. 2018 Municipal Facility Evaluation
	Table CF-1 6- and 20-year needs
	Building Evaluations
	City Hall Building
	Multi-Purpose Center
	Building/Planning
	Municipal Court
	Senior Center
	Council/Court Room
	Youth Center
	Public Works Facilities
	Police Department Services
	Future Demand
	Buckley Police Department Future Needs
	Table CF-2  Projected Additions to Police Department Staff
	Table CF-3 Police Department needs
	Fire & EMS Services
	Chart CF-2, Population & Call Volume History
	Forecast Projected Needs
	Facilities
	Table CF-4  Fire Department Apparatus/Equipment
	Table CF-5 Fire Department Personnel
	Level-of-Service Standards
	Fire Services
	Parks
	Potable Water
	Sanitary Sewer
	Storm and Surface Water Drainage
	Transportation:


	IV. Water System
	Introduction
	Source and Supply
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Well No. 2
	Well No. 3
	Well No. 4
	Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well)
	Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well
	Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1)
	Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2)
	Well System Operations

	Forecast of Future Needs

	Treatment
	Level of Service
	Inventory System
	Forecast of Future Needs

	Storage
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Transmission and Distribution System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Capital improvement plan
	Source and Supply Projects
	Table CF-6 Source and Supply Water Projects
	Water Treatment Projects
	Table CF-7   Treatment System Improvements
	Water Storage Projects
	Table CF-8 Storage Projects
	Transmission Main Projects
	Table CF-9 Transmission Main Projects
	Distribution Main Projects
	Table CF-10 Distribution Main Projects

	Recommended Financing plan
	Table CF-11 Monthly Water System Rates – Base Charge for 200 cubic feet


	V. sewage collection and treatment
	Collection System
	Level of Service-+
	Inventory of System
	Table CF-12 Collection System Inventory
	Proposed Location and Future Needs

	Area Lift Stations
	Completion of Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation
	Treatment System
	Level of Service
	Table CF-13 NPDES Permit Limits
	Inventory of System
	Treatment System Improvements

	Capital improvement plan
	Collection System
	Table CF-14 Gravity Sewer and Trunk Sewer Projects
	Lift Station and Force Main Projects
	Table CF-15 Lift Station and Force Main Projects
	Treatment Plant Improvements
	Table CF-16 Treatment Plant Improvements

	Recommended Financing plan

	VI. Stormwater Collection and Treatment
	Treatment
	Level of Service

	Collection
	Level of Service
	System Inventory
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Capital improvement plan
	Stormwater System
	Table CF-17 Stormwater Projects

	Recommended Financing plan

	VII. other utilities
	Natural Gas Utility
	Electrical Utilities
	Telecommunication Utilities
	Solid Waste Collection
	Transportation
	Table CF-18 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan (2020 – 2025)

	Parks and Recreation
	Level of Service
	Table CF-19 Parks & Recreation LOS Standards
	Inventory of System
	Table CF-20 Existing Inventory of Facilities
	Facility Needs
	Table CF-21 Parks and Recreation Facility Needs

	Capital improvement plan
	Parks and Recreation
	Table CF-22 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Schedule

	Recommended Financing plan
	Table CF-23 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Funding Sources

	Municipal Facilities
	Table CF-24 Public Facilities Projects

	Fire Protection Facilities
	Police Protection
	Police Facilities


	VIII. General City Finance
	Table CF-25 Distribution of City Revenues Available for Current Expenses
	Intergovernmental Funding
	Table CF-26  Intergovernmental Assistance for the Years 2012 to 2014

	Capital Funds
	Table CF-27 City of Buckley Capital Funds Sources for the Years 2012 to 2014
	Table CF-28 Current 2018 Balance in the Major Capital Improvement Enterprise Funds

	City-Owned Utilities
	Table CF-29 City-Owned Utilities – Water, Sewer, Storm Revenue Generated

	Potential Sources of Additional Revenues/Funding Capacity
	Real Estate Excise Tax (REET)
	B&O Tax on General Business
	B&O Tax on Utilities
	Table CF-30 Current Utility and B&O Rates
	Formation of Local Improvement District (LID)
	Transportation Benefit Districts
	Transportation Improvement Board

	Plan of Finance, Capital Facilities Finance Strategy
	Expanded Revenue Base
	Adjust Utility Rate Structure

	New Revenue Sources
	Impact Fees
	Local Improvement Districts




	19. ORD No. ____-19 (Amending Comprehensive Plan - Adopting Elements 7 and 8) final
	20. Agenda Bill 19-126 (ORD No. ___-19 Amending BMC WRSD Impact Fees)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	21. Memo to Mayor  Council - White River School District Impact Fee
	22. WRSD RES 18-13 Impact Fees
	23. ORD __- 19 Amending BMC 3.50.050 - WRSD Impact Fee (final)
	24. Agenda Bill 19-127 (ORD No. ___-19 Use Table)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	25. FINAL SR 2019 use table Signed
	26. Track Changes Use Table
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	Schools, public or private elementary
	Permitted uses in the NMU HDR R-6,000, 8,000, 20,000

	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C
	P/C

	27. ORD No. ____-19 (Use Table)
	School, public or private elementary

	28. Agenda Bill 19-128 (TIB Agreement River Ave, Jefferson Ave to Main St.)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	29. Selection Letter and Agreement 6-P-808(015)-1 - TIB Grant
	30. Agenda Bill 19-129 (G&O Water Reuse Plan)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	31. Schmidt Scope for Water Reuse Plan
	32. Agenda Bill 19-130 (Interlocal Agreement WRSD Impact Fees)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	33. Interlocal Agreement - Buckley  WRSD (Impact Fees)
	CITY OF BUCKLEY

	34. Agenda Bill 19-131 (Police Station Roof)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	35. Police Station Roof Bid
	36. Agenda Bill 19-132 (Early Separation Agreement - Chief Arsanto)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	37. Separation Agreement - Arsanto (final draft w-att changes)
	38. Agenda Bill 19-133 (Dave Schmidt- Professional Consulting Contract)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	39. Agreement - City Administrator Consultant Support Services (2019 final draft)
	DAVID SCHMIDT, CITY ADMINTRATION CONSULTANT
	T E R M S


	40. D. CONSENT AGENDA
	41. City Council Minutes 12-3-2019 (Study Session)
	42. Copy of Nov 2019 transfer voucher
	Nov 2019 Transfer Voucher

	43. E. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	44. Oath of Office  - Sundstrom (12.10.19)


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Agenda Home: 


